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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

JOHN A. DELANEY 117 W. DUVAL STREET
MAYOR JACKSONVILLE, FL 32202

Dear Members of the City Council and Citizens of Jacksonville:

It is my pleasure to submit to you the City of Jacksonville’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year 2000/2001.

The year 2001 was an exciting one for Jacksonville. The City continued
efforts to improve public services, strengthen neighborhoods, manage growth and
preserve our natural assets. And the City of Jacksonville was awarded the
Governor’s Sterling Award for its outstanding efforts toward continuous
improvement.

Efficiencies in city government continued to provide greater resources for
critical needs such as social services, children’s programs, land acquisition and the
arts. Our employees are committed to an efficient and responsive government, and
through this document, the City of Jacksonville is proud to offer residents a full
disclosure of the City’s financial status. Sound and prudent financial management
is a key component of any effective organization, and this report clearly reflects the
City of Jacksonville’s commitment to responsible public service.

I hope you will find this document useful, and I look forward to continuing to
work with you to make Jacksonville’s local government the most responsive and
efficient city government in America, and Jacksonville, the best place in the nation
to live, work and raise a family.

Sincerely,
/
Ry

John A. Delaney
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DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE

Office of the Director

March 29, 2002

The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
and Citizens of the City of Jacksonville

Introduction

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Report) of the City of Jacksonville, Florida (the City), for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2001 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the
completeness and fairness of presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. The Report fulfills the
requirements set forth in the City Charter, Section 5.11; Chapter 166.241, Florida Statutes and Chapter 10.550
Rules of the Florida Auditor General, requiring publication of financial statements which have been audited by
independent auditors.

We believe that the Report, prepared by the City's Department of Administration and Finance - Accounting
Division, based on accounting principles generally accepted in the United States presents fairly and consistently
the City's financial position and results of operations and conforms to the standards of governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).We
believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to set
forth fairly the financial position and the results of operations of the City; and that all disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activity have been included.

Report Format. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: Introductory;
Financial, including the report of independent auditors, general purpose financial statements and the combining
statements and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules; and Statistical, containing
unaudited financial and other data of an economic, financial and demographic nature for prior and current years.
The Notes to Financial Statements, in the financial section, are necessary for an understanding of the information
included in the statements. They include the summary of significant accounting policies and other necessary
disclosures of matters relating to the financial position of the City.

Financial Reporting Entity. The financial reporting entity includes all funds and account groups of the primary
government (Consolidated Government City of JacksonvilleDuval County), as well as all of its component units.
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable and, for financial

117 West Duval Street, Suite 300
Jacksonville, Florida 32202
Telephone (904)630-1298 Fax (904)630-3615
www.coj.net

Recipient of the 2001 Governor's Sterling Award



statement purposes, are either blended with the activities of the City or discretely presented. The criteria used to
determine whether an organization should be a part of the City of Jacksonville's reporting entity were those
outlined by the GASB under Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. The criteria considered in
establishing financial accountability, set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, include appointing a voting majority
of the organization's governing body and either (1) the ability to impose its will on the organization or (2) the
potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to or to impose financial burdens on the City. Also
included are component units where the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that
their exclusion would cause the general purpose financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The Jacksonville Public Library Board has been classified as a dependent special district by the State of Florida
Department of Community Affairs. Per GASB Statement No. 14, the Library Board is not considered a component
unit of the City, as it is not a legally separate organization. Therefore, its activity is included as part of the primary
government.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are reported as part of the City because they are so
intertwined with the City that they are, in substance, the same as the City. The Police and Fire Pension Fund and
the Metropolitan Planning Organization are component units of the City blended into the appropriate fund types.
The JEA, the Jacksonville Port Authority, the Jacksonville Transportation Authority, the Jacksonville Economic
Development Company, Inc., the Jacksonville Economic Development Commission, the Downtown Vision Inc.,
the Duval County Housing Finance Authority, and the Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority are reported as
discretely presented component units. The Jacksonville Housing Authority is considered a related organization.
The Duval County School Board did not meet the above criteria and is not a component unit of the City.

The City's Constitutional Officers (Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property Appraiser, Supervisor of Elections, and Clerk
of the Circuit Court) are reported as part of the City's primary government activities because they do not possess
the corporate powers necessary to meet the GASB Statement No. 14 definition of separate legal standing.

The reader is directed to Note 1.B. in the Notes to the Financial Statements for a more complete description of the
factors used to define the reporting entity.

Form of Government. The City provides a full range of services including police and fire protection, parks,
recreation facilities, courts, planning and zoning, street maintenance, elections and voter registration, emergency
transport system, community health, housing and human services, planning and economic development programs,
agricultural extension, and general administrative services. The City also owns and operates five enterprise
activities, the major ones consisting of a solid waste disposal, collection, and recycling system; and a sports
complex, convention center and performing arts center.

The City is a home-rule municipal corporation operating under the laws of the State of Florida, first organized and
incorporated as a city February 11, 1832. The City's current charter, its municipal constitution, has been amended
many times since its original adoption by the electorate on October 1, 1968, when the City of Jacksonville and
Duval County governments were combined into the single, consolidated government of the City of Jacksonville.
The laws of the State of Florida prevail when conflicts exist between the charter and the state constitution and in
matters where the charter is silent. The City's charter can only be amended by the Florida Legislature and/or by
a majority of the City's voters.

The Charter provides for a strong mayor-council form of government. Legislative authority is vested with a 19-
member council; 14 members are elected by district and 5 members are elected at-large to serve for four-year
terms. The Council fixes compensation of City officials and employees and enacts ordinances and resolutions
relating to City services, tax levies, appropriations and borrowings, licensing and regulating of businesses and
trades, and other municipal purposes. The City's Chief Executive Officer is the Mayor, elected to a four-year term.
The Mayor has the power to veto any legislation passed by Council with certain limited exceptions. The present
term of the elected Mayor and members of the City Council expires on June 30, 2003. To conform to the
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traditional organization of county governments within the State of Florida, the City retained the elected
constitutional offices of Sheriff, Property Appraiser, Tax Collector, Supervisor of Elections, and the Clerk of the
Circuit Court.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Situated in the corner of Northeast Florida, Jacksonville is considered to be the metropolitan market for over ten
Florida and South Georgia Counties. The city is the hub of an array of services that include a deep-water port, an
international airport, tourism, sporting events, shopping and cultural amenities. With a Metropolitan Statistical
Area (MSA) population of over a million, Jacksonville is on the verge of being classified as a first-tier city.

Summary of local economy:

Population Growth: The Jacksonville MSA population increased from 1,100,491 in 2000 to 1,115,000 in 2001,
a 1.3% increase. Of the Jacksonville MSA, St. Johns County experienced the greatest increase in population with
a 2.4% increase. Duval County’s population increased from 791,507 to 793,896, an increase of 1.0%. With a
median age of 34.1, Jacksonville is the “youngest” major city in Florida.

Employment: The Jacksonville MSA continues to possess a strong labor force. Over the past two years, there have
been over 36,000 jobs created in the Jacksonville MSA, for a growth rate of almost 7%. The service industry
employment leads the way with 30% of the total employment, with retail and total government at 21% and 10%,
respectively. The unemployment rate remains a low 4.3%. The average yearly wage in 2001 forDuval County
was $32,220.

Employment by Industry
PROJECTED PROJECTED

INDUSTRY EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYMENT ANNUAL CHANGE
TITLE 2001 2009 TOTAL PERCENT
Total All Industries 500,700 579,326 9,828 1.96
Agriculture, Forestry, and Fishing, Total 5,493 6,477 123 224
Mining, Total 247 220 3) (1.37)
Construction, Total 24,581 26,405 228 0.93
Manufacturing, Total 31,174 32,707 192 0.61
Transportation, Communications,
and Public Utilities, Total 36,304 41,936 704 1.94
Wholesale and Retail Trade, Total 107,301 120,420 1,640 1.53
Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate, Total 57,144 69,100 1,495 2.62
Services, Total 148,985 185,218 4,529 3.04
Government, Total 51,436 54,869 429 0.83
Self-Employed and Unpaid Family Workers 38,035 41,974 492 1.29

Source: Florida Agency for Workforce Innovation, Occupational Employment Projections

2001 Economic Activity
The Cornerstone Division of the Jacksonville Chamber of Commerce announced 29 business projects in 2001,

which retained a total of 8 jobs and brought 9,033 new jobs to the area. Private capital investment associated with
these projects totaled $240 million.
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Major Economic Development Program Announcements 01/01/01-12/31/01

Company Name Type of Business Projected New Jobs Capital Investment

Tree of Life Company Headquarters 115 (new) $21,000,000

AmeriCredit Customer Service Center 538 (new) 12,000,000

Aetna U.S. Healthcare Transaction Processing No new jobs 26,800,000
Center

TNT Logistics North America Logistics Management 75 (new) 25,000,000
Headquarters

Cendant Corp. Billing Management 434 (new) -

CRG West Tier-2 Network Access 120 (new) 70,000,000
Point

Visagent Internet Based Food 60 (new) 20,000,000
Broker

CitiStreet Headquarters of Benefits 200 (new) -
Outsourcing Division

Craig/is Headquarters of Insurance 250 (new) 2,000,000
Business Process
Outsourcing

BJ’s Wholesale Club Southeast Regional 267 (new) 29,000,000
Headquarters and
Distribution Center

The Jacksonville International Airport serviced over 5 million passengers in 2001. This total reflects a 36.9%
increase since 1996 and reflects the City’s position as an emerging tourist and business center.

Retail sales in the Jacksonville MSA declined slightly with a reported $14.7 billion in 2000 as compared to $14.3
billion in 2001, a 2.5% decrease.

Retail Sales 2000-2001 (in thousands)

Jacksonville MSA 2000 2001 % Change
Duval County $11,266,358 $ 10,976,070 (2.6%)
Clay County 1,598,195 1,522,354 (4.9%)
Nassau County 499,724 465,583 (7.3%)
St. Johns 1,310,383 1,356,246 3.5%
TOTAL $ 14,674,660 $ 14,320,253 (2.5%)

Future Economic Activity

The strength of Jacksonville’s economy lies in its uniquely diversified structure, not heavily dependent on any
one major employer or employment sector. The community enjoys a natural location for distribution and
warehousing activities. Quality lifestyle, labor force, and cultural/educational/medical facilities are key
resources in the market’s ability to sustain continued high growth in 2002 and beyond. The following listing
from various sources highlights the community:
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Expansion Management magazine has ranked Jacksonville as the #1 “Hottest City” in America for
business relocation in its January 2002 issue. Jacksonville has ranked in the top ten for four straight
years and is the only city to be ranked #1 twice.

In the September 2001 issue of Expansion Management magazine, Jacksonville was ranked sixth in the
Top 100 Logistics Friendly Cities.

In the February 2001 issue of Expansion Management magazine, Jacksonville has been ranked in the Top
15% of all metro areas in the U.S. for Fiber Optic Connectivity.

The University of North Florida was ranked in the Top Southern Public Universities in the annual U.S.
News 2001 College Rankings report.

JEA, the electric, water and sewer authority for Jacksonville, was ranked among the top electric utilities
in the Southern Region in terms of customer satisfaction in J.D Power & Associates 2001 Electric Utility
Residential Customer Satisfaction Study.

In the annual report of the “Top 40 Real Estate Markets” in the August 2001 issue of Expansion
Management magazine, Jacksonville was ranked fourteenth out of 329 metropolitan areas studied.

According to a study in the March 13, 2000 issue of Newsweek, Stanton College Prep was ranked the
number one high school in the nation. Three area schools made the list and Duval County was the only
school district to have two schools ranked in the Top Ten.

The Florida Department of Transportation named Jacksonville International Airport commercial services
airport of the year in 2001. Jacksonville’s Herlong Airport was recognized as the state's best general
aviation airport of the year.

Jacksonville was ranked the eleventh best small metro area for entrepreneurial businesses in the
December 2000 issue of /nc. magazine

Florida Community College Jacksonville was ranked by Yahoo Internet Life online magazine as the third
most “wired” community college in the nation for 2000.

In its July 10-17, 2000 issue, The Industry Standard ranked Jacksonville as the 26th “most connected”
urban market in the U.S. and 15t in Florida. According to their research, 47% of adults in Jacksonville
use the Internet at home or at work.

The Industry Standard also ranked Jacksonville 18th in terms of e-commerce usage out of the entire
nation and 15t in Florida. According to the magazine, 19% of adults shop or buy online in Jacksonville.

In the February 2000 issue of Florida Trend, Jacksonville was ranked the 25th “Most Wired” city in
America. Jacksonville ranks first in Florida in terms of bandwidth per 1,000 population

According to OneSource Information Services, Jacksonville is ranked in the Top Ten Cities for High-
Tech Jobs in the Southeast (April 2000)

Expansion Management magazine ranks Jacksonville as the 5th Least Expensive Downtown Office
Market in the U.S. in their Corporate Real Estate 2000 magazine.
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Major Initiatives

The City of Jacksonville received the Governor’s Sterling Award in June 2001. Based on the criteria for the
national Malcolm Baldridge Award, the prestigious Sterling Award recognizes Jacksonville as a model of an
efficient government committed to a philosophy of continuous improvement benefiting the city’s residents.

Work is well under way on The Better Jacksonville Plan. The $2.2 billion growth management initiative includes
improvements to roads and infrastructure, environmental protection, targeted economic development as well as
new and improved public facilities. Information on a number of initiatives, including The Better Jacksonville Plan,
follows:

The Better Jacksonville Plan

The Better Jacksonville Plan is a comprehensive growth management strategy that provides road and infrastructure
improvements, environmental preservation, targeted economic development and new and improved public
facilities. The Plan is funded through a half-penny sales tax and by leveraging existing revenue sources.

With $1.5 billion set aside for road and infrastructure improvements, neighborhoods in all parts of the City will
see a direct benefit from the Plan. Further, targeted economic development will encourage job growth in areas that
have lagged in development opportunities. The Plan includes funding to improve the environment through land
preservation, enhancing neighborhood parks, and sewer infrastructure in critical areas. Finally, the Plan seeks to
provide residents with quality public facilities and includes funding for improved neighborhood libraries as well
as a new main library, sports and entertainment arena, baseball park and county courthouse.

The Better Jacksonville Plan marries all of these key elements into a design that will encourage and support
responsible and managed growth while creating a better quality of life for all of Jacksonville’s residents.

An integral piece of The Better Jacksonville Plan is the accountability measure that is actually a part of the
legislation. The ordinance calls for a Finance Administration Committee and a Program Administration
Committee. In addition, the Mayor reports quarterly to a Citizens Oversight Committee.

Government Efficiency

Total Quality Government. The City of Jacksonville’s strategic plan provides a road map for achieving the City’s
vision and mission. Major areas of focus are effective, responsive customer-focused government, families,
neighborhoods and schools, growth management, promoting Jacksonville as a green community and economic
development. Some of these initiatives are further highlighted in this section. Resources are allocated based on
these key areas of focus. In addition, departments continue to review their key service processes in an ongoing
effort to improve and better meet customer needs.

Tax Cut. In fiscal year 2000/2001, Mayor Delaney again reduced the property tax rate. This seventh consecutive
property tax cut reduced the millage to its lowest rate in two decades. The tax cuts have saved taxpayers $90
million dollars over seven years.

Neighborhoods

Intensive Care Neighborhoods. The City continues to focus services and resources on six targeted neighborhoods
in Jacksonville. The plan aims to improve learning environments for kids, enhance infrastructure, improve
recreational opportunities as well as improve public safety, social services and housing

Neighborhoods Department. The City's Neighborhoods Department serves as a model for cities throughout the
nation. With neighborhood coordinators assigned to the six planning districts, the department helps residents
navigate through area problems and resolve them. In addition, the department helps organize residents to improve
their own communities. Through the Clean It Up, Green It Up Division, residents join together for more than 1,000
neighborhood cleanups each year. The Mayor celebrated the planting of one million trees in five years.
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Growth Management/Environment

Preservation Project

In January 1999, Mayor Delaney established the Preservation Project, a major land acquisition initiative. It is
designed to manage growth, preserve environmentally sensitive lands, improve water quality and access to the
city’s unique natural areas.

The Preservation Project was launched with a vision of setting aside 10 to 20 square miles of developable land
in Duval County within five years. In just two years, the city and its partners have set aside more than 33 square
miles, creating one of the largest urban park systems in the nation. The City of Jacksonville initially committed
$21 million to the program, and voters, through The Better Jacksonville Plan, added another $50 million to the
program in September 2000. The balance of the funds is raised through state, federal and private sources.

St. Johns River. Designated in 1998 by the President of the United States as an American Heritage River, the St.
Johns River continues to play a critical role in the everyday life of our community. Mayor Delaney meets regularly
with federal, state and local officials to ensure that the needs of the river are met. The City and other river partners
continue to commit time and resources to restore the river and its water quality. A number of these agencies are
also working together to eliminate septic tanks in sanitary nuisance areas and help homeowners hook up to sewer
lines.

General Governmental Functions

The City's general governmental activities are accounted for in four fund types. The fund types are as follows: the
General Fund, the Special Revenue Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund.

Revenues. Revenues for general governmental functions totaled $865.1 million in fiscal year 2001, an increase
of $55.5 million, or 6.9%, over 2000. The amounts of revenue by source and the changes from last year are shown
as follows (in thousands):

Increase Percent

Percent (Decrease) of Increase

Sources Amount of Total from 2000 (Decrease)
Taxes $507,253 58.6 $43,249 9.3
Licenses and Permits 14,806 1.7 836 6.0
Intergovernmental 210,053 243 7,903 39
Charges for Services 68,394 7.9 6,092 9.8
Fines and Forfeitures 10,415 1.2 477 4.8
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 3,344 0.4 (239) 6.7)
Interest 29,496 34 (368) (1.2)
Other 21,361 2.5 (2,429) (10.2)

Total $865,122 100.0 $55,521 6.9
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GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

Intergovernmental Charges for Services 7.9%
24.3%

Fines & Forfeitures 1.2%

Licenses and Permits
1.7%

Payment in Lieu of Taxes 0.4%
Interest 3.4%

Other 2.5%

Taxes 58.6%

Taxes, the largest source of City revenue, include ad valorem property taxes, utility service taxes, local option
sales and gas taxes, and convention and tourism development taxes. This category reported a 9.3% increase in
2001, or $43.2 million, over last year largely due to a new one-half cent sales tax that was passed by Jacksonville
citizens to fund the Better Jacksonville Plan. The City's strong revenue tax base is represented by increases in ad
valorem taxes of $16.6 million to a total of $299.3 million in 2001. Over the last six years, taxable assessed values
have increased by $9.3 billion, as the City lowered the millage rate to 10.5723 mills, the lowest rate since 1980.
In addition, the budgets for the past ten fiscal years 1991-92 to 2000-01 were prepared under a budgetary policy
that sets a 3% tax cap on ad valorem revenues excluding new construction for any year over the ad valorem taxes
of the previous year.

Intergovernmental revenues account for the City's second largest source of revenue. Growth in this category also
reflects an improved Jacksonville economy. The collection of intergovernmental revenues for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2001, totaled $210.1 million, an increase of $7.9 million, or 3.9%, over fiscal year 2000.
Approximately $1.5 million of the increase was from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to
reimburse the City for disaster relief expenditures incurred during hurricane Floyd.

Charges for services increased $6.1 million, or 9.8% due to improved collection of ambulance service fees and
court cost fees remitted to the General Fund.

The decrease of $2.4 million in the Revenue category entitled Other is due to recording an allowance for Housing
Rehabilitation and Home Investment loans that have a five-year forgiveness provision based on occupancy
requirements.

Expenditures. Expenditures for general governmental functions totaled $947 million in 2001, an increase of $110
million, or 13.1%, over 2000. The amount of expenditures, including the increases (decreases) over the prior year
are shown in the following tabulation (in thousands):
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Increase Percent

Percent (Decrease) of Increase

Expenditures Amount of Total from 2000 - (Decrease)
General Government $ 100,232 10.6 $ 7,951 8.6
Human Services 90,601 9.6 9,150 11.2
Public Safety 311,732 32.8 13,601 4.6
Culture and Recreation 44,018 4.6 3,293 8.1
Transportation 110,765 11.7 (8,976) (7.5)
Economic Environment 57,411 6.1 14,115 32.6
Physical Environment 21,346 2.3 5,994 39.0
Debt Service 73,670 7.8 3,219 4.6
Capital Outlay 136,910 14.5 61,362 81.2
Total $946,685 100.0 $ 109,709 13.1

The major component of governmental expenditure increase in FY 2001 was for Capital Outlay increases of 61.4
million, or 81.2% primarily due to funding for the Better Jacksonville Plan (BJP) projects. BJP infrastructure
construction amounted to $31.2 million and another $14.9 million was used for preservation land purchases. Road
funding of $25 million from the Local Option Gas Program was reclassified from Transportation to BJP Capital

Outlay.

Infrastructure improvements at Royal Terrace and additional funds provided for public service grants, Community
Development Block Grants for Urban Core Enterprises, Fresh Ministries, Hollybrook homes, and Jax Housing

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

Capital Outlay General Government
14.5% 10.6%

Human Services

Debt Service 7.8% 9.6%

Physical Environment 2.3%

Economic Environment 6.1%

Transportation
11.7%
Public Safety
Culture and Recreation 32.8%
4.6%

Partnership increased economic environment activity $14.1 million, or 32.6%.
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Public Safety increased $13.6 million, or an increase of 4.6% compared to FY 2000 as the Jacksonville Sheriff’s
Office (JSO) received additional funding for a net increase of 47 police service positions. The Fire and Rescue
Department added 7 positions in fire prevention and administration. Fire and Rescue spent $0.9 million for
defibrillators for their emergency vehicles.

The Community Service Division promoted a higher quality of life by providing $2 million in assistance to
individuals and families in need. The Jacksonville Children’s Commission administers various programs such as
day care and after school by various private organizations. Activities like these resulted in an increased spending
of $9.1 million, or 8.6% in the Human Services function.

Physical Environment increased $6 million, or 39%, due to reclassifying and increasing spending for Animal Care
and Control, which provides shelter and care for stray pets. The City launched a campaign to keep Jacksonville
Beautiful through projects such as median beautification, increased street sweeping, and reminder advertisements.

Boat ramps, nature trails, expansion and upgrading older parks, in addition to purchasing land for new parks are.
the primary reasons why culture and recreation increased $3.3 million, or 8.1%.

Transportation decreased $9 million, or 8.1%, due to road funding reclassification to BJP Capital Outlay. Part of
the decrease was offset by an increase of $8.9 million in accrued payables associated with the Local Option Gas
Tax that will be reclassified when paid in FY2002 and increased expenditures in the Local Option one-half Cent
Transportation subfund.

General Fund Balance. At September 30, 2001, the fund balance for the General Fund provided $32 million for
FY2002 budget appropriation, $3.5 million for FY2002 budget stabilization, $14.4 million for encumbrances, and
$6.3 million carry forward for capital projects.

Proprietary and Other Financial Operations

The City of Jacksonville has a number of enterprise operations. The largest are highlighted as follows:

Public Parking System. The Public Parking System manages and operates public parking facilities, both on street
and off-street, within the City. This enterprise activity also provides for installation and maintenance of the parking
meters and collection and management of revenues generated by the System. Results of operations indicate income
before contributions and transfers for 2001 of $305 thousand with charges for services of $3.0 million. The
Parking System experienced a net income of $455 thousand.

Solid Waste Enterprise Fund. The Solid Waste Enterprise Fund is responsible for residential collection of garbage,
yard waste, blue bin recycling, appliances, and tires. Solid Waste is also responsible for the City’s landfill
operations, yard waste facilities, recycling facilities, and monitoring all closed landfills in Duval County.
Jacksonville is a leader in the State of Florida, recycling over 47% of the waste stream through blue bin recycling,
yard waste composting, waste oil collection, tire and used appliance recycling, household hazardous waste
collection and commercial recycling.

In 2001, the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund experienced a net income of $10.5 million on operating
revenue of $35.6 million compared to a $3.5 million net income on revenue of $32.5 million in 2000.
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At September 30, 2001, the estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs recorded in the Solid
Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund was $21.2 million compared to $21.8 million as of September 30, 2000. It is the
intent of the City to fund these costs through future operating revenues of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise
Fund. Accordingly, a deferred charge for landfill closure and postclosure care of $36.9 million has been
established that will be recognized as an operating expense to the Fund as enterprise revenue is earned over future
periods.

Internal Service Operations. The City has several internal service funds, which provide a variety of services to
City agencies. These include fleet management, information and communications services, copy center, general
counsel, and self-insurance and group insurance programs.

In fiscal year 2001, the City's internal service operations experienced charges for services of $137.1 million. For
2001, the internal service funds reported a net loss of $5.5 million compared to net income of $13.6 million for
2000. This decrease was primarily due to claims and losses expenses increasing in the self-insurance fund for the
estimated liability incurred but not reported claims. Excess equity of $22.0 million in the self-insurance fund was
transferred to the General Fund in FY2001 as compared to $18.9 million transferred in FY 2000.

Pension Trust Funds. The City sponsors two public employee retirement systems administered by two separate
and distinct pension Boards of Trustees that provide retirement, death, and disability benefits to 7,446 active City
employees, 408 DROP participants for the Police and Fire Pension Plan and 5,537 retirees and beneficiaries at
September 30, 2000. The General Employees Pension Plan (a multi-employer contributory defined benefit plan)
covers substantially all full-time employees of the City and the JEA, a discretely presented component unit of the
City, except for police officers and firefighters. The Police and Fire Pension Plan (a single-employer contributory
defined benefit plan) covers eligible employees of the Office of the Sheriff and the Department of Fire and Rescue.
In addition, certain City employees (less than 1% of total payroll) participate in the State of Florida Retirement
System.

During fiscal year 2001, the net plan assets of the General Employees Pension Plan ($1.4 billion at September 30,
2001) decreased a net of $102.8 million. The net plan assets of the Police and Fire Pension Plan ($727.7 million
at September 30, 2001) decreased a net of $87.2 million during fiscal year 2001, with the plan being 85.25%
funded.

The City made all of its required contributions in 2001 to the respective pension funds in accordance with
actuarially determined contribution requirements. The City's pension plans are further explained in Note 9 in the
Notes to Financial Statements.

Debt Administration. The City's sound financial condition is evidenced by the continuation of its long-held high
grade of bond ratings on indebtedness from the major credit rating services. Among the factors most commonly
cited by these services in support of the "Aa2" rating from Moody's Investor Services on its general obligation debt
include the following: (1) a well-diversified employment and tax base that provides a solid foundation to absorb
future spending requirements; (2) moderate debt burden and well-managed finances; (3) sound financial condition;
and (4) a consolidated city/county government structure. The City of Jacksonville also maintains an "A+" rating
from Standard & Poor's, a “AA” rating from Fitch Ratings, and an "Aa3" rating from Moody's Investors Service
on its revenue bond issues. During FY 2001, Moody’s Investors Services upgraded the previous “A1” rating to
“Aa3. The City continues to follow prudent fiscal policies and practices to maintain these strong credit ratings.

The City does not borrow for operating needs. All of its outstanding long-term indebtedness is for capital needs
only. At September 30, 2001, the City of Jacksonville had $1.2 million in general obligation bonds payable from
ad valorem taxes, $689 million in special obligation bonds payable from specific revenue sources other than ad
valorem taxes, $398 million in special obligation bonds payable from other specific revenue sources (Better
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Jacksonville Plan), $83 million in bonds payable from Enterprise Funds, and $73 million in commercial paper and
U.S. Government-Guaranteed Notes. The direct net debt per capita as of September 30, 2001, was $1,567.

All required principal and interest payments on outstanding debt were remitted timely and in full. The reserve
requirements and sinking fund remittances mandated by the bond covenants remain funded at the prescribed levels
at September 30, 2001.

On April 24, 2001 the City closed on the sale of $103,725,000 Local Government Sales Tax Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 2001. The proceeds were used to defease with an advance refunding $74,330,000 of previously
outstanding Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 and $29,650,000 of previously outstanding Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds, Series 1996. As a result of the refunding, the City realized an economic gain of $2,700,645 or 2.60% as
a percentage of bonds refunded. The present value savings were used to lower future debt service.

On July 3, 2001, the City closed on the sale of $42,485,000 in Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2001A. The proceeds were used to defease with a current refunding $43,090,000 of previously outstanding Excise
Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B (AMT). As a result of the refunding, the City realized an economic gain of
$1,728,928 or 4.01% as a percentage of bonds refunded. The present value savings were used to lower future debt
service.

The City issued the first bond issues in connection with the $2.2 billion Better Jacksonville Plan. On June 5th,
the City closed on $218,430,000 Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001. The issuance
provided net proceeds of $200,000,000 to fund the initial costs of $750 million in roadway improvements, $525
million in new public facilities, $60 million in targeted economic development and $165 million in
environment/quality of life projects. The new public facilities to be built are a new main library, courthouse, arena
and baseball stadium. This bond will be repaid by a recently enacted half-cent increase in the sales tax.

In addition, the City closed on June 5th on $179,280,000 Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2001. The
issuance provided net proceeds of $140,000,000 to fund the initial costs of $750 million in roadway improvements.
In addition, $15,866,500 was provided to defease $15,000,0000 in advance refunding of the State of Florida ,
Series 1992 issued on behalf of the Jacksonville Transportation Authority. As a result of the refunding, an
economic gain was realized of $790,869 or 5.27% as a percentage of bonds refunded. An existing half-cent sales
tax and constitutional gas tax will repay these bonds.

The City anticipates future debt activity to continue funding the Better Jacksonville Plan, refinancing various
bonds and additional needs for drainage and park improvements. In addition, the City has the opportunity to
refinance several bond issues. These bonds will be refunded when the net value savings targets are met.

Cash Management. The City has a detailed written statement of investment policy which it follows. The
investment goal of the City is to invest public funds in a manner which will earn a competitive yield on its
portfolio, consistent with its primary function of safeguarding public assets by minimizing credit and market risks.
Safety of principal is regarded as the foremost objective of the investment program. Maintaining sufficient
liquidity is also an important investment objective. In keeping with this policy, at September 30, 2001, of the $3.1
billion of cash and investments, $2.9 billion are categorized under GASB Statement No. 3,Deposits with Financial
Institutions, Investments, and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, as "Category 1," or the most secured custodial
relationship. The remaining $191.4 million, representing U.S. Government and Agency Securities and Repurchase
Agreements held by a counterparty or its trust department not in the City's name, are categorized as "Category 3."
These investments are stated at fair value. The City's investment policies are periodically reviewed for
classification under the lowest risk category. The City's investment portfolio contains no derivative securities,
floating rate securities, collateralized mortgage obligations or reverse repurchase agreements. Cash, investments,
and the City's collateralizing process are further explained in Note 3 of the Notes to Financial Statements.
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All of the City's deposits and the deposits of certain of the City's component units are held in qualified public
depositories, pursuant to State of Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act ("the
Act"), and are covered by federal depository insurance, and, for the amount in excess of such federal depository
insurance, by the Act. Cash is pooled, except for that held by revenue bond trustees, fiscal and escrow agents, and
certain debt service and trust and agency funds, for maximum investing efficiency. Cash temporarily idle during
the year is aggregated and invested in certificates of deposit, money market instruments, obligations of the U.S.
Government, and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Government securities for all funds except the
City's pension trust funds, which are administered separately outside the City's pooled cash operations. Assets
of the City's pension plans are maintained in separate investment pools, and investment management responsibility
rests with the two pension Boards of Trustees.

Earnings on investments, other than those held by the City's pension funds, totaled $40.9 million during the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2001. From this total, $33.1 million was derived from a City-administered, commingled
investment pool which generated a total weighted average yield of 4.923% on an average daily invested balance
of $673.2 million. The remaining $7.8 million in earnings was derived from a variety of segregated investments
and investment programs primarily linked to the investment of bond proceeds.

The City has a short-term investment horizon to minimize the level of market risk. At September 30, 2001, the
general investment portfolio of government securities carried a weighted-average number of days to maturity of
277 days and a weighted average yield of 6.004%.

Risk Management. The City administers a comprehensive risk management and loss-control program, the primary
objectives of which are to (1) identify potential exposures to loss, (2) evaluate the frequency and severity of losses,
(3) reduce or eliminate risks or losses through established procedures and practices, and (4) determine the most
efficient use of financial resources to satisfy losses.

The City's risk management policy is to rely primarily on the concept of self-insurance, supplemented by excess
insurance coverage, when dealing with its various loss exposures, including workers' compensation, automobile
liability, and general liability. Participants in the risk management pool include the City and independent agencies
electing to be included. The City funds its risk retention losses dollar-for-dollar on an actuarially computed basis.

Unlike commercial insurance, establishment of a self-insurance fund, accounted for by the participant, does not
result in the pure transfer of risk. The program’s self-insured liability remains among and between the participants
in varying degrees of risk sharing. State sovereign immunity statutes limit the liability to the participants for
certain general liability risk exposures to $100,000 per individual and $200,000 per occurrence. There isa $1
million retention for workers' compensation and no excess insurance for automobile liability and general liability.
Various cost containment measures, such as managed care, are utilized by the workers' compensation self-
insurance program in order to appropriately minimize medical claim costs.

Commercial insurance has been purchased for other risk exposures, including aviation, marine, property, fidelity
bonding and employee benefits (medical, disability, dental, vision, prescription drug, and life).

General Fixed Assets. The general fixed assets of the City are those fixed assets used in the performance of
general governmental functions and exclude the fixed assets of enterprise and internal service funds. In addition,
they do not include infrastructure (roads, bridges, sidewalks, gutters and drainage, etc.). As of September 30,
2001, the original cost of general fixed assets of the City was $633.6 million, which is considerably less than their
replacement cost. This amount represents the valuation of general fixed assets in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards and the City's capitalization policy as described in Note 6 of the Notes to Financial
Statements.
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General Information

Discussion of Controls. Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements, in conformity with
generally accepted governmental accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation
of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgements by management.

Accounting System. The City's accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined
as an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The types of funds to be used
are determined by generally accepted governmental accounting principles and the number of individual funds
established is determined by sound financial administration and statutory and ordinance requirements of the
Council.

The City's records are maintained on a modified accrual basis for all Governmental Fund Types. Accordingly,
revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. Expenditures, other than
interest on long-term debt and compensated absences, are recorded as fund liabilities when incurred. The accrual
basis of accounting is utilized by all Proprietary Fund Types. Fiduciary Fund Types include expendable trust, non-
expendable trusts, pension trust, and agency funds. The measurement focus of the expendable trust funds is the
same as for governmental funds. The measurement focus of the pension trust funds and non-expendable trust
funds are similar to proprietary funds. Agency funds are purely custodial and thus do not involve measurement
of results of operations.

Budget System. Detailed provisions regulating the City's budget, tax levies, and appropriations are set in the Laws
of Florida, in the City Charter, and in the City's Ordinance Code. The Mayor is required to submit his
appropriations budget, called "The Mayor's Proposed Budget," to Council by the second Tuesday in July of each
year. The Mayor's Proposed Budget is to comply with state and local legal requirements for a balanced financial
plan of operation for the government which coincides with and is limited to the City's fiscal year. As a financial
plan, the Mayor's Proposed Budget identifies revenues and other financial resources which are anticipated to be
available for appropriations, makes recommendations for appropriations, expenditures and uses of financial
resources, and otherwise presents concise policy direction and guidance for the continuing financial operation of
the City. At the beginning of each new fiscal year the Council adopts a balanced annual budget in the form of an
ordinance which contains estimated revenues and other financing sources, appropriations, authorizations of full
time positions and temporary employee hours, and any amendments to the Ordinance Code which relate to the
Annual Budget.

The Annual Budget includes the activities of the General Fund, certain individual Special Revenue Funds, the
Proprietary Fund Types, and certain Fiduciary Fund Types. Project-length or program financial plans, which may
not coincide with the City's fiscal year, or which may exceed a single annual period are adopted by separate
ordinance for individual Capital Project Funds and other individual Special Revenue Funds. Budgets are not
formally adopted for individual Debt Service Funds, since internal spending controls are set by compliance with
bond covenant requirements. Also not budgeted are certain Expendable Trust Funds, Nonexpendable Trust Funds
and Pension Trust Fund accounts, where existing legal requirements obviate the need for formal budgets, or the
City has elected to use internal spending controls established by management instead of formally-adopted budgets.

The City maintains budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed
appropriations) at the fund level. Lower levels within each individual fund are accounted for and reported
internally. Such lower levels are referred to as objects (personnel services, supplies, capital outlay, etc.) within
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each division. Estimated expenditure amounts must be encumbered prior to release of purchase orders to vendors
and finalization of other contracts. Encumbrances which would exceed their available object level appropriation
are not approved or recorded until either the Mayor and/or City Council authorizes additional funding or transfers.
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance and are reappropriated as part
of the following year's annual budget. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year unless
carried forward by ordinance.

Independent Audit. The City Charter, Section 5.11, and Chapter 166.241 Florida Statutes, require the City's
financial statements to be audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants selected by the City
Council. This requirement has been complied with, and the report of the independent auditors, rendered by Ernst
& Young LLP, is included in the financial section of this report. The audit was conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards set forth by the Comptroller General
of the United States. The financial statements of certain component units were audited by other auditors as
described in the Ernst & Young LLP audit opinion.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is also required to undergo an annual audit in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984; U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments and Non-profit Organizations, and the Florida Single Audit Act.
As a part of the City's Single Audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal control, including that
portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs. The information related to the Single Audit,
including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, reports of the independent
auditors on internal control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and findings and questioned
costs, is in a report to be issued separately at a later date.

Reporting Achievements. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Jacksonville for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation
of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such
comprehensive annual financial reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Jacksonville has received this
Certificate for twenty-one consecutive years (fiscal years 1980 through 2000). We believe our current report

continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the
GFOA.

Use of the Report and Acknowledgments. The Report represents the thirty-third (1969 - 2001) Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report of the City audited by a nationally recognized firm of certified public accountants, since
the City of Jacksonville and Duval County Governments were consolidated on October 1, 1968. Approximately
350 copies of this report will be distributed. In addition to citizens of the community, the recipients will include
city, state, and federal officials; university students; schools; libraries; newspapers; investment banking firms;
banks and rating agencies.

The Report will be made available to any person or organization requesting it. The extensive effort of preparation
and distribution of this report fulfills the Department of Administration and Finance's goal of full disclosure of
the City's finances. We are committed to issuing reports that are informative and meet the highest standards of
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governmental accounting and financial reporting. Reports that meet these standards provide the reader with an
opportunity to make more informed judgements about the government's financial position and results of
operations.

The 2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report represents our commitment to this goal and could not have
been prepared without the efficient and dedicated efforts of the entire staff of the Department of Administration
and Finance - Accounting Division and Treasury Division, who devoted many hours in compiling and assembling
the report. We also wish to express our appreciation to all other City personnel who have contributed to its
preparation. In addition, we thank the City's independent auditors, Ernst & Young LLP and the Office of the
Council Auditor for their efforts and professional conduct throughout the audit engagement.

Special acknowledgment is due Mayor John Delaney, Council President Matt Carlucci, and Councilperson Reggie
Fullwood, Finance Committee Chairman, and other members of the City Council, for their strong and effective
leadership and continued support in the coordination and planning of the financial affairs of the City of
Jacksonville in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

A

Calvin C. Ray ‘ Kevin G. Stork, CPA, CGFM
Director, Department of City Comptroller -
Administration and Finance Chief, Accounting Division
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Suite 1800 www.ey.com
1 Independent Drive
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Jacksonville, Florida

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the City of Jacksonville,
Florida (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2001, as listed in the table of contents.
These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit.
We did not audit the financial statements of the following component units, which statements reflect total
assets and total revenues as of September 30, 2001 and for the year then ended of the respective fund type

as follows:
Total Total Type of
Assets Revenues Component Unit
(in thousands)
JEA $5,821,894 $983,159 Proprietary and
Similar Fund Types
Jacksonville Port Authority 829,063 64,624 Proprietary and
Similar Fund Types
Police and Fire Pension Trust Fund 780,088 (29,239)  Trust and Agency
Fund Types

Jacksonville Economic Development
Company, Inc. 2,494 191 Governmental and
Similar Fund Types

Downtown Vision, Inc. 1,299 845 Governmental and
Similar Fund Types

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and
our opinion on the general-purpose financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
the aforementioned component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the general-purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general-
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purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The schedules of employer contributions and funding progress listed under required supplemental
information in the table of contents are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements but
are supplemental information required by the Government Accounting Standards Board. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the supplemental information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general-purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City as of
September 30, 2001, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and
nonexpendable trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

As disclosed in Note 1.Y. to the general purpose financial statements, effective October 1, 2000, the City
changed its accounting policy related to the recognition of capital contributions to comply with the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 8,
2002 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and
schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the general purpose financial statements of the City. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements
taken as a whole.

The information presented in the introductory and statistical sections is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the City. Such
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

St + MLL?

February 8, 2002

0203-0286434
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COMBINED STATEMENTS



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND
COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments.................cc.ccoveiiiininiininn..
Cash and equivalents..............cooeeeeiiiniiiiiineeeeeeen
INVESEMENES. .. uivniiii e
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.................cc.coeeeiinnien.
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):

Due from component units.......
Due from primary government.
Due from independent agencies and other governments.............

Advances to other funds.............coooviviiiiii
J NS 1170 ) o (3PP
Prepaid expenditures, prepaid expenses, and other assets...........
Restricted assets:
Cash and equivalents.............c...oeiiiiiniiii
INVESEMENES. ...vtetieiiii e eees
Sinking fund cash and investments...............ccocovuveniiennans
Construction fund cash and investments

Fixed assets and infrastructure, net...............cccoeveneieneenennnnnn.
Electric plant in SEIVICe.........vvuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeii e eeieenaes
Buildings and improvements.....................
Improvements other than buildings
VEhiCIeS. ...ooniiniiiii e
Furniture and eqUIpmMent..............oeuvvvereiienieneiiiieenreenennenns
Construction WOIK in ProCESS. ........cc.ueeunvirureinieeiaerineennnenn.
Less accumulated depreciation
Deferred landfill closure and postclosure care costs.................
Unamortized debt iSSUANCE COSLS.......c.oevnirnirnieniiiniiiniininnanes
Unamortized Service rights...............ccooveueivieiiiininiinniainannn.
Costs to be recovered from future revenues..............c..c..c.eene
Real estate under development
Other deferred charges............c.viviuiiiiiiiiiriie e
OTHER DEBITS:

Amount available for retirement of

general long-term obligations................cceviiiniiiieiinninnnes
Amount to be provided for retirement of

general long-term obligations.............c..cooveviiiiiiiiiiiinennn..

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS...........ccccevuveennnnn.

PROPRIETARY
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL INTERNAL

GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ENTERPRISE  SERVICE
$41,123  $ 76,455 $59183  $ 467,439 § 48,707 $ 142,157
- 3,785 30,895 871 - -

28 - - - - -
3,392 71 - - 3,637 230

50 17,185 - - - -

2,680 - - - - 57
5,055 279 - - - 3,014

- 584 - - - .

29,108 31,649 - 2,995 358 2,092

- - - - - 13,083

1,325 - - - 3 1,388

- - - - 210 -

- - - - 892 -

- - - - 12,327 -

- - - - 115 -

. - - - 30,334 58

- - - - 223,305 3,886

- - - - 88,328 5,283

- - - - 16,006 124,449

- . - - 14,728 12
. . - - (85,846) (89,790)

- - - - 36,898 -

- - - - 578 -
$82,761  $ 130,008 $90,078  $471,305 $ 390,580 $ 205,919



FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS TOTALS COMPONENT UNITS TOTAL
TRUST GENERAL GENERAL (Memorandum only) GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY (Memorandum only)
AND FIXED LONG-TERM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND SIMILAR AND SIMILAR REPORTING ENTITY
AGENCY ASSETS OBLIGATIONS 2001 2000 FUND TYPES FUND TYPES 2001

$ 2,245,163 $ - $ - $ 3,080,227 $ 2,982,392 $ 13,103 $ - $ 3,093,330
- - - - - 24,131 95,588 119,719

. - B, - - - 44,107 44,107

- - - 35,551 6,108 - - 35,551

- - - 28 28 - - 28

200 - - 7,530 5,258 1,189 148,606 157,325

3,176 - - 3,176 3,940 - - 3,176

- - - 17,235 20,611 7,807 - 25,042

- - - - - - 5,462 5,462

- - - 2,737 289 - - 2,737

224 - - 8,572 8,041 473 500 9,545

- - - 584 584 - - 584

- - - - - - 400 400

- - - 66,202 75,172 15,219 1,094 82,515

- - - 13,083 13,551 - 233 13,316

- - - 2,716 2,660 - 108,581 111,297

- - - 210 219 3 35,958 36,171

- - - - - 153,255 487,134 640,389

- - - - - - 407,399 407,399

- - - 892 697 - - 892

- - - 12,327 11,333 - - 12,327

- - - 115 58 - 19,060 19,175

24 113,183 - 143,599 123,077 - 152,339 295,938

- - - - - 117,943 - 117,943

- - - - - - 4,290,665 4,290,665

155 466,939 - 694,285 690,436 - 277,168 971,453

97 - - 93,708 92,952 - 392,178 485,886

- - - - - - 62,440 62,440

564 53,477 - 194,496 184,241 - 173,638 368,134

- - - 14,740 788 - 1,670,029 1,684,769
(353) - - (175,989) (161,307) - (1,997,153) (2,173,142)

- - - 36,898 38,421 - - 36,898

- - - - - - 3,823 3,823

- - - - - - 3,437 3,437

- - - - - - 498,514 498,514

- - - - - 562 - 562

- - - 578 617 - - 578

- - 88,384 88,384 47,370 - - 88,384

- - 1,127,220 1,127,220 803,306 12,000 - 1,139,220

$ 2,249,250 $ 633,599 $ 1,215,604 $ 5,469,104 $ 4,950,842 $ 345,685 $ 6,881,200 $ 12,695,989

(continued)

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND
COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

PROPRIETARY
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL INTERNAL

GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ENTERPRISE SERVICE

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. .. $ 9,427 $ 23,541 $ - $ 12,055 $ 5694 $ 5219
Contracts payable............coocuviiiiiiiiiiiiii - - - 2,629 1,249 -
Due to other funds...........ccoveuiiiiiiiiiin 26 1,815 - 1,173 - -
Due to component units... - - - - - -
Due to primary government - - - - - -
Due to independent agencies and other governments.................... 7,560 - - - 3 16
Due to individuals...........ccoieiiiiiiiiiiii - - - - - -
Capitalized lease obligations, current portion...................coocounee. - - - - - 539
Estimated liability for self-insured 10sses..............ccoeeveunenneennee. - - - - - 56,790
Accrued compensated absences due within one year.................... - - - - 76 354
Matured bonds and interest payable.............ccceeueieviniiiniinnennnen. - - 39 - - -
DEPOSILS.....vvnivniiiiiiiiiiii e - 428 - - 117 -
Deferred revenue 7,647 2,274 - - 80 -
Payable from restricted assets:
Deposits held for construction and events.................ccocouenneen. - - - - 1,007 -
Accrued interest payable............o.ovuiniineiiiee e - - - - 2,080 -
Current portion of long-term obligations..............cccceceeeuncans - - - - 3,315 -
Construction contracts, retainage and accounts payable............. - - - - - -
Renewal and replacement reserve - - - - - -
Customers' deposits - - - - - -
(01113 SR PR - - - - - -
Deposits held in €SCroW..........oeuiiiiiiiiiiiiii i - - - - - -
Advances from other funds...............cooviiiiiiiiiii - - - 13,083 - -
Liability for landfill closure and postclosure care........................ - - - - 21,218 -
Accrued compensated abSENCeS.........eueeuviniuninieenieeieiaienennes - - - - 559 2,617
Commercial PAPET NOLES. .. c..euiuniniiniiiirieieerienreeaaeneeaenennes - - - - - -
General obligation bonds............ccc.ovvviiiiiiiiiiiiei e - - - - - -
Special obligation bonds - - - - - -
Special obligation bonds -BJP - - - - - -
Revenue bonds............ovviiiiiiiiiiii - - - - 76,511 -
Long-term debt and other long-term obligations...... - - - - - -
Capitalized lease obligations, less current portion - - - - - 1,332
Deferred capital contributions...............cccoeiiiiiiiiiininnnnn, - - - - - -
Deferred credits and other..............ooevviiiiiiiiniiiiiiiieiineeeenes - - - 742 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES........cccoctuiiiimiiiiiiniiiiineinnnnn $ 24,660 $ 28,058 $ 39 $ 29,682 $ 111,909 $ 66,867




FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS TOTALS COMPONENT UNITS TOTAL
TRUST GENERAL GENERAL (Memorandum only) GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY (Memorandum only)
AND FIXED LONG-TERM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND SIMILAR AND SIMILAR REPORTING ENTITY
AGENCY ASSETS OBLIGATIONS 2001 2000 FUND TYPES FUND TYPES 2001
$ 4,645 $ - $ - $ 60,581 40,247 6,331 $ 95259 $ 162,171
36 - - 3,914 1,425 - - 3,914
5,558 - - 8,572 8,041 500 473 9,545
- - 400 400 800 - - 400
- - - - - 584 - 584
9,936 - - 17,515 23,538 55 962 18,532
54,230 - - 54,230 30,281 - - 54,230
- - - 539 332 - 698 1,237
- - - 56,790 56,147 - 2,516 59,306
8 - - 438 409 - - 438
- - - 39 39 - - 39
- - - 545 255 - - 545
- - - 10,001 7,021 2,217 716 12,934
- - - 1,007 755 - - 1,007
- - - 2,080 835 - 87,619 89,699
- - - 3,315 2,115 - 96,130 99,445
- - - - - - 98,876 98,876
- - - - - - 90,000 90,000
- - - - - - 18,233 18,233
- - - - - - 745 745
13,557 - - 13,557 18,011 - - 13,557
- - - 13,083 13,551 - 233 13,316
- - - 21,218 21,752 - - 21,218
58 - 54,264 57,498 56,033 - - 57,498
- - 60,000 60,000 60,000 - - 60,000
- - 1,195 1,195 1,755 - - 1,195
- - 689,010 689,010 718,300 - - 689,010
- - 397,710 397,710 - - - 397,710
- - - 76,511 79,564 - 223,217 299,728
- - 13,025 13,025 16,565 12,000 3,691,015 3,716,040
- - - 1,332 1,016 - 11,344 12,676
- - - - - - 16,500 16,500
- - - 742 689 - 146,020 146,762
$ 88,028 $ - $ 1,215,604 $ 1,564,847 $ 1,159,476 $ 21,687 $ 4,580,556 $ 6,167,090
(continued)

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND
COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands; continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

PROPRIETARY
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL INTERNAL

GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ENTERPRISE SERVICE

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS:

Investment in general fixed assets...............cooeuviiiiiiiiiiiiniiiinn, $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Contributed capital............c.oeiviiiiiiiniiiii e - - - - 218,534 11,131
Retained earnings:
UNIESEIVEA. ..o vttt e eas - - - - 60,137 127,921
Fund balances:
Reserved for enCUmMbBIANCES. .......vvvuvieieiiieeieeeieieeeeieieenenenens 14,399 25,702 - 253,821 - -
Reserved for imprest cash and cash in escrow...........c............ 329 3,785 30,856 871 - -
Reserved for mortgages receivable..............ceeveiveniiniiniininnns 50 17,185 - - - -
Reserved for inventories and prepaids.............cccoeevvvevenneiinnes 1,325 - - - - -
Reserved for employees' retirement benefits.......................... - - - - - -
Reserved for debt SEIVICE.......c.ueuunivniiniiiiiniiiiieiiccieanen, - - 57,528 - - -
Unreserved:
Designated for capital Projects...........c.ceeuvuverneereeneeennnnnn. 6,264 - - 187,274 - -
Designated for subsequent years' budget...............c..ceenenne. - 13,242 - - - -
Designated for budget stabilization................oeuveuvinienennns 3,324 - - - - -
Designated for self-insurance...............oceeuevvviinninnennnnnnns - - - - - -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments.............. 112 191 1,655 1,189 - -
Designated for next year's budget appropriation.................. 31,958 - - - - -
Undesignated (defiCit).........cc.evviiiiieniiiiiiiiieieieceeneans 340 41,845 - (1,532) - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS.......c..ccccvviininnnens 58,101 101,950 90,039 441,623 278,671 139,052
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS....... $ 82,761 $ 130,008 $ 90,078 $ 471,305 $ 390,580 $ 205,919
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FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS TOTALS COMPONENT UNITS TOTAL
TRUST GENERAL GENERAL (Memorandum only) GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY (Memorandum only)
AND FIXED LONG-TERM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND SIMILAR AND SIMILAR REPORTING ENTITY
AGENCY ASSETS OBLIGATIONS 2001 2000 FUND TYPES FUND TYPES 2001

$ - $ 633,599 $ - $ 633,599 $ 614,919 $ 117,882 - $ 751,481

- - - 229,665 237,997 - 847,772 1,077,437

- - - 188,058 174,085 - 1,452,872 1,640,930

- - - 293,922 98,797 576 - 294,498

- - - 35,841 6,399 - - 35,841

- - - 17,235 20,611 6590 - 23,825

- - - 1,326 1,287 - - 1,325

2,154,543 - - 2,154,543 2,344,614 - - 2,154,543

- - - 57,528 47,160 - - 57,528

- - - 193,538 117,239 - - 193,538

- - - 13,242 26,978 - - 13,242

- - - 3,324 17,205 - - 3,324

- - - - - 200 - 200

17 - - 3,164 1,851 33 - 3,197

- - - 31,958 34,042 - - 31,958

6,662 - - 47,315 48,182 198,717 - 246,032

2,161,222 633,599 - 3,904,257 3,791,366 323,998 2,300,644 6,528,899

$ 2,249,250 $ 633,599 $ 1,215,604 $ 5,469,104 $ 4,950,842 $ 345,685 $ 6,881,200 $ 12,695,989

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES, EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS, AND SIMILAR DISCRETELY

PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS ( in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
REVENUE:
XS ettt ettt e e $ 368,333 $ 138,920 $ - $ -
Licenses and Permits...........covuveveieenineriieneniiiinineieeeeanenns 14,806 - - -
Intergovernmental............o.oeiviiiiiiii e 115,561 80,454 - 14,038
Charges fOr SEIVICES. ....uuvuiuiriiniteiieiein et eeie e eeneieeneaenens 50,876 17,518 - -
Fines and forfeitures............ooovuiuvieiiinininniii e eens 8,069 2,346 - -
Payment in lieu Of taXes........cuveuenienirieiniiiiiiiiii e 3,344 - - -
6013 () 6,912 3,571 5,185 13,828
(01 11 PPt 7,146 5,849 2,858 5,508
Total REVENUE. .....ouiiit i e ee e s 575,047 248,658 8,043 33,374
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General GOVEINMENL. .........vuiveetirinirenneeentiiteieieaeeeneenenanans 94,267 5,965 - -
HUman SEIVICES. ... v.iuuiuiniininiieiieie e e eenes 60,623 29,978 - -
Public safety.......coouiuiiiii e 290,280 21,452 - -
Culture and reCreation..............cveveuineieienieineeiieneneeeaeaanens 39,536 4,482 - -
TranSPOItAtION. . .euvuetiietieeie et ee et eeaeeteeeaeraeneaeenenaneas 33,684 77,081 - -
Economic enVironment............veuveueuerrenerneninnineenenenaenenenens 6,481 50,930 - -
Physical nVIrONMENt. .........viviriririiererieieeieeaeeeieearanananns 11,890 9,456 - -
Capital outlay........ocuviiiniiiiiii e - - - 136,910
Debt service:
Principal......couiuiniii i e - - 32,730 -
Interest on fiscal Charges........c.coeuviviniiiiiiiiririeienenes - - 40,940 -
Total EXPenditures.......ocvuiinininiiiiieieie e rreenee e eaenanns 536,761 199,344 73,670 136,910
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES........ 38,286 49,314 (65,627) (103,536)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from sale of notes and bonds
and issuance of other debt obligations.............c..ccccveuiuvinennanen. - - 32116 340,871
Proceeds from SIB 1oan...........cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiie - - - -
Operating transfers in...........c.oooiiiiiiiii i 650 17,859 75,947 62,137
Operating transfers OUt..............covvieiniiiieieiieeeereereaeeennss (124,273) (48,033) - (1,456)
Transfers out to state for debt service..............cocveveiiniieinnnnnn. - - - -
Transfers - In from component Units............c..coeeveiiiveniniinenan.. 73,638 - - 43
Transfers - Out to cOMpoONent UNitS............coeueueuveieniienenenenennn. (6,593) (17,441) - (46,490)
Transfers - In from primary government..........c.c.coeoeuiiininnnnn. - - - -
Transfers - Out to primary gOVernment.............coevevevenerenenenne. - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (USeS).........ccuvuiiineniiniinininennnnenns. (56,578) (47,615) 108,063 355,105
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES.......... (18,292) 1,699 42,436 251,569
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR..........occevviiniinennne. 76,355 144,743 47,603 145,562
Change in reserve for inventory of supplies............ccoccvvuvenvennennns 38 - - -
Residual equity transfer in (OUL)...........coveuveniiiiiniiniinieinninennns - (44,492) - 44,492
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR......ccccciiiiiininiinininananacannnns $ 58,101 $ 101,950 $ 90,039 $ 441,623
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FIDUCIARY TOTALS TOTALS

FUND TYPE (Memorandum only) (Memorandum only)
EXPENDABLE PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT REPORTING ENTITY
TRUST 2001 2000 UNITS 2001
$ - $ 507,253 $ 464,004 $ 58,286 $ 565,539
- 14,806 13,970 - 14,806
241 210,294 202,150 12,243 222,537
- 68,394 62,302 - 68,394
1 10,416 9,938 - 10,416
- 3,344 3,583 - 3,344
93 29,589 29,960 12,860 42 449
2,261 23,622 26,841 985 24,607
2,596 867,718 812,748 84,374 952,092
529 100,761 92,759 2,510 103,271
132 90,733 81,538 - 90,733
1,527 313,259 299,188 - 313,259
475 44 493 41,006 - 44 493
- 110,765 119,741 5,396 116,161
85 57,496 43,423 8,414 65,910
59 21,405 15,413 - 21,405
- 136,910 75,548 37,282 174,192
- 32,730 28,200 - 32,730
- 40,940 42,251 - 40,940
2,807 949,492 839,067 53,602 1,003,094
211) (81,774) (26,319) 30,772 (51,002)
- 372,987 44,939 - 372,987
- - - 12,000 12,000
1486 158,079 129,962 - 158,079
(92) (173,854) (145,728) (3,001) (176,855)
- - - (66,072) (66,072)
- 73,681 71,434 - 73,681
- (70,524) (14,903) - (70,524)
- - - 43,385 43,385
- - - 43) (43)
1,394 360,369 85,704 (13,731) 346,638
1,183 278,595 59,385 17,041 295,636
5,178 419,441 359,979 190,575 610,016
- 38 77 - 38
- - - (1,500) (1,500)
$ 6,361 $ 698,074 $ 419,441 $ 206,116 $ 904,190

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

GENERAL FUND
VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE:

TAXES. eeeueeneineeineeie et eete et e e e raeeneeaeraaanns $ 368,333 $ - $ 368,333 $ 361,731 $ 6,602

Licenses and permits.... 14,806 - 14,806 13,845 961

Intergovernmental.............c.ceeuveninnenn.. e 115,561 - 115,561 118,871 (3,310)

Charges for SErViCes..........cveuuieneiniiniinennen. 50,876 - 50,876 49,183 1,693

Fines and forfeitures...............cocovviviviieeninennns 8,069 - 8,069 7,796 273

Payment in lieu of taxes..............coceevneinneennnn. 3,344 - 3,344 3,648 (304)

INEETESE. o eeneieeiiee e e e e e e 6,912 - 6,912 8,124 (1,212)

(011115 S PP ORIt 7,146 - 7,146 7,163 (17)
Total REVENUE. ......cvviviiiieiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeaans 575,047 - 575,047 570,361 4,686
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General government 94,267 3,506 97,773 127,527 29,754

Human SErVIiCeS........oovvivieiniiineiniiriiienenennns 60,623 1,550 62,173 63,997 1,824

Public safety........coceuviiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 290,280 3,233 293,513 295,012 1,499

Culture and recreation.................coeevverenennnn. 39,536 1,875 41,411 43,486 2,075

Transportation.............ceueuneriiiineineinennennnes 33,684 984 34,668 34,877 209

Economic environment.................cccuevueenennennn. 6,481 2,225 8,706 9,155 449

Physical environment..............coocevuviinvennnnnnne. 11,890 1,026 12,916 13,454 538
Total Expenditures and Encumbrances................... 536,761 14,399 551,160 587,508 36,348
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND

ENCUMBRANCES.......c.ccveitiiiniinieneencennnns 38,286 (14,399) 23,887 (17,147) 41,034
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in...............ccocceveeiinennnen. 650 - 650 585 65

Operating transfers out...............covevuveniernnnnnns (124,273) - (124,273) (122,788) (1,485)

Transfers - In from component units.................. 73,638 - 73,638 73,730 (92)

Transfers - Out to component units................... (6,593) - (6,593) (6,307) (286)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).................... (56,578) - (56,578) (54,780) (1,798)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES,

AND OTHER USES........ccocoviiiiiiiiiiiiieineann (18,292) (14,399) (32,691) (71,927) 39,236
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION...................... - - - 71,927 (71,927)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES,

AND OTHER USES........cccoccivniiirniencennennnns ($ 18,292) ($ 14,399) ($ 32,691) $ - ($ 32,691)
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BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

$ 100,424 $ - $ 100,424 $97,075 $ 3,349
38,537 - 38,537 42,919 (4,382)
15,497 - 15,497 15,065 432
2,219 - 2,219 2,088 131
2,167 - 2,167 755 1,412
8,770 - 8,770 4,701 4,069
167,614 - 167,614 162,603 5,011
3,396 134 3,530 6,467 2,937
20,555 2,923 23,478 22,845 (633)
10,221 331 10,552 11,953 1,401
651 5 656 777 121
77,081 1,653 78,734 91,794 13,060
24,989 1,056 26,045 32,279 6,234
3,900 678 4,578 8,216 3,638
140,793 6,780 147,573 174,331 26,758
26,821 (6,780) 20,041 (11,728) 31,769
14,148 - 14,148 14,148 -
(17,890) - (17,890) (18,893) 1003
(17,128) - (17,128) (23,230) 6,102
(20,870) - (20,870) (27,975) 7,105
5,951 (6,780) (829) (39,703) 38,874

. ) - 39,703 (39,703)

$ 5,951 ($ 6,780) ($ 829) $ - ($ 829)

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS, AND SIMILAR

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
INTERNAL NONEXPENDABLE
ENTERPRISE SERVICE TRUST
OPERATING REVENUE:
Operating revenue and charges for SErvices...........ooevviiiiiiiiiininiiinnn e, $52,139 $ 122,246 $ -
Charges for services for independent authorities..............ccovvvviiiiiininini... - 14,885 -
Earnings On iNVESMENES. .........ueuueueeneneerininieinerintietieiereaiienererereeaess - - 16
L0175 O N - 89 -
Total Operating REVENUE. .........c.ueuveuiiiinitiiiiiiiiii e 52,139 137,220 16
OPERATING EXPENSES:
FUBL. .ot e e - - -
Purchased POWET........cuiuinieiii i - - -
Operations and MAINENANCE. ... .......oeviuiiiininiiiiiiitiii et eeaas - - -
General and adminiStrative. .. ......o.o.veeiiiniiiiiiiiiii e - - -
PersOnal SEIVICES. ...cueun ettt ettt 15,414 20,575 -
Supplies and mMaterials. ............oeuviieeiiiiiiiii 2,573 11,199 -
(0018 ) BT 4 (ol T 184 4,678 -
Interdepartmental Charges............cooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 885 - -
Other services and Charges.............veveviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 55,162 21,039 -
Bad debts, Net Of TECOVETIES. ..uuuiviriiniieiiiii i 115 - -
Casualty and INSUTANCE. ........oeuiuiriteeet et eit et ee e aeaees - - -
Taxes aNd LCEMSES. . .uvuinininitittiit ettt - - -
Depreciation and amOrtiZation. ...........c.ueeuiuiienirniiiiniiniiiiiiieeeeans 8,621 17,493 -
COUTE TEPOTLET SEIVICES. . eutvuerenetneneeneneniantneeenttentttaettreetitiereriareaaneaees - 25 -
Claims ANA L0SSES. ... .ueuvnitiniuiieenit ettt iet ettt - 13,990 -
Insurance premiums and participant dividends................oooviviiiiiiiiiini, - 44,224 -
(01513 - - 8
Total Operating EXPEnSes. .. .. c.c.uvuinieninieiiiiiiiiiiieiie e 82,954 133,223 8
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)...ccccuttitniurenircaseresensasessacesessassssssasssssssscases (30,815) 3,997 8
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
INLEIESt TEVEIUE. ...etviene ittt e aes 3,576 7,720 -
INEEIESt EXPEISE. . .etue ettt s (3,790) - -
Public funding:
United States GOVEIMMENL...........o.vviuiiiiiiiiiiniiiiii e, - - -
State Of FIOTIda. .......vnininiiit e - - -
Other SUDSIAIES. ... .. evuenieeeet ettt - - -
OPErating GIANLS. ... c.uvuinieenienetin ettt ettt ettt a et e aans 665 - -
(4T 3,580 (1,476) -
Total Non-Operating Revenue (EXpenses)..........ccocvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinins 4,031 6,244 -
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND
OPERATING TRANSFERS. ..ottt (26,784) 10,241 8
Capital CONLIIDULIONS. .. .uvutitiieiiii e 6,269 57 -
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers iN..........cooeeuvieiiiiiiiiniii 34,872 6,195 -
Operating transfers OUL..........c.ovueuieieiuiiiiniiiiii e (3,203) (22,006) -
Transfers - In from primary gOVEIrnment.............cocoveuviinveniiiiuniniiniiinin, - - -
Transfers - Out to primary gOVEIMMENL. .. .....c.oeuvvniriurineriinineniuiirieanenenene - - -
Total Operating Transfers In (Out).........cocoeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 31,669 (15,811) -
NET INCOME (LOSS)..cctitniniiiuiiiuiiieiiierieiensriesasessrieseecssessssssessssassssass $ 11,154 ($ 5,513) $ 8
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(Memorandum only)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

2001 2000
$ 174,385 $ 171,366
14,885 -
16 19
89 352
189,375 171,737
35,989 34,746
13,772 13,893
4,862 4,206
885 586
76,201 76,597
115 139
26,114 22,513
25 -
13,990 327
44,224 37,722
8 8
216,185 190,737
(26,810) (19,000)
11,296 10,955
(3,790) (2,097)
665 914
2,104 4,387
10,275 14,159
(16,535) (4,841)
6,326 -
41,067 37,422
(25,209) (21,494)
15,858 15,928
$ 5,649 $ 11,087

See accompanying notes.

COMPONENT
UNITS

$ 1,015,380

283
46,358

1,062,021

313,091
91,396
238,653
18,773
25912
4,630

52,240

1,024
17,785
198,213

961,717
100,304
59,269
(117,104)
3,784
3,873
206
17,264
(32,708)

67,596

81,683

3,000
27,139
(73,638)
(43,499)

$ 105,780

(continued)
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TOTALS
(Memorandum only)

REPORTING ENTITY
2001

$ 1,189,765
14,885

299

46,447
1,251,396

313,091
91,396
238,653
18,773
61,901
18,402
4,862
885
128,441
115
1,024
17,785
224,327
25
13,990
44,224
8
1,177,902

73,494

70,565
(120,894)

3,784
3,873
206
665
19,368

(22,433)

51,061
88,009

44,067
(25,209)

27,139
(73,638)
(27,641)

$ 111,429



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS, AND SIMILAR

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
INTERNAL NONEXPENDABLE
ENTERPRISE SERVICE TRUST

NET INCOME (LOSS)...cuutuiiuiiuiesenieresrsiersersssssnsscssssssssssssssssssssnssssosnssnses $11,154 ($ 5,513) $ 8
Add depreciation on contributed aSSEtS..........cceuveiiriiriirieieitieieereeeiieereeeanan 8,118 214 -
Increase (decrease) in retained €arniNgS.........c.eeuveeniniiineuneeinetieieereeneenaanenens 19,272 (5,299) 8
Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year............cocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 40,865 133,220 310
Retained Earnings, End of Year........c.oceiiiiiiiieniiiiiiicneiinceneenenensenencncensncnnns $ 60,137 $ 127,921 $ 318
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TOTALS
(Memorandum only)

ZOEIRIMARYJ}DXERNME%CEM
$ 5,649 $ 11,087
8,332 9,616
13,981 20,703
174,395 153,692
$ 188,376 $ 174,395

COMPONENT
UNITS

$ 105,780
33,712

139,492

1,313,380

$ 1,452,872

TOTALS

(Memorandum only)

REPORTING ENTITY

2001
$ 111,429
42,044
153,473
1,487,775

$ 1,641,248

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND
SIMILAR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS). ..t ttnttntieiei ettt ettt et e et et en e eneaneaaeens ($ 30,815) $ 3,997
Adjustments to reconcile operating income / loss to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amOTtiZAtION. .........c.ueuniuniiineitiiii et 8,621 17,493
Bad debt expense, net of TECOVETIES. ... ..uvvuiiuniiiiiii it 115 -
Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, Net..............oceeeuviniuiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiinanane.. - -
Other non-operating revenue/(EXPEINSES). .. ... ....vuuuiiriuniiniieineitiiiiei it 3,465 (1,476)
INterest 0N INVESIMENLS. ... ..euitenit ettt a e - -
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts and interest receivable, restricted.............cocovveeveiininnen... - -
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, net (1,221) 47
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds............ocouvevniineiniiiiiieiiie e - 823
Decrease (increase) in due from independent agencies and other governments................... 17 994
Decrease (inCrease) in iNVENLOTIES. . ... vuvutneninenteenen e etteereeeeeeeenaneneeenanenenenenenanes 1) 17)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other... (5) -
Decrease (increase) in deferred Charges. . .. .. ouuueiuneiuereueiei e eaeans 1,562 -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued eXPEnSes.........c..uveeuueernereneenneennenn. 1,100 423
Increase (decrease) in contracts payable..............veuuiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 735 -
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds...........coouuviiiiiniineiriiniii e (22) -
Increase (decrease) in due to independent agencies and other governments....................... - -
Increase (decrease) in current portion long-term liabilities..................coooiiiin, - -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities, restricted...........oveiiiiiiiiiii s - -
Increase (decrease) in deposits held for construction and events.................c.ccoeeiiiin. 252 -
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities and deferred revenue - -
Increase (decrease) in deferred TEVENUE. .........uvuuiiniineieieiieeie e s e e e et e e e enerieannns (110) -
Increase (decrease) in accrued landfill closure and postclosure care ..............ccoceeeueennenne. (534) -
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 3) 234
Increase (decrease) in liability for self-insured losses - 643
Contribution to primary gOVEIMIMENL. . .. ...cuuiutiuiiniineetitetieit et iieei et iteaeaeieaaanes - -
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS. ... ettt ettt e e et e e e eeans 13,971 19,164
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES............ccccevvennee. (16,844) 23,161
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating grants TECEIVEA. ... .....uiuuitiitiitiii ettt e e 665 -
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds..............ccoccoviiiiiiiiniiinn.. 34,872 6,195
Cash payments through operating transfers to other funds........................coo (3,203) (22,006)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.... $ 32,334 ($ 15,811)
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(Memorandum only)
NONEXPENDABLE PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT
TRUST 2001 2000 UNITS

$ 8 ($ 26,810) ($ 19,000) $ 100,304
- 26,114 22,513 198,213

- 115 139 -

- - - 35,774
- 1,989 4,387 (2,464)

(16) (16) (19) -

- - - 35,044
- (1,174) 938 (9,110)

- 823 9,702 -

- 1,011 1,785 -
- (18) 6 (2,903)
- () (3) (385)

- 1,562 1,310 -
(1) 1,522 1,048 (11,919)

- 735 178 -

- (22) (583) -

- - (1,839) -

- - 11) -

- - - 8,959

- 252 (415) -

- - - 1,181

- (110) 107 -

- (534) 2,219 -

- 231 (102) -

- 643 (9,433) 577
- - - (73,638)

(17) 33,118 31,927 179,329
(9) 6,308 12,927 279,633

- 665 914 7,862

- 41,067 37,422 30,139

- (25,209) (21,494) -

$ - $ 16,523 $ 16,842 $ 38,001

(continued)

See accompanying notes.
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TOTALS
(Memorandum only)
REPORTING ENTITY
2001

$ 73,494

224,327
115
35,774
(475)
(16)

35,044
(10,284)
823
1,011
(2,921)
(390)
1,562
(10,397)
735
(22)

8,959
252
1,181
(110)
(534)

231
1,220
(73,638)

212,447
285,941
8,627
71,206
(25,209)

$ 54,524



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND
SIMILAR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and €qUIPIMENL. ........c...euuertnerrnereneerieereenenerenereaeeanenns (3 22,032) ($ 32,513)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eqUIPMENL. ............ccuuuiiiiiiiiniriiiinineinn, 1,310 11,549
CUSEOMET CONEIIDULIONS. . .. eee ettt it it ettt ettt et et ettt et et eaeeaeeneenaans - -
Cash receipts from contributions in aid...............c.veuiiniiiiiiiiiiii e - -
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net.............ocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e - -
Defeasance of capital debt............c.ocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii - -
Additions to contributed capital ASSELS..........c.vuuiiiiiuiiiiiii e 6,269 57
Principal paid on long-term debt OblIgations...........vuuuiiuneirnieii ettt ei e erie e (1,853) 555
Interest paid on debt - -
Interest and payments to refunded bond escrow agent (2,545) -
Passenger facility charges and Other.............c.ooooviiiiiiiiiiiii - -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES......coutiiieiiteii et et een (18,851) (20,352)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and dividends On INVESIMENS. ........ouieireriit ettt eeeeaaeeeareeeaaaens 3,576 7,720
Purchase of INVESHMENLS. ........ueuieie ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaeanes - -
Proceeds from sale and maturities Of INVESMENLS. .........cuuieuiiuniiiiieie e aieans - -
Investment in The Energy AUthOTILY.........c.uvuuiiiiiniiiiiii et eaes - -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES........coiuiiiiiiiiiiiaiieieiieanes 3,576 7,720
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS..........ccccvvvviiniinnnns 215 (5,282)
Cash and cash equivalents at OCtODET 1............ovvuiriuieiiieiiieeiiieeieeiee e eeieeaieerinens 61,711 147,439
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30...........c.viuuiiniiiiiiiiiiiei e $ 61,926 $ 142,157
CLASSIFIED AS:
CUITENE ASSELS. ...vvteeereeeriseineeessesattsa e seeeeeessseanaeeasessssaaaeesesssstneaeeeresaarnaaees $ 48,707 $ 142,157
RESIICIEA ASSBLS. .. ..ettetn ettt ittt ettt et ettt et e e et e et e et et e e e e e e aneees 13,219 -
TO T AL ..o e e $ 61,926 $ 142,157
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in the fair value of INVESIMENES. ...........uiieitit et e e e e e e e e e e aaeas ($ 115 (% 373)
Acquisition of assets through capital lease - 1,094
Acquisition of contributed Capital @SSELS. ........cc.uiirnierniiieii et e e e - -
Accrual of landfill closure, postclosure and decontamination COStS................coeeververunrunernnnnnss. - -
TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ... .ottt (3 115) $ 721
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TOTALS TOTALS
(Memorandum only) (Memorandum only)
NONEXPENDABLE PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT REPORTING ENTITY
TRUST 2001 2000 UNITS 2001

$ - ($ 54,545) ($ 30,479) ($ 942,533) ($ 997,078)
- 12,859 11,988 429 13,288

- - - 10,571 10,571

- - - 81,318 81,318

- - - 879,185 879,185
- - - (126,384) (126,384)

- 6,326 - - 6,326
- (1,298) (230) (102,320) (103,618)
- - - (165,924) (165,924)
- (2,545) (3,448) - (2,545)

- - - 7,249 7,249
- (39,203) (22,169) (358,409) (397,612)

16 11,312 10,974 46,151 57,463
- - - (2,448,668) (2,448,668)

- - - 2,570,426 2,570,426

- - - 5,468 5,468

16 11,312 10,974 173,377 184,689

7 (5,060) 18,574 132,602 127,542

311 209,461 190,887 450,120 659,581

$ 318 $ 204,401 $ 209,461 $ 582,722 $ 787,123
$ 318 $ 191,182 $ 197,431 $ 95,588 $ 286,770
- 13,219 12,030 487,134 500,353

$ 318 $ 204,401 $ 209,461 $ 582,722 $ 787,123
G 1 % 489) $ - $ 16,116 $ 15,627
- 1,094 - - 1,094

- - 2,705 - -

- - 40 - -

$ 1) $ 605 $ 2,745 $ 16,116 $ 16,721

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF PLAN NET ASSETS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

ASSETS
Cash and short-term iNVEStMENES. .......ovvverireerireneienerrenaraanens

Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectible):
Interest and dividends...............ccoeviiiniiiiiniiiiiieeenes
Due from other funds............cccoveiiiiiiiiiie e
Accounts receivable...........iviviiriiiiiiie e
Total receivables..........covviuiiiiiiiiiiiiieie e eeeerenenans

Investments, at fair value:
U.S. Government obligations.............ccceeveevininieniinnane.
Municipal Bonds...........cooviiiiiiiiii
Domestic corporate bonds. ...........cocoueeeuneeniinieneiniennnnn..
DOmESHIC StOCKS. ... veiiiitei i

Buildings and improvements.............c.covuveuieniinieniinennns
Furnitures and eqUipPment. ...........o.vevvuveneniineinenennenenenne.
Accumulated depreciation..............cocoveveriniiiiiiiinininnee.

Net property, plant and equipment.............c..cccoeeuenen...

TOTAL ASSETS............ Cerriertniertettearetrateeteetentsaneates

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..................c.........
Accrued Compensated ADSENCes...........oeoveevienennininennen..

Due to Drop Participants.............coeeueeieuienniniinnennennnnne.

TOTAL LIABILITIES........ccccvitiiiuiiniiniiniiniiciinennennens

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS...

(See schedule of funding progress at page 168.)

GENERAL POLICE
EMPLOYEES AND FIRE
PENSION PENSION TOTALS
PLAN PLAN 2001 2000

$ 66,791 $ 31,492 $ 98,283 $ 33,887
7,598 5,409 13,007 13,581

- 224 224 246

- - - 81

7,598 5,633 13,231 13,908
318,889 175,209 494,098 509,793
4,423 - 4,423 -
264,262 135,966 400,228 363,812
614,890 387,468 1,002,358 1,196,887
150,611 37,235 187,846 253,063

- 6,642 6,642 2,321

1,353,075 742,520 2,095,595 2,325,876

- 24 24 24

- 252 252 252

120 444 564 321
(76) (277) (353) (303)

44 443 487 294
1,427,508 780,088 2,207,596 2,373,965
608 803 1,411 893

19 47 66 50

- 51,576 51,576 28,408

627 52,426 53,053 29,351

$ 1,426,881 $ 727,662 $ 2,154,543 $2,344,614

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

GENERAL POLICE
EMPLOYEES AND FIRE
PENSION PENSION TOTALS
PLAN PLAN 2001 2000
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
EmpIOYer...ooviviiiiii $ 132 3 9,058 $ 9,190 $ 20,884
Plan Member............ocoiiiiiiiii i 15,394 7,766 23,160 25,400
Total contributions............o.covvvvveiniiiiiiiiiiiiinennns 15,526 16,824 32,350 46,284
Other additions:
State insurance CONtribUtIONS. ..........ccvvvvinivineininiinininns - 4,513 4,513 4,299
Court fines & penalties..............oevviiiiriiniiriiiineinnns - 3,033 3,033 2,942
MiSCEllaneOouS. ......vuiviiviiiie e - 56 56 33
Gain/Loss on Sale of Fixed ASSetS..........vcvevvveveeennnnnen.. 4) - 4) -
Total other additions.............covvuiviiiniiiiiiieeaaanns 4) 7,602 7,598 7,274
Investment income:
Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value of investments...................cccvenenivnnnen. (91,468) (78,939) (170,407) 143,016
Interest and dividends...............cccooviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiens 52,606 27,826 80,432 80,451
Rebate of Commissions...........o.vvveiiviiiieineinineneenannnn. 194 102 296 -
Rental INCOME........cuiviininiiiiiiiee s - 161 161 -
Earnings other Miscellaneous. ..............c.coeeuiviininninn... 315 507 822 -
Total investment iNCOME...........covenieeneneeneneenenennnnn. (38,353) (50,343) (88,696) 223,467
Less investment eXpense. ............eeveeveeeneeeninennnnn. (4,102) (3,308) (7,410) (8,037)
Less rental Xpense............cevveiniriiiiniiiniiiiienenen, - (14) (14) -
Net investment iNCOME...........oovvuinirineneineaninenennnn. (42,455) (53,665) (96,120) 215,430
TOTAL ADDITIONS......cctitiiirieieieirienernrererecncerececenns (26,933) (29,239) (56,172) 268,988
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits Payments. .......c.ovuuviniiniiniieiiiieeieieeeee e, 72,559 56,581 129,140 122,240
Refunds of contributions................coevvviiriiveiiieinaenan.. 2,351 389 2,740 3,621
Operating transfers Out..............ccoeuiiiiuiiniiieniieiininnn, - 83 83 162
Administrative eXPenSes..........o.ueuereeineineiiniriininieninenns 1,001 935 1,936 2,167
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS......ccctiiretirnierererenneerncenensnesnees 75,911 57,988 133,899 128,190
Net increase (deCrease)............vvueuvinirninieneninieneneenannss (102,844) (87,227) (190,071) 140,798
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS:
BEGINNING OF YEAR......cooviiiiiiiiiiiceee e, 1,529,725 814,889 2,344,614 2,203,816
END OF YEAR. ..ottt $ 1,426,881 $ 727,662 $ 2,154,543 $ 2,344,614

See accompanying notes.
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COMPONENT UNITS

Component Units are legally separate organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting
majority of the component unit's governing body with certain exceptions, and either (a) the
ability to impose will by the primary government, or (b) the potential for the organization
to provide financial benefits to, or impose financial burdens on the primary government.

These are presented in two reporting groups, Governmental Fund Type and Proprietary Fund

Type.
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPE:

The Duval County Housing Finance Authority provides money for loans and technical
assistance for construction and rehabilitation of housing to alleviate a shortage of housing
and capital for investment in housing in Jacksonville.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Commission provides a focal point for
economic development in the City that results in a centralization of economic development
programs.

The Downtown Vision, Inc. provides community enhancements, such as, security,
hospitality and clean teams, within the downtown area.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc. provides financial assistance in
the form of venture capital loans, grants and other economic incentives to promote new small
business development throughout the City.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE:

The JEA manages and operates an electric utility system and a water and sewer utility
system in the Consolidated City of Jacksonville/Duval County area.

The Jacksonville Port Authority manages and operates the City's major marine port and
aviation/airport facilities.

GOVERNMENTAL AND PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE:

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority is responsible for construction, improvement,
and maintenance of the Jacksonville Expressway System (governmental fund type) and
operation of the City's mass transit systems, including bus and automated skyway express,
throughout Duval County (proprietary fund type). ’



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

DUVAL COUNTY JACKSONVILLE
HOUSING ECONOMIC
FINANCE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY COMMISSION
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments. ..............couveieeineiiinininieneieenannnn.. $ 10,770 $ 2,333
Cash and eqUIVAIENLS. ..........euininiti it - -
Receivables (net, where applicable, of

allowances for uncollectibles):

AcCCOUNS AN IMEEIESE. ..c.ueueetenieiet et e e e eneaeanas - -

I (0] T P ST 6,590 -
Due from other funds............cooiuiiiiiiii - -
Due from other OVEIMMENLES. .. ... c.ouuiuiriinitrineieiet ettt eiaeeaaeeeeearanaanas - 123
Prepaid expenditures and other assets...........c.veuuivererninreneinieinrinereenennnnn. - -
Restricted assets:

Cash and eqUIVAIENLS. .........oouiuiiiiiii e - -
Fixed assets and infrastructure, Net..............c.ooeuiieiniriiineniinieiieienenenns, - -
Real estate under developmEent. ... .......ouviuiuiiiiiiieie e eeeaans - -
Amount to be provided for retirement of general long-term obligations............ - -
TOTAL ASSETS....ouiuiiniiuiiniiiiiiiiiitiuciatsasssssacisstssssssnssnssassnssncenses $ 17,360 $ 2,456

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...........c..covuviiviiieiieiniineiinenn.n. $ 323 $ 212

Due to other funds..........c.oeeiiiiiiiiiiiii e - -

Due to primary gOVEINMENt. .........vuviuiurernerneineenenaenerneraaneesaenernernenns - -

Due to Other GOVEIMIMENLS. .......cuuiinieiiieiiien it eie e e e eieeaaaans - -

Deferred reVenUE. .........ooouiiiiiiiiiiii e - -

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations.....................cccveennnen.n. - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES........ccotetitiiiiuiiiiincinssncieseseernesasssssnsansansansnns 323 212
FUND EQUITY:

Investment in general fixed aSSetS..........c.veuvinieniiniiieeiiiiieiieeieeiaanae, - -

Fund Balances:

Reserved for encumbrances............c.vvvuvuneiieineinieieiieieee e eeieeaeanes 6 570
Reserved for mortgages receivable............ocovvveiiiniiiiiiiiiniien 6,590 -
Unreserved:
Designated for self-inSurance..............cocveuvereeeineiniineiniineinenn.n. - -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments......................... 27 6
Undesignated. ..........ovveieiiiiiiii e 10,414 1,668

Total Fund BalanCes..........coovuiriniieiniiie e et 17,037 2,244
Total Fund EQUItY........c.oviutiiiiiiiiiiiiin e 17,037 2,244
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY....ccccetueteurennerennernnenrennnnns $ 17,360 $ 2,456
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JACKSONVILLE

TRANSPORTATION JACKSONVILLE
AUTHORITY - ECONOMIC
JACKSONVILLE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT COMBINED
EXPRESSWAY SYSTEM VISION, INC. COMPANY, INC. TOTALS
$ - $ - $ - $ 13,103
22,788 654 689 24,131
608 581 - 1,189
- - 1,217 7,807
473 - - 473
15,070 - 26 15,219
. 3 - 3
153,255 - - 153,255
117,882 61 - 117,943
- - 562 562
12,000 - - 12,000
$ 322,076 $ 1,299 $ 2,494 $ 345,685
$ 559 $ 68 $ 134 $ 6,331
500 - - 500
- - 584 584
55 - - 55
1,000 - 1,217 2,217
12,000 - - 12,000
19,149 68 1,935 21,687
117,882 - - 117,882
- - - 576
- - - 6,590
200 - - 200
- - - 33
184,845 1,231 559 198,717
185,045 1,231 559 206,116
302,927 1,231 559 323,998
$ 322,076 $ 1,299 $ 2,494 $ 345,685

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

DUVAL COUNTY JACKSONVILLE
HOUSING ECONOMIC
FINANCE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY COMMISSION
REVENUE:
TP $ - $ -
Intergovernmental. ... .. ....oveuieieierieieiiiiie i - 29
031 (3] 773 124
(01 1T 133 562
TOtal REVENUE. ....uiuiiiiiee ittt aeas 906 715
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General GOVEIMMENL. .........ouuuienetin et - -
TranSPOItALION. . ...\uititiii ettt ettt ettt eeen e e eeaaas - -
ECONOMmMIC €NVIrONMENT. ....ouveinietieeneeeeiaeeeeeaeieeeeeraeeraeenaes 1,744 6,205
Capital OULIAY . .....ouiieiei i - -
Total EXPEnditures. .. .....c.uininiiiiiiiii e 1,744 6,205
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES................. (838) (5,490)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from SIB 10an..........coeviiiniiiiiiii - -
Operating transfers OUL..........c.cocuveuiininiiiiniiniiiii e - @)
Transfers out to state for debt SErvice............coooeviiiiiiiiiiiennininnnne. - -
Transfers - In from primary government............c..cocoveviiviniiininininnn. 313 6,307
Transfers - Out to primary OVernment..............ocveviiiininineinininnnnnn. - (43)
Total Other Financing Sources (USeS)........cveveiiiiiirininineeeiiieeinenene. 313 6,263
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES.......c.ccccviuiuinininen. (525) 773
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR........ccviiiiiniiiieiiiienenes 17,562 1,471
Residual equity transfer (OUL)..........cveuvueninieieieititiee e eeeeeeaeeenes - -
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR......cccciitiiiiniiiniininiiicneninsneens $17,037 $ 2,244
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JACKSONVILLE

TRANSPORTATION JACKSONVILLE
AUTHORITY - ECONOMIC

JACKSONVILLE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT
EXPRESSWAY SYSTEM VISION, INC. COMPANY, INC.

$ 57,496 $ 790 $ -

12,209 - 5

11,916 24 23

96 31 163

81,717 845 191

2,510 - .

5,396 - -

- 366 99

37,282 - .

45,188 366 99

36,529 479 92

12,000 - .

(3,000) - -

(66,072) . .

36,765 - -

(20,307) - -

16,222 479 92

170,323 752 467

— (1,500) - -

$ 185,045 $ 1,231 $ 559

COMBINED

TOTALS

$ 58,286
12,243
12,860

985

84,374

2,510
5,396
8,414

37,282
53,602

30,772

12,000
(3,001)
(66,072)
43,385
(43)

(13,731)

17,041

190,575

(1,500)

$ 206,116

See accompanying notes.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
PROPRIETARY AND SIMILAR FUND TYPES (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and eqUIVAIENES. ........c.vuininiit i
INVESIMEILS. ..o vttt
Receivables (net, where applicable, of allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUNES AN INLETESE. ... \uette ettt ettt ettt aeaas
L 111
Due from other funds...........couvuiiiiiiii i
Due from primary gOVEIMIMEN. .. ...cuuuuunteieeee ittt eiiaeaieaeteeaeaes
Due from other GOVEIMMENLS. .....vvvuuinitiitiiiti i
Advances t0 other funds............coviiiiiiiiiiii
I 1 10) 3 (= N

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Cash and equIVaIBNLS. ........ocuiniiiiniiiiiii i
A1 13 1L PP
Accounts and interest reCeIVADIE. ... ....c.ouiiitiii ittt ie e,

TOtal RESEIICEA ASSEES. .. v rt et ire et eneitet it et et eeeeteneaeeaseraeaeeaneaeensrneaneaneeaneneens

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT:

Electric plant in SBIVICE.........vvuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Buildings and imProVements. ... .. ..c.uveeeieiiniriiiiiiiii e
Improvements other than buildings...............ocooviiii
VBIICIES . . ettt
BQUIPIENL. ...t
CONSLIUCLION TN PIOZIESS. . tu v tnteteatettnenenenen et e enen et e aeeseeaaesetaeaenenenenenenenenes

OTHER ASSETS:
Unamortized debt 1SSUANCE COSES. ... viuuinrintintiatet et eneaneeneareeneareaneneeneaneaneannanns
Unamortized SErvice TightS. ... .. c.uviuiiuiuniniiiiiiiiiiiii e
Costs to be recovered from fUtUre rEVENUES.........oeiriieiieiieiieiiiieeieieeieeieanneans
N7 i 1) T £ PN

TOTAL ASSETS......cccovvurennnnnn. ceveereeennes cevererentenenenne ceveerntrirutetenenans cereeenee

-32 -

JEA

$ 65291
19,583

136,195

400

105,933

33,462

360,864

440,870
356,130

18,347

815,347

4,290,665

1,538,501

5,829,166
(1,681,997)

4,147,169

498,514
498,514

$ 5,821,894



JACKSONVILLE

TRANSPORTATION
JACKSONVILLE AUTHORITY -
PORT MASS TRANSIT COMBINED
AUTHORITY SYSTEM TOTALS

$ 7,394 $ 22,903 $ 95,588
24,524 - 44,107
11,589 822 148,606
5,462 - 5,462

- 500 500

- - 400

- 1,094 1,094

- 233 233

1,325 1,323 108,581
2,300 196 35,958
52,594 27,071 440,529
46,264 - 487,134
51,269 - 407,399
713 - 19,060
98,246 - 913,593
130,556 21,783 152,339

- - 4,290,665

158,500 118,668 277,168
392,178 - 392,178

- 62,440 62,440

101,074 72,564 173,638
131,078 450 1,670,029
913,386 275,905 7,018,457
(242,423) (72,733) (1,997,153)
670,963 203,172 5,021,304
3,823 - 3,823
3,437 - 3,437

- - 498,514

7,260 - 505,774

$ 829,063 $ 230,243 $ 6,881,200

(continued)

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

PROPRIETARY AND SIMILAR FUND TYPES (in thousands; continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. ...........coooveiininiiiiiiiiiin
Due to other funds..........o.iuiiiii e
Due to Other GOVEIMMENTS. ... ..ccuiuuiinititiiieiei et et
Capitalized lease obligations, CUrrent POrtion.............c.oe.ueuueineunerniuneraeneeneineanes
Estimated liability for self-insured [0SSES. ... .. ..uvvuiiuiiinriiniiineiiie e
Advances from other funds..............coiiiiiiiiiiii e
Deferred revenue and other.............c.oeeiviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Total Current Liabilities. ... ...vuueiniiiiiei i

LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS:

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, net of current portion:

Revenue bonds and note payable............oeuveuiiiniiiiniiniiii e
Long-term debt and other long-term obligations..............covevveuniiniininiiniinennennnn.
Capitalized lease obligations, 1ess CUrTent POrtioN. ........c..ceuueruneiuneenaennrinarinanenss
Deferred capital CONIIDULIONS. ... .ovuiuieinitiiiie e ee e
Total Long-Term Liabilities. ........c.oeuviniiiiniieiiiiiiiiie e

OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS:

Deferred credits and Other.........c.ovvieiniieinii e

FUND EQUITY:

Contributed capital..........cciiiiiiiii i
Retained Earmings. .......vueiuneiniiieieiit e ee et

TOTAL FUND EQUITY ....cuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieiienstnetneesanstassinsssssssssasses

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY...c.cccottiiimuiimnniimniniennienirenncencanes

JEA

81,385
90,065
89,469
90,000
18,233

369,152

3,691,015

3,691,015

146,020

146,020

4,281,134

319,525

1,221,235
1,540,760

$ 5,821,894
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JACKSONVILLE

TRANSPORTATION
JACKSONVILLE AUTHORITY -
PORT MASS TRANSIT COMBINED
AUTHORITY SYSTEM TOTALS

$ 13,628 $ 6,684 $ 95,259
- 473 473

- 962 962

698 - 698

- 2,516 2,516

- 233 233

- 716 716

14,326 11,584 100,857
6,234 - 87,619
6,065 - 96,130
9,407 - 98,876

- - 90,000

- - 18,233

745 - 745
22,451 - 391,603
223,217 - 223,217

- - 3,691,015

11,344 - 11,344
16,500 - 16,500
251,061 - 3,942,076
- - 146,020

- - 146,020

287,838 11,584 4,580,556
359,618 168,629 847,772
181,607 50,030 1,452,872
541,225 218,659 2,300,644

$ 829,063 $ 230,243

$ 6,881,200

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

PROPRIETARY AND SIMILAR FUND TYPES (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

JEA
OPERATING REVENUE:
(0)110 -1 1108 (5351 L LT $ 936,801
Earnings On INVESUMENES. .. ....e.vutnintnteeneneteteeeeeaeet et e ettt eaeaaaeataiaeneneanans -
L0 11T R ' 46,358
Total Operating REVENUE. ........uuieitiietitreiitet ettt ettt aeeas 983,159
OPERATING EXPENSES:
FUEL. o 313,091
PUrChased POWET. ... .ttt 91,396
Operations and MAaINEENANCE. .. ... . .eueutuenitiit ittt ee e eeaeerareaaaes 210,578
General and admMiNISIEALIVE. . ......eueeeet it et et -
PerSONal SEIVICES. ...utnintiet et -
Supplies and MAterials. .. ......oueuieieet it -
Other Services and CharZes..........ocviuiuiiriiiiiiiiiii e 35,758
Casualty and INSUTANCE. .......uueit ettt ettt e e e e e e e eeaes -
TaXes ANA TICOMSES. ... ueuitte ettt ettt 17,654
Depreciation and amoOItization............c.oveviuiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiii e 157,715
Total Operating EXPeNSeS. .. .uuuenin ittt a e 826,192
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)..ctututtitiiuitctieresereracarencaeeecessecasassssassesscsssncsssssncsnes 156,967
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
TS (o B (25 1 L1 LT N 52,467
(S (o 1S4 1) 1 T (107,605)
Public funding:
United States GOVEIMIMENL. .......c.vuueuitnitiiinitiienite ittt ee e ans -
State Of FIOTida. .. ....vneni i -
Other SUDSIAIES . ..o eeueetteiee ettt et et e et e et e a et a e e et et eaeaanss -
(01 1T PN 10,008
Total Non-Operating Revenue (EXPEnSes).........cuveuiuiiiiniininiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiieinieeaieeans (45,130)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
AND OPERATING TRANSFERS. ..ottt 111,837
Capital COMEIIDULIONS. .. 1\t sttt ettt et e et e e et e e et et et et et e et et e e e e e e e neenenene 19,433
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating tranS er (M. ... . .oueeii it ettt et ettt eeas -
Transfer - In from primary gOVEIMMENt. ... ... .o.vuvuiuiniiitiniiii e eeaenes -
Transfers - Out to Primary OVEIMIMENt. ........o.vuiuinininentnin ettt et eeeeeeereeanns (73,638)
Total Operating Transfers I (OUL)........c.iuiiniuinini et eeie e eaeane (73,638)
NET INCOME......ccccooeviuiininiiniiniinnenienncennns Jeereee et 57,632
Add depreciation on contributed assets / grant assets consumed in OPerations.............c.....c.e.... 10,071
Increase in retained EArMINES. .. .....eueuninereenini ittt ettt 67,703
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR......c.itiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,153,532
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR.....cccctuttiiiiimiiiitiinieniiimieniisiiiucesrasesassscnsaes $ 1,221,235
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JACKSONVILLE

TRANSPORTATION
JACKSONVILLE AUTHORITY -
PORT MASS TRANSIT COMBINED
AUTHORITY SYSTEM TOTALS
$ 64,624 $ 13,955 $ 1,015,380
- 283 283
- - 46,358
64,624 14,238 1,062,021
. - 313,091
- - 91,396
28,075 - 238,653
18,773 - 18,773
- 25,912 25,912
) 4,630 4,630
- 16,482 52,240
- 1,024 1,024
- 131 17,785
27,426 13,072 198,213
74,274 61,251 961,717
(9,650) (47,013) 100,304
6,460 342 59,269
(9,499) - (117,104)
- 3,784 3,784
- 3,873 3,873
- 206 206
7,256 - 17,264
4217 8,205 (32,708)
(5,433) (38,808) 67,596
22,785 39,465 81,683
- 3,000 3,000
- 27,139 27,139
- - (73,638)
. 30,139 (43,499)
17,352 30,796 105,780
10,810 12,831 33,712
28,162 43,627 139,492
153,445 6,403 1,313,380
$ 181,607 $ 50,030 $ 1,452,872

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
PROPRIETARY AND SIMILAR FUND TYPES (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).....cuuiiiniiiiiiii ittt

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amoOrtization.............c.euiuieiuiiet et
Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, NEL...........c.oeveviinininiiiininiiieririreninnnnnn.
Other non-operating revenue (EXPENSe), MEL..........cc.vuueeneeneuneunernineneeneneraeneenaenennes

Change in assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in accounts and interest receivable, restricted.................cccoooiiiininnn.
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, net..............c.ceveeeevvinennnnnnnn.
Decrease (INCrease) in INVENIOTIES. .. ..ueuueuneenerneenernetneeneeneenerneteeteeteeneenesnenierernneiaennes
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other.............c.ocoviiiiiiiiniiiiiiininnnnes,
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued eXpenses. ............c.oveuuveneennienneennnnn.
Increase (decrease) in liabilities, FeStrICtEd. .........vuivirirerieiiii et eeaeaeaaes
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities and deferred revenue...............ceevenvineinenninnennnnes
Increase (decrease) in liability for self-insured 10SS€S.........occvvuviriiniineiiiieiiiieeeieeienee,
Contribution to Primary gOVEIMMENL. . .....euueuutrneenernernererereeneenerneenernernerarrerneeernessernnns

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Operating grants TECEIVEM. .. ... iuuueieeiieieeiteteeeie et e ee et eate et e st e et e et e et eenestesaneennns
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds...................ooooviiiiiniinnnnn,

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Additions to property, plant and eQUIPINENL. .........c..eiuueitnerneeierieerieriarinerieererieraeanns
Proceeds from sales of property and eqUIPIMENt..........c..ccereueeriineiinriieiniieierineeannnn.
CUStOMET CONEIIDULIONS. ... ..uiitiiiit ettt et et e e e e et e e e e et e e eaes
Cash receipts from contributions in aid..............coeeiriiiniiiiiiieiin e
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, Net............ccecuviuvinviniiiiiiiiiiiieiieiieieiieeieeaeaees,
Defeasance of capital debt...........c.coieuiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Principal paid on long-term debt 0bligations..............coeiuiiiiiiiiiineiinriiiiiir e
Interest paid on debt..........cooiiiiiiiiii
Passenger facility charges and other...............coviiiiiiiiii i

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest and dividends 0N INVESIMENES. ..........iuinininiieiti ettt eeeeaeeenenes
Purchase of INVESIMENLS. .........oiuiiitii ittt et e e e eae e aaans

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS......cciettiiiiiiniiiiineiieeeieeeiiee,

Cash and cash equivalents at OCtODET 1...........c.uvvuuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30..........c.ovvriunreiiuierieeiiieeeii e e e eiee e eiinnans

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Change in the fair value of INVESIMENLS. ..........uivuiiniitiiieit e

TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

JEA

$ 156,967

157,715
35,758
(2,464)

35,044
(6,241)
(2,280)

(21,415)
8,959
732

(73,638)

289,137

(811,306)
332
10,571

840,612
(126,384)

(85,115)
(152,315)

(323,605)

38,351
(2,343,430)
2,444,447

5,468

144,836

110,368

395,793
$ 506,161

$ 14,115
$ 14,115
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JACKSONVILLE

PORT
AUTHORITY

JACKSONVILLE
TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY -
MASS TRANSIT
SYSTEM

($ 9,650)

27,426
16

(6,919)
(218)
(355)

8,238

(93,005)
97

41,853
38,573

(17,205)
(13,609)
7,249

(36,047)

7,433
(105,238)
125,979

28,174
10,665

42,993
$ 53,658

$ 2,001
$ 2,001

($ 47,013)

13,072

4,050
(405)
(30)

1,258

449
577

(28,042)
7,862
30,139

38,001

(38,222)

39,465

367
11,569

11,334
$ 22,903

COMBINED

TOTALS

$ 100,304

198,213
35,774
(2,464)

35,044
(9,110)
(2,903)

(385)

(11,919)

8,959
1,181
577

(73,638)

279,633

7,862
30,139

38,001

(942,533)
429
10,571
81,318
879,185
(126,384)
(102,320)
(165,924)
7,249

(358,409)

46,151
(2,448,668)
2,570,426

5,468

173,377

132,602

450,120

$ 582,722

$ 16,116
$ 16,116

See accompanying notes.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Jacksonville, Florida (the City) conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applicable to governments. The
following is a summary of the more significant policies. Notes 1.D. through 20 are note
disclosures of the primary government. Disclosures of major discretely presented component
units essential to the fair presentation of the City's General Purpose Financial Statements are
set forth in Note 21.

A. Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity
with GAAP as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), and the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). Under the auspices of GASB Statement No. 20,
the City does not apply FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989, for
proprietary activities, unless the GASB amends its pronouncements to specifically adopt
FASB pronouncements issued after that date. GASB is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles for
units of local government.

B. Financial Reporting Entity:

The City is a consolidated city/county political entity created by Chapter 67-1320 of the
Laws of Florida. When consolidation occurred on October 1, 1968, all existing
municipalities, authorities, and public agencies within Duval County, except for the
Duval County School Board, were merged into a single new corporate and political entity
also known as the City of Jacksonville. At the same time, however, the cities of
Jacksonville Beach, Atlantic Beach, Neptune Beach, and the Town of Baldwin elected
to retain local autonomy for certain municipal purposes and were reconstituted as
separate and distinct urban service districts. The Consolidated City government, which
is comprised of an elected City Council (19 members) and Mayor, provides, under the
administration of an appointed Chief Administrative Officer, services to approximately
792,000 residents living in an 840.1 square mile area.

To conform to the traditional county organization of government in the State of Florida,
the City retained the offices of the Sheriff, Property Appraiser, Tax Collector, Supervisor
of Elections, and Clerk of the Circuit Court, which are also elected by the citizenry.
These officers are considered to be not only county officers, but also officers of the
consolidated government as well, and therefore are considered as part of the primary
government. The three beach cities and the Town of Baldwin continue to function as
separate municipal governments.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

This report includes all funds, account groups, departments, agencies, boards and
commissions, and other organizational units that are administered by the Mayor and/or
controlled by or dependent upon the City Council as set forth in the City Charter. The
City, a primary government, has also considered for inclusion all potential component
units for which it may be financially accountable and other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would
cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, the GASB has set forth criteria
to be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include
appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body and (1) the ability of
the City to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization
to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City.

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the City of Jacksonville (the
primary government) and its component units. The City has identified and included
within the financial reporting entity, as its component units, legally separate
organizations for which the City is financially accountable or for which a significant
relationship with the City exists such that exclusion would cause the City's financial
statement to be misleading or incomplete.

The Jacksonville Public Library Board has been classified as a dependent special district
by the State of Florida Department of Community Affairs. Per GASB Statement No. 14,
the Library Board is not considered a component unit as it is not a legally separate
organization. Therefore, its activity is included as part of the primary government.

Blended Component Units. There are two component units, which are legally separate
from the City, but are so intertwined with the City that they are, in substance, the same
as the City. They are reported as part of the City and blended into the appropriate funds.

The Jacksonville Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) was established
under Chapter 339.175, Laws of Florida, to encourage and promote the development
of transportation systems for the Jacksonville urbanized area. The members of MPO
are also members of the City Council. MPO provides services exclusively to the City
in the form of transportation planning and capital improvement program
development.

The MPO is blended in the Special Revenue Funds. There are no separately issued
financial statements for the MPO.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

The Jacksonville Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees, created under Article
22 of the City Charter, provides retirement services and benefits to eligible
employees of the Office of the Sheriff and the Department of Fire and Rescue. The
City appoints two of the five-member board; one member is a police officer; one
member is a firefighter; and the remaining member is appointed by the other four
members. As sponsor, the City has the ability to modify the plan and to approve the
defined benefit contribution to the Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees in the
City's annual budget. The Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees issues separate
financial statements on the fund, which may be obtained from its administrative
office at 3200 Emerson Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32207. These transactions are
blended in the Trust and Agency Funds.

Discrete Component Units. These component units are entities which are legally
separate from the City, but are financially accountable to the City, or whose relationships
with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The component units are reported in a separate column to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and are governed
by separate boards. The Component Units column of the combined financial statements
includes the financial data of these entities. Each component unit listed below has a
September 30 fiscal year end.

Major Component Units

JEA (formerly known as the Jacksonville Electric Authority) was created by Chapter
67-1569 of the Laws of Florida to own, manage, and operate an electric utility system
and a water and sewer utility system in the City and any or all counties adjacent
thereto. The governing body of the JEA consists of seven members appointed by the
Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. The City has the ability to impose its will
on the JEA manifested principally through formal budgetary approval. The JEA
issues separate financial statements, which may be obtained from its administrative
office in the JEA Plaza at 21 West Church Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.

The Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA) was created in 1963 by Chapter 63-1447 of
the Laws of Florida, to own and operate marine and aviation facilities in the
Consolidated City/County Government of Jacksonville/Duval County. The governing
body of the JPA consists of seven members, four of whom are appointed by the
Governor of Florida, and three of whom are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed
by the City Council. The JPA is, however, fiscally dependent upon the City under
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

Section 14 of the City Charter through approval of its budgets, which ensures strong
accountability to the local constituent citizenry. The relationship of the City to its
independent authorities under Jacksonville's consolidated form of city/county
government would make it misleading to exclude it from the financial statements.
The JPA issues separate financial statements, which may be obtained from its
administrative office at 2831 Tallyrand Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida 32206.

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority (JTA) is a public body politic and
corporate agency of the State of Florida under Chapter 349 of the Florida Statutes.
The governing body of the JTA consists of seven members, three of whom are
appointed by the Governor of Florida, three of whom are appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council, and the seventh member is the district engineer of the
Florida Department of Transportation. The JTA is empowered to construct, improve,
operate, and lease the Jacksonville Expressway System. The JTA is, however,
fiscally dependent upon the City under Section 14 of the City Charter through
approval of its budgets which ensures strong accountability to the local constituent
citizenry. The relationship of the City to its independent authorities under
Jacksonville's consolidated form of city/county government would make it
misleading to exclude it from the financial statements. The JTA issues separate
financial statements, which may be obtained from its administrative office at 100
North Myrtle Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida 32203.

Non-major Component Units

The Duval County Housing Finance Authority (DCHFA), created under Chapter
65.105 of the City Ordinance Code pursuant to Chapter 78-89 of the Laws of Florida,
provides money for loans and technical assistance for construction and rehabilitation
of housing to alleviate a shortage of housing and capital for investment in housing
in Jacksonville. The City appoints DCHFA board members and has the ability to
impose its will. There are no separately issued financial statements for the DCHFA,
whose financial activity is accounted for by the City as a special revenue fund during
the year. Accordingly, no fund type data is presented for this component unit.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Commission (JEDC), created July 1,
1997, under Chapter 92-341, Laws of Florida, provides a focal point for economic
development in the City that results in a centralization of economic development
programs under the auspices of one agency, thus ensuring a more efficient and
practical means of addressing the goals, objectives and strategies for future economic
development in the City. The JEDC operates with all the powers and authority
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

of a community redevelopment agency under Part III, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes
and as an industrial development authority under Part III, Chapter 159, Florida
Statutes. The mayor appoints the board members and a chairman, who are confirmed
by the City Council, and the City has the ability to impose its will. There are no
separately issued financial statements for the JEDC, whose financial activity is
accounted for by the City as a special revenue fund during the year. Accordingly, no
fund type data is presented for this component unit.

The Downtown Vision, Inc. (DVI), was established as a not-for-profit corporation
under the Laws of Florida in 1997. DVI was created to provide community
enhancements in the downtown area, with associated costs assessed to the properties
benefited. The assessment is levied and collected by the City in accordance with the
Enhanced Municipal Services Agreement, and was approved by City Ordinance
1999-1175-E. The DVI is governed by a 15-member Board of Directors, of which
two are City representatives. The City has the ability to impose its will on the DVI
through annual budget approval. The enhanced services are provided to property
owners within several of the City's Downtown Community Redevelopment areas,
including some properties owned by the City. DVI issues separate financial
statements, which may be obtained from its main office at 220 East Bay Street, 14®
Floor, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc. (JEDCO), was
established as a not-for-profit corporation under the Laws of Florida in 1981 to
provide a centralization of economic development programs. The JEDCO is
governed by a Board of Directors which is selected by the Mayor's Economic
Development Council. The City has the ability to impose its will on JEDCO
principally through budgetary approvals. JEDCO issues separate financial statements
on the company, which may be obtained from its administrative office at 220 East
Bay Street, Room 416, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.

The Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority (JHFA), created under Chapter 490
of the City Ordinance Code pursuant to Chapter 154 Part III, Laws of Florida,
provides appropriate additional means to assist in the development, improvement and
maintenance of the public health. The JHFA provides a method for the financing and
refinancing, on a tax-exempt basis, of projects on behalf of private corporations and
organized not-for-profits that are authorized by law to provide hospital or nursing
home services, thus providing facilities at favorable interest costs with a resultant
decrease in health care costs for the users of health facilities within the City. All five
members are appointed by the City Council, and the City is able to impose its will
on the JHFA.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

The bonds issued by the JHFA are special limited obligations of the JHFA and the
principal and interest are payable from rental payments. The principal and interest
on the bonds shall never constitute an indebtedness of the City of Jacksonville, Duval
County, the State of Florida or any municipality or political subdivision thereof.
Accordingly, the bonds issued and outstanding are included in Note 8.H. Conduit
Debt. During the fiscal year presented, JHF A had no financial transactions or assets
and liabilities to report. Therefore, there are no separately issued financial statements
for JHFA.

Related Organizations

The Jacksonville Housing Authority (JHA), is governed by a seven member Board,
whose members are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by City Council.
However, the City does not have the ability to impose its will on JHA. The City
cannot remove appointed members of the JHA's Board at will. JHA's managers are
appointed by the JHA Board of Directors. The Board approves the operating budget
and amendments to the budget. The City does not exercise influence in JHA's
management or operations. It does not approve JHA budgets, and does not provide
or collect major revenues of the JHA. Accordingly, the financial activities of the JHA
are not included in the City's general-purpose financial statements.

The Duval County Research and Development Authority (Authority) is governed
by a five member Board whose members are appointed by the City Council.
However, the City does not have the ability to impose its will on the Authority. The
City does not exercise influence in the management or operations of the Authority
and is not financially accountable for the actions of the Authority. Accordingly, the
financial activities of the Authority are not included in the City's general-purpose
financial statements.

C. Fund Structure:

The City's accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting
to ensure compliance with limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources
available to it. Under fund accounting, individual funds are established for the purpose
of carrying on activities or attaining objectives in accordance with specific regulations,
restrictions, or limitations. Each individual fund is a self-balancing set of accounts
recording assets and other financing resources, together with liabilities and residual
equities or balances, and changes therein. For financial statement presentation, funds
with similar characteristics, including those component units referenced above, are
grouped into generic fund types as required by GAAP. A brief description of these fund
types and account groups and categories into which they are grouped follows:
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. Fund Structure: (continued)

Governmental Funds. Transactions related to resources received and used for those
services traditionally provided by city/county government. Governmental funds include:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for and the payment of interest and principal on most general governmental
obligations that are included in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

‘Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial

resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities or
improvements (other than those financed by the Proprietary Funds).

Proprietary Funds. Transactions related to activities similar to those found in the
private sector. Proprietary funds include:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the
intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided
that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability,
or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of
goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies
of the City or another governmental unit on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds. Transactions related to assets held by the City in a trust or agency
capacity. The City's fiduciary funds include Pension Trust, Expendable Trust,
Nonexpendable Trust and Agency funds as follows:

Pension Trust Funds - Pension Trust Funds are used to account for assets, liabilities, and
net assets available for plan benefits of City defined benefit retirement systems.

Expendable Trust Fund — The Expendable Trust Fund reflects the transactions, assets and
liabilities, and fund equity of trusts whose principal and income may be used to fund the
activity.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. Fund Structure: (continued)

Nonexpendable Trust Fund — The Nonexpendable Trust Fund reflects the transactions,
assets and liabilities, and fund equity of trusts whose income only may be used to fund
the activity.

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

Account Groups. The Account Groups are maintained to account for general long-term
obligations and fixed assets not accounted for in other funds of the City.

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This account group is used to account for all fixed
assets of the City, except fixed assets of proprietary funds, certain trust funds, and
component units.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group - This account group is used to account
for all the outstanding principal balances of any general and special obligation bonds or
notes, accrued compensated absences, and capitalized leases of the City, exclusive of
liabilities of proprietary funds, certain trust funds, and component units.

Component Units. Accounts for assets, liabilities and operations of discretely presented
component units. The financial statements for discretely presented component units are
reported as if they were a fund type using a similar basis of accounting.

D. Basis of Accounting:

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted
for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.
Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e. revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (i.e. expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

Agency funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Agency

funds are custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities) and do not measure the results
of operations.

All proprietary funds, nonexpendable trust funds and pension trust funds are accounted
for using a flow of economic resources or "income determination" measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation
of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e. net total assets) is
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. Basis of Accounting: (continued)

segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-
type operating statements present increases (e.g. revenues) and decreases (e.g. expenses)
in net total assets.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types and
expendable trust funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they become both measurable and
available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
"available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Major revenues that are determined to be
susceptible to accrual include property taxes, taxpayer-assessed tax revenues including
sales and utilities services taxes, state shared revenue, intergovernmental revenue,
charges for services and investment income. Federal grants collected on a reimbursement
basis are recognized as revenue when reimbursable expenditures are made.

Revenues collected on an advance basis, including certain federal grant revenue, to which
the City does not yet have legal entitlement, are not recognized as revenue until the
related commitment arises. Generally, the City considers a 60-day availability period for
revenue recognition.

Property taxes billed but uncollected as of the end of the fiscal year are reflected in the
accompanying financial statements as due from individuals offsetting a liability due to
other governments in the Tax Collector Agency Fund. These amounts are not considered
to be available by the City to finance current operations. Accordingly, property taxes are
recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in which they are collected and remitted to the
City's General Fund by the Tax Collector Agency Fund. (See Note 5.)

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for items
that are not planned to be liquidated with expendable available resources. Exceptions to
the general modified accrual expenditure recognition criteria include principal and
interest on general long-term indebtedness and the long-term portion of the liability for
compensated absences or capital lease obligations which are recognized when paid.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types, nonexpendable trust

funds and pension trust funds. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments:

Cash, cash equivalents and investments and related accrued investment earnings are
reported in the financial statements as "Equity in cash and investments" under the City's
"pooling" concept. (See Note 3.) All monies, which are not legally restricted to separate
administration, are pooled together for investment purposes while each individual fund
and/or account is maintained on a daily transaction basis by the City Treasurer.
Investment earnings are distributed in accordance with the participating funds' relative
percentage of investments. All Fund Types deposit monies into the Equity in Cash and
Investments Pool of the City. The Proprietary Fund Types use this pool as a demand
deposit account, and accordingly all amounts in the pool are considered cash and
equivalents for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows. Investments are stated at fair
value. Increases and decreases in the fair value of investments are reported as investment
income.

. Encumbrances:

Encumbrance accounting (under which purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion
of the applicable appropriation) is utilized in the General, Special Revenue, and Capital
Projects Funds during the year to facilitate effective budgetary control. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year, with encumbrances outstanding at year
end being reported as a reservation of fund balances since they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities. Encumbrances at year-end are reappropriated and honored
during the subsequent year.

. Receivables:

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible amounts, which are
determined based on past collection experience and current economic conditions, except
for mortgages receivable which are reported as a reservation of fund balance because
they are not considered a current financial resource available for expenditure. Types of
receivables include amounts that are principally due from the State of Florida for state-
shared revenues. Receivables in other funds have arisen in the ordinary course of
business.

. Inventories:

Inventories of materials and supplies are determined by both physical counts and through
perpetual inventory systems stated at cost, which approximates market, using the average
weighted costing method. In governmental fund types, inventories are recorded as
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
H. Inventories: (continued)

expenditures when purchased. Reported inventories in governmental funds are equally
offset by a reservation of fund balance since they are unavailable for appropriation. In
proprietary fund types, inventories are expended when consumed.

Fixed Assets:

All purchased fixed assets are recorded at cost where historical records are available and
at estimated cost where no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at
their estimated fair market value on the date received. Infrastructure "public domain"
assets such as highways, curbs and gutters, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage and
lighting systems, which are immovable and of value only to the City, are not capitalized
except as disclosed in Note 21 by certain component units. Generally, fixed assets
costing more than $500 or having a useful life of more than one year are capitalized. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Governmental, Expendable Trust and Agency Funds - Fixed assets are not capitalized
in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital acquisition and
construction are reflected as expenditures in these funds, and the related assets are
reported in the General Fixed Asset Account Group. Assets in the General Fixed Asset
Account Group are not depreciated.

Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds - Fixed assets are referred to as fund fixed assets
and are accounted for in the acquiring fund. Interest during construction is capitalized
and depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the assets' estimated useful
lives. When property is disposed of the related cost and accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts with gains or losses on disposition reflected in current
operations. The following lives are used:

Buildings and improvements 12 - 45 years
Equipment and fixtures 3 - 10 years

Component Units - Fixed assets are recorded in accordance with their similar fund type
of the primary government except for those component units as separately disclosed
under Note 21.

. Contributed Capital:

Contributed capital accounted for in the Proprietary Fund Types represents prior years'
contributions from other funds and/or State and Federal Aid programs and is recorded
as an increase to fund equity at the cost of the related asset at the time of asset transfer
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
J. Contributed Capital: (continued)

or receipt. Depreciation is recorded on contributed fixed assets and is reflected in the
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings.

The depreciation on contributed fixed assets of all Proprietary Fund Types is charged
against the related contributed capital account and is "added back" as an increase to
retained earnings.

Current year capital contributions are recorded as increases to net income in accordance
with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Transactions.

. Interfund Transactions:

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditure/expenses initially
made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as
expenditure/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses
in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements,
are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are
reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as
operating transfers.

. Restricted Assets:

Mandatory asset segregation is presented in various enterprise funds as restricted assets.
Such segregation is required by bond covenants and other external restrictions for debt
service, construction, and renewals and replacements. The excess of restricted assets over
liabilities payable from restricted assets will first be used for bonds payable. The
remainder, if any, is included in reserved retained earnings.

. Compensated Absences:

City employees may accumulate earned personal leave benefits (compensated absences)
at various rates within limits specified in collective bargaining agreements. For all funds,
this liability reflects amounts attributable to employee services already rendered,
cumulative, probable for payment, and reasonably estimated in conformity with GASB
Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
M. Compensated Absences: (continued)

Compensated absences liabilities for governmental funds and expendable trust funds are
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. No expenditure is
reported for these amounts until payment is made. All other fund types report this
liability as a fund liability that is recorded as an expense as the benefits accrue to the
employees. No liability is recorded for nonvesting, accumulated sick pay benefits.
Compensated absences liability is determined based on current rates of pay.

. Risk Financing:

The City is self-insured for general and automobile liability and up to $1 million per
occurrence of workers' compensation. (See Note 14.) The liability for self-insured losses
is based on individual case estimates for reported claims, historical loss data, and
valuations performed by independent actuaries at September 30, 2001, for incurred but
not yet reported claims and claims development. The liability for self-insured losses is
accounted for in the Self-Insurance Fund (internal service fund) that pays for claims
made against the City.

. Pension Costs:

Substantially all permanent, full-time employees of the City are covered under two City
sponsored defined benefit pension plans. Employer contributions are recorded as pension
expenditure/expenses when the related payroll is accrued based on an actuarially
determined rate in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions
by State and Local Governments.

. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs:

The City recognizes municipal solid waste landfill closure and postclosure care costs
under the State of Florida's Solid Waste Management Act of 1988 (the "1988 Act"),
regulations of the Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and GASB
Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and
Postclosure Care Costs. For those landfills that stopped accepting solid waste prior to
final implementation of the 1988 Act and EPA regulations, the estimated total cost of
municipal solid waste landfill (MSWLF) closure and postclosure care is recognized as
a deferred charge and a corresponding liability in the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise
Fund, in accordance with FASB Statement No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation, (FAS 71). The City issued bonds to pay for closure costs on closed
landfills. Post-closure care costs on closed landfills are recorded as a liability based on
engineers’ estimates. The City Council establishes rates that are designed to recover costs
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
P. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

and believes it is reasonable to assume that such rates, which will recover the costs, can
be charged to and collected from customers. Accordingly, the provisions of FAS 71 are
applied. The City intends to recover thess MSWLF costs through future operating
revenues of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund. Accordingly, MSWLF costs are
recognized as expense each year to match the flow of revenue and bonds principal
payments, thereby reducing the deferred charge. Expenses for closure and postclosure
care costs are recorded each year and the liability is adjusted to the engineer’s estimate.
MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs incurred for landfills accepting solid waste
after final implementation of the 1988 Act and EPA regulations are recognized as an
expense. A liability is recorded based upon the landfill capacity used during that year
applied to the engineer’s estimate of closure and postclosure care costs. (See Note 15.D.)

. Long-Term Obligations:

Revenue bonds and other forms of long-term debt used to finance Proprietary Fund
operations and which are payable from revenue of the Proprietary Funds are recorded in
the applicable Proprietary Fund. (See Note 8.) General obligation bonds, special
obligation bonds, and other forms of long-term debt are accounted for in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group. General obligation bonds are supported by ad
valorem taxes and constitute a debt of the City and a lien upon any property situated
within the City. Special obligation bonds which are supported by certain general
revenues (other than ad valorem taxes) do not constitute a debt of the City within the
meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation or provision, and the City is not
obligated to pay the bonds except from revenues pledged for such purposes.

. Reservations and Designations of Fund Equity:

Reservations of fund balance are established to identify the existence of assets that have
been legally segregated for specific purposes. Assets of legally restricted budgetary funds
are an example of this type of reservation. Reservations are also established for assets
that are not current in nature, such as long-term advances, mortgages receivable,
appreciation in market value of investments, and inventories. Designations of fund equity
reflect management's plans for financial resource allocation in a future period. Such plans
or intentions are subject to change and may never result in expenditures.

Explanations of significant designations include:
(1) Fund Balance Designated for Capital Projects - Tentative plans for utilization of fund

balances in future periods for capital projects designated in the City's Annual Budget
for the coming fiscal year.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
R. Reservations and Designations of Fund Equity: (continued)

(2) Fund Balance Designated for Subsequent Years’ Budget - Tentative plans for
utilization of fund balances for expenditures designated in the City's Annual Budget
for upcoming fiscal years, primarily associated with multi-year grants.

(3) Fund Balance Designated for Budget Stabilization - The General Fund's fund balance
not otherwise appropriated as a source of funding in future periods to be designated
as a financial resource to prevent budgetary deficits.

(4) Fund Balance Designated for Next Year’s Budget Appropriation - Tentative plans
for utilization of fund balances for other expenditures designated in the City's Annual
Budget for the coming fiscal year.

. Bond Discounts and Issuance Costs:

In Governmental Fund Types, bond discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the
current period. Material bond discount and issuance costs for Proprietary Fund Types are
deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of the bonds
using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method.
Issuance costs are recorded as deferred charges and bond discount/premium are included
in Long-Term Liabilities - Revenue Bonds.

. Deferred Loss on Debt Refundings:

Losses resulting from advance refundings of debt in proprietary funds are deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the new debt or the remaining life of the old debt.
The amount deferred is reported as a component of Long-Term Liabilities - Revenue
Bonds in the accompanying financial statements and is amortized and reported as a
component of interest expense.

. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements, in accordance with GAAP, requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V. Comparative Data:

Comparative totals for the primary government for fiscal year 2000 are presented in the
financial statements to provide an understanding of the changes in the City's financial
position and operations. Disclosures relevant to the prior year are available in the City's
fiscal year 2000 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

. "Memorandum Only" Total Columns:

Total columns on the financial statements are captioned "memorandum only" to indicate
that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not
present financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with GAAP.
Furthermore, this information is not comparable to a consolidation of funds as interfund
transactions have not been eliminated.

. Reclassification:

Certain amounts in the separately issued financial statements of component units have
been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the primary government. In addition,
certain prior year amounts of the City have been reclassified to conform to the current
year’s presentation.

. New Accounting Standards:

The City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001.
The Statement establishes accounting and reporting standards to guide state and local
governments' decisions about when to report the results of nonexchange transactions
involving cash and other financial and capital resources. The adoption of this standard
resulted in the City reporting $6.3 million as capital contributions revenue.

In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and
Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, which
establishes financial reporting standards for state and local governments, including states,
cities, towns, villages, and special-purpose governments such as school districts and
public utilities. It establishes that the basic financial statements and required
supplementary information for general purpose governments should consist of
Management's discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, and required
supplementary information. The City will adopt this Statement and Statement No. 37,
the related Omnibus Statement, for the year ending September 30, 2002.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Y.

New Accounting Standards: (continued)

GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures, modifies,
establishes, and rescinds certain financial statement disclosure requirements and is
effective when GASB Statement No. 34 is implemented.

BUDGETARY DATA

The City uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements.

A. The City adopts its budget in accordance with Chapters 129 and 200, Florida Statutes,

the City Charter and Municipal Ordinance Code.

(1) The Mayor's Proposed Budget is presented to the City Council on the second
Tuesday in July; the budget ordinance, millage levy ordinance, and related
resolutions are introduced.

(2) During the first Council meeting in September, public hearings are held on both the
budget and the millage rate. Following the public hearings, the Council adopts a
tentative budget and tentative millage rate. A final budget and millage is adopted by
full Council to be in effect on October 1.

All funds of each governmental fund type with legally adopted annual budgets are
included in the Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget and Actual.

The City adopts annual budgets for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds,
certain Proprietary Fund Types and certain Fiduciary Fund Types. Project or program
budgets, which may not coincide with the City's fiscal year, or which may exceed a
single annual period, are adopted by separate ordinance for most Special Revenue Funds
and Capital Project Funds. Budgets are not formally adopted for Debt Service Funds as
internal spending controls are set by compliance with bond covenants. The Special
Revenue Funds which are not budgeted annually include the following: Community
Development Block Grant, Housing Rehabilitation and Home Investment and
Opportunity Grants, Job Training Partnership Act Grant, Maintenance, Parks and
Recreation, Metropolitan Planning Organization, Other Federal, State and Local Grants,
State Housing Initiative Partnership, Better Jacksonville Trust Fund and Non-Budgeted
General Government.
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2.

BUDGETARY DATA (continued)

D.

Level of Budgetary Control - Expenditures may not exceed appropriations and are
controlled in the following manner:

(1) The budget is controlled according to Chapter 129, Florida Statutes, at the total fund
level.

(2) The City has adopted more stringent administrative policies that control expenditures
at the major category (Personal Services, Operating Expense, Capital Outlay, Debt
Service) level within divisions within individual funds.

(3) The City, additionally, has adopted a Municipal Ordinance Code Policy that provides
transfer authority to the Mayor, without City Council approval, within an individual
fund.

Supplemental Appropriations - The City Council may, through passage of an ordinance,
amend the budget in any manner permissible under State and Local Law, with one
exception. Bond covenants, trust and agency agreements, and certain clauses of
ordinances in effect may restrict certain budgetary items in terms of amount or use.

In certain instances the City may supplement the appropriations in a fund due to
unexpected high levels of receipts or under estimates of carry forward balances.
Supplemental appropriations to the Fiscal Year 2001 Annual Budget Ordinance were
made throughout the year, the effects of which were not material.

All appropriations in annually budgeted funds, except for amounts corresponding to
outstanding encumbrances, lapse at year-end or at the close of the authorizing
project/program, unless specifically carried forward by ordinance.

. Budget to actual comparisons are provided in the financial statements for all

Governmental Fund Types where the City has legally adopted annual budgets. All budget
amounts presented in the accompanying financial statements have been adjusted for
legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year. Budgets are prepared
on the modified accrual basis (GAAP) of accounting except that budgetary expenditures
include encumbrances for purchase orders and contracts that will not be fully executed
prior to the end of the fiscal year.

. Formal budgetary integration is used as a management control device for all funds of the

City, except certain Debt Service Funds as explained in Note 2.C.
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3.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Equity in Cash and Investments:

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds
except for monies which are legally restricted to separate administration (i.e. pension
plan custodians and deferred compensation plan administrators). This gives the City the
ability to invest large amounts of idle cash for short periods of time and to maximize
earnings potential. The "Equity in cash and investments" consist of cash and investments
owned by each fund and defined as resources that can be liquidated without delay or
penalty. In addition, cash and investments separately held and individually accounted for
by several of the City's funds where contractual arrangements and bond covenants
provide for and require such arrangements are classified as "restricted assets."

Investment earnings are allocated to the individual funds as provided by statute; earnings
for all other participants are credited to the General Fund.

. Cash on Deposit:

At September 30, 2001, the City's cash on deposit in its bank accounts was $144.7
million including interest bearing accounts, all of which was insured by federal deposit
insurance or collateralized pursuant to Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The related book
balance was $601.3 million. Monies which are placed on deposit with financial
institutions in the form of demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and
certificates of deposit are defined as public deposits. All of the City's public deposits are
held in qualified public depositories pursuant to State of Florida Statutes, Chapter 280,
"Florida Security for Public Deposits Act" and covered by federal depository insurance
and, for the amount in excess of such federal depository insurance, by the Act. Under the
Act, all qualified public depositories are required to pledge eligible collateral having a
market value equal to or greater than the average daily or monthly balance of all public
deposits, times the depository's collateral pledging level. The pledging level may range
from 50% to 125% depending upon the depository's financial condition and
establishment period. The Public Deposit Security Trust Fund has a procedure to allocate
and recover losses in the event of a default or insolvency. When public deposits are made
in accordance with Chapter 280, no public depositor shall be liable for any loss thereof.
Any losses to public depositors are covered by applicable deposit insurance, sale of
securities pledged as collateral and, if necessary, assessments against other qualified
public depositories of the same type as the depository in default.

All cash deposits of the City are placed with qualified financial institutions and are

classified as Category 1 credit risk, which means they are insured or collateralized. Credit
risk is the exposure to the default of another party to the transaction (the counterparty).
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3.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

C. Investments and Investment Practices:

The City is authorized to invest in certificates of deposit, money market certificates,
obligations of the U. S. Treasury, its agencies and instrumentalities, repurchase
agreements collateralized by U. S. securities, and the Florida Counties Investment Trust.
The pension trust funds are also authorized to invest in obligations of the City of
Jacksonville, of the State of Florida, commercial paper rated A-1 or P-1 by a nationally
recognized rating service, bankers' acceptances, corporate bonds, including collateralized
mortgage obligations, preferred stocks, common stocks, and real estate limited trusts. No
derivative or similar investment transactions, as defined by GASB Technical Bulletin 94-
1, were used, held, or written by the City during fiscal 2001.

Investments at September 30, 2001, are categorized in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 3 in the following table (in thousands) to indicate the level of risk assumed by the
City: Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the
securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name; Category 2 includes
uninsured or unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name; Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the City's name. Due to
significantly higher cash flows at certain times during the year, the City's investment in
overnight repurchase agreements, for which the underlying securities were held by the
dealer, fluctuated throughout the period. As a result, the amounts that were in Category
3 at those times were marginally higher than at year-end.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
C. Investments and Investment Practices: (continued)
(in thousands)

Credit Risk Category
Classified as to 1 5 3 Fair
Credit Risk Value
All Fund Types
Except For Pension
Repurchase Agreements $ - $ - $189,412 $ 189,412
U.S. Government and
Agency Securities 238,148 - 1,980 240,128
Total $ 238,148 $ - $ 191,392 429,540
Pension Trust Funds
U.S. Government and
Agency Securities $ 494,098 $ - $ - 494,098
Corporate Bonds 400,228 - - 400,228
Common Stock 1,190,204 - - 1,190,204
Real Estate 6,642 6,642
Municipal Bonds 4,423 - - 4,423
Total $2,095,595 $ - $ - 2,095,595
Total Risk-Classified Investments 2,525,135
Unclassified as to Credit Risk:
Accrued Interest Receivable 15,655
Cash Bank Deposits 601,285
Less: Equity in cash and investments of certain
Component units discretely presented and
related organizations (13,078)
Total Cash and Investments at September 30, 2001 $ 3,128,997
Summary of Cash and Investment Accounts:
Equity in Cash and Investments $ 3,080,227
Cash in Escrow and with Fiscal Agents 35,551
Restricted Cash and Investments 13,219
Total Cash and Investments at September 30, 2001 $ 3,128,997
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4.

5.

ACCOUNTS AND MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE

The accounts and mortgages receivable balances in the funds listed below, in thousands, are
shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts in the combined balance sheet. No other
funds had an allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2001.

Accounts Allowance for Net Amount Shown
Fund Receivable Doubtful Accounts on Balance Sheet
General Fund $25,716 ($22,324) $ 3,392
Special Revenue - Sports,
Convention & Tourism
Development 12 (6) 6
Special Revenue - Budgeted
General Government 71 (33) 38
Enterprise Funds - Solid
Waste Disposal 2,670 (131) 2,539
Mortgages Allowance for Net Amount Shown
Fund Receivable Doubtful Accounts on Balance Sheet

Special Revenue - Housing

Rehabilitation and Home

Investment and

Opportunity Grants 14,788 (3,581) 11,207
Special Revenue - State

Housing Initiative

Partnership 6,198 (220) 5,978

PROPERTY TAXES

A. Ad Valorem Property Taxes:

Property tax collections are governed by Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. The Duval
County Tax Collector bills and collects all property taxes levied within the Consolidated
City/County. Discounts of 4, 3, 2, and 1% are allowed for early payment in November,
December, January, and February, respectively. The total millage rate levied by the City
was 10.5498 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001.

The Florida Constitution, as amended under Article VII, Section 4, limits the increase
in homestead property valuations for ad valorem tax purposes to a maximum of the lessor
of (i) three percent (3%) of the assessment for the prior year, or (ii) the percent change
in the Consumer Price Index for the preceding calendar year. The first tax year in which
the limitations of these constitutional provisions apply is January 1, 1995. Calendar year
1995 is the base year upon which assessed just value of the homestead property is
determined.
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S.

PROPERTY TAXES (continued)
B. Property Tax Calendar:

The Tax Collector remits collected taxes at least monthly to the City. The City
recognizes property tax revenue as it is received from the Tax Collector since virtually
all taxes levied will be collected through the tax collection process. The calendar of
events is as follows:

January 1 Property taxes are based on assessed value at this date as determined by the
Duval County Property Appraiser.

July 1 Assessment roll approved by the state.

September 30 Millage resolution approved by the City Council.

October 1 Beginning of fiscal year for which taxes have been levied.

November 30 Last day for 4% maximum discount.

April 1 Unpaid property taxes become delinquent.

May 31 Tax certificates are sold by the Duval County Tax Collector. This is the first

lien date on the properties.

CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows (in thousands):

Retirements
Balance and Other Balance
October 1,2000 Additions Deletions September 30, 2001

Land $ 98,883 $§ 19,243 $ 4943 $§ 113,183
Buildings and improvements 463,002 3,937 - 466,939
Furniture and equipment 53,034 5,021 4,578 53,477
Total $614919 $28,201 $ 9,521 $ 633,599

Under an agreement with a not-for-profit corporation, Shands Jacksonville, formerly known
as University Medical Center, the City leases to Shands certain general fixed assets,
principally land and buildings, over a term to September 30, 2027 with an option to renew
for an additional forty years to 2067 at $1 per year. In addition, Shands is to be a full service
hospital in support of the indigent care programs of the City of Jacksonville and Duval
County under the agreement. Shands is to maintain, in good condition, and make
improvements and betterments to the Hospital as necessary over the life of the lease. The
fixed assets of Shands are included in the General Fixed Assets of the City and total $232.4
million at September 30, 2001, and consist of all property real, personal or mixed and other
facilities whether presently or subsequently owned, operated or leased by Shands during the
term of the lease. At termination of the lease, all such demised and leased property shall
revert to the City.
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

A summary of interfund transactions follows (in thousands):

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS AMOUNT DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
GENERAL FUND
General Fund $ 1  Fleet Management
General Fund 10 Information Technologies
General Fund 15 Legal
Total 26
SPECIAL REVENUE
Community Development Block Grant 1,815  Self Insurance
Total 1,815
CAPITAL PROJECTS
Grant Capital Improvement Projects 1,173 Self Insurance
Total 1,173
TRUST AND AGENCY
Tax Collector 3,176  General Fund
Clerk of the Circuit Court 1,879  General Fund
Clerk of the Circuit Court 276  General Government - Budgeted
Clerk of the Circuit Court 3 General Government - Non-Budgeted
Clerk of the Circuit Court 224  Police and Fire
Total 5,558
TOTAL $ 8,572
ADVANCES FROM OTHER FUNDS AMOUNT ADVANCES TO OTHER FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS
General Projects $ 13,083  Self Insurance
TOTAL $ 13,083
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

TRANSFERS IN

GENERAL FUND
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Total

SPECIAL REVENUE
Air Pollution Control and Monitoring
Sports, Convention and Tourism Development
General Government - Budgeted
Public Safety
Tax Increment Districts
Jacksonville Children's Commission
Jacksonville Children's Commission
Community Development Block Grant
Metropolitan Planning Organization
Other Federal, State and Local Grants
Other Federal, State and Local Grants
Other Federal, State and Local Grants
General Government - Non-Budgeted
General Government - Non-Budgeted
Total

DEBT SERVICE

Special Bonded Debt Obligations
Special Bonded Debt Obligations
Special Bonded Debt Obligations
Special Bonded Debt Obligations

Special Bonded Debt Obligations
Special Bonded Debt - Better Jax Obligations
Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations
Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations
Total

AMOUNT

$ 100
250

42

171

83
650

400
570
268

14
12,839
50

75

105
3,117
321

31

50

12

17,859

51,444
8,712
601
1,307

1,848
5,831
2,973
3,231

75,947
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TRANSFERS OUT

Concurrency Management

General Government - Budgeted
Community Development Block Grant
Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
Legal

Self Insurance

Police and Fire Pension

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Other Federal, State and Local Grants
Tax Increment Districts

General Fund

General Fund

Jacksonville Children's Commission
Expendable Trust

General Fund

Other Federal, State and Local Grants

General Fund

Sports, Convention and Tourism Development

Tax Increment Districts

Public Parking System

Sports Complex, Convention Center and
Auditorium

Better Jacksonville Trust Fund

General Fund

Tax Increment Districts
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

TRANSFERS IN
CAPITAL PROJECTS
General Projects 15,332
General Projects 204
General Projects 205
General Projects 125
General Projects 259
General Projects 10
General Projects 17,362
General Projects 61
Grant Projects 817
Grant Projects 60
Grant Projects 136
Better Jax Construction Projects 3,866
Better Jax Construction Projects 23,700
Total 62,137
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Public Parking System 1,045
Public Parking System 412
Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium 4,335
Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium 140
Solid Waste Disposal 28,283
Mayport Ferry 657
Total 34,872
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Fleet Management 586
Fleet Management 197
Fleet Management 37
Fleet Management 4,224
Information Technologies 70
Information Technologies 3
Information Technologies 1
Information Technologies 1
Information Technologies 2
Information Technologies 2
Self Insurance 1,072
Total 6,195
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Expendable Trust 289
Expendable Trust 1,197
Total 1,486
TOTAL $

- 69 -

199,146

AMOUNT TRANSFERS OUT

General Fund

Concurrency Management

Sports, Convention and Tourism Development
Tax Increment Districts

Bond Projects

Solid Waste Disposal

Self Insurance

Expendable Trust

General Fund

Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
Other Federal, State and Local Grants
Transportation

Better Jacksonville Trust Fund

General Fund
Self Insurance
General Fund
Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
General Fund
General Fund

General Fund

General Government - Budgeted
Solid Waste Disposal

Self Insurance

General Fund

General Government - Budgeted
Other Federal, State and Local Grants
Solid Waste Disposal

Fleet Management

Legal

General Fund

General Fund
General Projects
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

A summary of intra-entity transactions follows (in thousands):

DUE FROM COMPONENT UNITS

Community Development Block Grant

Total

OTHER

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group -
Due to Component Unit - Note Payable

Total

TRANSFERS IN FROM COMPONENT UNIT

General Fund
Grant Capital Improvements Projects

Total

TRANSFERS OUT TO COMPONENT UNIT

General Fund

General Fund

Transportation

Better Jax Construction Projects
Better Jax Construction Projects
State Housing Initiative Partnership

Total

AMOUNT

$ 584

$ 584

$ 400

$ 400

AMOUNT

$ 73,638
$43

$ 73,681

AMOUNT

$ 6,307
286
17,128
9,725
36,765
313

$ 70,524
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DUE TO PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc.

OTHER

DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT
JEA - Due from Primary Government -
Note Receivable

TRANSFERS OUT TO PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

JEA
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission

TRANSFERS IN FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Jacksonville Economic Development Commission
Jacksonville Transportation Authority - Mass Transit System
Jacksonville Transportation Authority - Mass Transit System
Jacksonville Transportation Authority - Mass Transit System
Jacksonville Transportation Authority - Expressway System
Duval County Housing Finance Authority



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

During fiscal year 1999, the self-insurance fund advanced $14,000,000 to the capital projects
fund for the purpose of fulfilling City obligations under a redevelopment agreement for a
new 900-room hotel with substantial convention and business space. The total capital
investment for the project is $126.0 million. The City Council passed an ordinance to treat
the funding from the self insurance fund as a loan which will be repaid from general fund
revenues commencing on May 1, 2000 in equal annual installments over 20 years, plus
simple interest of 4.45%. The balance of this advance was $13,083,000 at September 30,
2001.

During fiscal year 2001, the City had financial transactions with its discretely presented
component units classified as follows for financial reporting purposes:

JEA:

Note Payable - At September 30, 2001, the City's outstanding obligation to the JEA
under a note payable was $400,000, which is accounted for in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. During fiscal 2001, the City made a $400,000 payment on
the note payable to the JEA recorded in the City's General Fund. The terms of the note
were revised in prior years at which time the remaining $3,600,000 was to be repaid in
nine equal installments of $400,000 with the final installment due and payable on or
before October 1, 2001. The note bears interest at the coupon equivalent yield for 26-
week U.S. Treasury Bills.

Commercial Paper Program - In fiscal year 1994, JEA and the City worked together
to develop a mutually beneficial structure for the City's Commercial Paper Program to
provide financing for the River City Renaissance (RCR) Program. Currently, JEA makes
an annual contribution to the City's General Fund based upon gross kilowatt-hours sold
by JEA during the 12-month period ending on May 31 of each fiscal year. As part of the
RCR Program, the City and JEA have entered into an agreement, which requires JEA to
pay a supplemental contribution after October 1, 1997, to offset any increase in financing
costs for the RCR Program incurred by the City as a result of the initial financing of the
RCR Program with commercial paper. To the extent that funding costs for the RCR
Program would result in debt service being greater than $17,403,000 the supplemental
contribution would be equal to the amount in excess of $17,403,000. For fiscal year 2001
no additional supplemental contribution was required.

Enhanced Joint Agency Financing Program - On November 5, 1996, JEA and the City
executed a Financial Agreement in relation to the use of an “enhanced joint agency
financing program” (the “EJ Program™) in conjunction with the issuance of $57,150,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B for the benefit of various marine facilities
for the Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA). The City and JEA have agreed that JEA’s
annual contribution to the City under Article 21 of the City Charter and Section
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)
JEA: (continued)

106.202(c) of the City Ordinance Code will be supplemented to offset any shortfall in
certain cash flows in the City revenues dedicated for the benefit of the JPA (See
discussion below concerning the allocation of three sources of revenue by the City to the
JPA). As of September 30, 2001, revenues dedicated for the support of debt service
requirements of the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds have been sufficient so as to avoid
the need to call upon supplemental contributions from JEA in support of the EJ Program.

Jacksonville Port Authority:

Interlocal Agreement - In connection with a major port and marine facilities capital
improvement project (the Project), the City and the Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA)
entered into an Interlocal Agreement upon the issuance of $43,605,140 Excise Taxes
Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. Subsequent to this transaction, the parties entered into an
Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement in conjunction with the issuance of
$57,150,000 Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B. Under the Amended and
Restated Interlocal Agreement, the City agreed to issue the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B
Bonds to finance the port and marine facilities capital improvement project, and the JPA,
in consideration therefore, agreed to reimburse the City for debt service payments on the
1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds from certain revenues allocated to the JPA. Any
insufficiency in the extent of such revenues allocated to the JPA under the Amended and
Restated Interlocal Agreement or any changes in the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement does not affect in any manner any obligation of the City pursuant to the terms
of the 1993 Bonds or the 1996B Bonds. The Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement is not for the benefit of the holders of the 1993 Bonds or the 1996B Bonds
and the JPA has no obligation under that Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement
to any third party bondholder. The revenues allocated to the JPA and supplemental
contributions to the City from the JEA in conjunction with the EJ Program are not
pledged as security for the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds.

The Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement provides for the allocation of three
sources of revenue (collectively referred to as the “pledged revenues™) by the City to the
JPA. The first source of revenue relates to the allocation of half of the increased revenues
from the change in method of collection of the City's public utilities services tax on
telecommunications services from 10% to 7% percent (the "Authority Allocation No. 1").
The second source of revenue relates to the amount calculated by multiplying one quarter
(:25) mills by the gross kilowatt hours (as defined in Article 21 of the City Charter) sold
by JEA during the twelve month period ending May 31 of the prior fiscal year (the
“Authority Allocation No. 2"). The third source of revenue relates to the $800,000 annual
contribution remitted to the JPA as described in Section 5(a) of the JPA act. Such
pledged revenues are to be applied by the City to the payment of debt service on the
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7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)
Jacksonville Port Authority: (continued)

1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds for such fiscal year prior to being paid to the JPA. To
the extent that the debt service on the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds in any fiscal
year exceeds the allocation of revenues to the JPA for such fiscal year, then the amount
of such deficiency shall be paid by the JEA to the City. The 1996B bonds were refunded
by the Excise Taxes Refunding Bonds, Series 2001A.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, the allocation of revenues from the City
to the JPA exceeded the debt service requirements of the 1993 Bonds, 1996B Bonds and
the 2001A Bonds by the amount of $2.8 million for a cumulative total of $7.5 million at
September 30, 2001. This amount will be applied to future debt service requirements of
the 1993 Bonds, 1996B Bonds and the 2001A Bonds through a funds transfer to the
City's Debt Service Funds or released to the JPA for capital projects in the event that
such amounts are in excess of anticipated debt service requirements in the near future.

In previous years, the City expended $43.1 million on the Project from proceeds of the
1993 Bonds for the benefit of the JPA under the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement, which completed the 1993 Bond Program. In previous years, the City
expended $13.5 million on the Project from proceeds of the 1996B Bonds for the benefit
of the JPA under the Interlocal Agreement for a total of $64.0 million spent on the
Project to date. The City accounts for these expenditures in the Capital Projects Funds.
The City does not capitalize these capital outlay expenditures.

Jacksonville Transportation Authority:

Local Option One-Half Cent Sales Tax - On August 11, 1989, Jacksonville citizens
voted removal of all tolls from county/city bridges and certain roads and replaced the
revenue with a local option one-half cent sales tax that provides a permanent funding
source for the construction and maintenance of the City's roads and bridges; the operation
and maintenance of the bus system and the refinancing of existing bonds issued for the
construction of such bridges and roads. All collections from the one-half cent sales tax
are statutorily required to be remitted to the JTA. Accordingly, the City remitted all
collections from the one-half cent sales tax to the JTA in the amount of $57.5 million in
fiscal 2001. Such collection and payment by the City of this local option one-half cent
sales tax is recorded in the Transportation Special Revenue Fund as revenue and a
transportation expenditure in an equal amount. The JTA reports the $57.5 million transfer
from the City as sales tax revenue.
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7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)
Jacksonville Transportation Authority: (continued)

In fiscal year 2000, the City of Jacksonville and the Jacksonville Transportation
Authority entered into an interlocal agreement for the purposes of jointly exercising the
separate powers of each to the maximum extent allowable by law in the development,
scheduling, financing, planning, permitting, design, construction, and implementation
of a $750 million Road, Bridge and Drainage Capital Improvement Work Program. The
term of the agreement commenced on October 1, 2000 and continues in effect until all
of the Bonds have been duly paid in full or defeased in accordance with their terms. The
City and JTA agreed to pledge the Sales Tax and the Constitutional Gas Tax to the
payment of Bonds issued to implement the Program. Monies available above debt
service would be collected in a Pay-as-you-Go fund to assist with the payment of
Program expenditures. The City is making available the Local Option Gas Tax for the
operation of the JTA’s Mass Transit Division.

Jacksonville Economic Development Company, Inc.:

Short-Term Construction Loan Financing Program - On January 12, 1994, the City
entered into a loan agreement with the Jacksonville Economic Development Company,
Inc. (JEDCO) under the City's Short-Term Construction Loan Financing Program. Under
the terms of the loan agreement, the City is obligated to loan up to $1 million with
interest to JEDCO to provide affordable housing to low and moderate income persons.
During fiscal year 2001, the City did not disburse funds to JEDCO under the loan
agreement with a remaining loan commitment balance of $416 thousand at September
30, 2001. JEDCO is obligated to the City for $584 thousand at September 30, 2001.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2001 are comprised of the following (in thousands):

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE INTEREST
FROM AD VALOREM TAXES: RATES PRINCIPAL

Duval County Certificates of Indebtedness of 1972
payable in semi-annual installments to 2003 4.50-5.25% $ 1,195

Total General Obligation Bonds Payable
From Ad Valorem Taxes 1,195

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE
FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1991
payable in semi-annual installments to 2009 6.30% 1,535

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992
payable in semi-annual installments to 2014 6.00 - 6.50% 60,890

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1992A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2013 5.40 - 5.90% 62,115

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1993
payable in semi-annual installments to 2021 5.00 - 6.30% 42,795

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2012 4.70 - 5.375% 24,320

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1994

payable in semi-annual installments to 2026 5.05-5.875% 43,565
Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1994 Variable Rate
payable in monthly installments to 2006 Assumed at 9.20% 4,705

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995
payable in semi-annual installments to 2026 5.00 -5.875% 26,680

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1995
payable in semi-annual installments to 2019 5.00 - 6.00% 17,415

Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010 4.875-5.125% 7,580
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2001 (continued)

SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS PAYABLE
FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES

OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES: (continued)

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A

payable in semi-annual installments to 2002

Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1995A

payable in semi annual installments to 2012

Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1995B (AMT)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2016

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1996
payable in semi-annual installments to 2019

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996C
payable in semi-annual installments to 2007

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997
payable in semi-annual installments to 2026

Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-1
payable in monthly installments to 2017

Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2
payable in monthly installments to 2022

Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1998

payable in semi-annual installments to 2025

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds,
Series 1999A payable in semi-annual installments to 2019

Local Government Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2001 payable in semi-annual installments to 2018

Excise Taxes Refunding Bonds, Series 2001A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2009

Total Special Obligation Bonds Payable From Specific

Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes

INTEREST
RATES

4.40%

4.75-5.65%

4.60-5.75%

4.35-5.50%

4.75-4.90%

4.35-4.85%

4.20-525%

Variable Rate

Assumed at 7.81%

Variable Rate

Assumed at 8.89%

3.90 - 5.00%

3.30-5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

5.00%

PRINCIPAL

$ 3,235

9,050

12,460

30,015

6,235

2,870

7,820

28,890

44,300

36,285

70,040

103,725

42,485

689,010
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2001 (continued)

SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS PAYABLE
FROM OTHER SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
payable in semi-annual installments to 2031

Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
payable in semi-annual installments to 2030

Total Special Obligation Bonds Payable From Other Specific
Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes

TOTAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS
BONDS PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2012

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2017

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds,
Series 1999B payable in semi-annual installments to 2016

TOTAL BONDS PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS

TOTAL BONDS PAYABLE
NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE:

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1994A (Vistakon)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2003

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1995 (Coach)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2014

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996 (Sally Beauty)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2012
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INTEREST

3.00-5.25%

3.00-5.50%

4.70 - 5.375%

4.25-5.125%

4.00 - 5.50%

4.20-5.75%

6.44 - 6.53 % (Taxable)

8.24 - 9.03 % (Taxable)

6.23 - 6.88% (Taxable)

PRINCIPAL

$ 179,280

218,430

397,710

1,087,915

11,270

12,270

19,330

40,115

82,985

1,170,900

3,000

3,690

800
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2001 (continued)

NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE: (continued)

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996-B (Hilton Hotel)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2015

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Lavilla)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2016

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (HTV Associates)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Armor Holdings)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2016

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Hampton Inns)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2015

TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE

TOTAL BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

COMMERCIAL PAPER NOTES:

Outstanding in the amounts of $60,000,000 with interest rates ranging from

2.05% t0 2.85% at original issue and maturing no later than 270 days after
date of issuance, and in no event later than October 1, 2018; renewable
annually, at the City's option, per credit agreement dated October 27, 1993

CAPITALIZED LEASE OBLIGATIONS:

Internal Service Fund:
Installment lease purchase of voice mail system payable monthly

at $7,563 to October 2001 including interest at 6.18% with a collateralized

value of $8 thousand

Installment lease purchase of software payable monthly at $19,054 to

6.23 - 7.03 % (Taxable)

6.23 - 7.08 % (Taxable)

6.23 - 6.78% (Taxable)

6.23 - 7.08% (Taxable)

6.23 - 7.03% (Taxable)

May 2004 including interest at 5.60% with a collateralized value of $565 thousand
Installment lease purchase of telephone switches and wiring payable monthly

at $5,423 to February 2005 including interest at 5.20% with a collateralized
value of $204 thousand
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$ 2,650

1,105

530

740

510

13,025

1,183,925

60,000

565

204
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2001:

CAPITALIZED LEASE OBLIGATIONS: (continued)
Installment lease purchase of Unisys storage area network payable monthly
at $19,019 to January 2006 including interest at 5.95% with a collateralized $ 826
value of $826 thousand

Installment lease purchase of Verizon telephone switches payable monthly

at $8,5889 to October 2004 including interest at 6.42% with a collaterized 268
value of $268 thousand
Total Capitalized Lease Obligations 1,871

ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES:

Represents the vested portion of accrued vacation and sick leave. See Note 1.M.
for a summary of the City's policy regarding compensated absences.

General Governmental Funds 54,264
Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds 3,672
Total Accrued Compensated Absences 57,936

DUE TO COMPONENT UNITS:
JEA: For a term of up to five years with a minimum annual principal
installment of $400,000, interest payable on each October 1, equal to
yield on the 26-week Treasury Bill 400

TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 1,304,132

Less Current Portion:

Bonds payable from enterprise funds $3,315

Capitalized lease obligations 539

Accrued compensated absences 438
Total Current Portion: (4,292)
Total, less current portion 1,299,840

Less Unamortized Discount/Premium and Deferred
Loss on Advance Refunding (3,159)

Total, less current portion and Unamortized Discount/
Premium and Deferred Loss on Advance Refunding $ 1,296,681
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

B. Debt Service Requirement to Maturity:

Debt service requirement to maturity on the City's Long-Term Obligations at
September 30, 2001, are as follows (in thousands):

General Commercial
Long-Term Bonds Bonds Paper and Total
Fiscal Year Special Payable From Other Long-Term
Ending General Special Obligation Enterprise Long-Term Obligations
September 30 Obligation Obligation BJP Funds Obligations And Interest
2002 $633 $ 67,938 $ 20,462 $ 7,405 $ 62,805 $ 159,243
2003 - 2006 618 276,434 98,739 31,338 6,027 413,156
2007 - 2011 - 319,702 120,442 45,737 6,597 492,478
2012 - 2016 - 224,710 118,963 28,687 4,631 376,991
2017 - 2026 - 218,626 472,013 5,447 - 696,086
Total Principal and Interest 1,251 1,107,410 830,619 118,614 80,060 2,137,954
Less: Interest to Be Paid (56) (418,400) (432,909) (35,629) (7,035) (894,029)
Total Principal 1,195 689,010 397,710 82,985 73,025 1,243,925
Less: Current Portion - - - 3,315) - (3,315)
1,195 689,010 397,710 79,670 73,025 1,240,610
Unamortized Discount/Premium
and Deferred Loss on Advance
Refunding - - - (3,159) - (3,159)
Totals $1,195 $ 689,010 $ 397,710 $76,511 $ 73,025 $ 1,237,451
Long-Term Obligations Not Included Above:
Accrued Compensated Absences 57,498
Due to Component Units 400
Capitalized Lease Obligations 1,332
TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS, Less current portion $ 1,296,681

® public Parking System $1,344 and Solid Waste Disposal $1,815
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

C. Changes in Long-Term Obligations:

Changes in long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, are
summarized as follows (in thousands):

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2000 Additions Deductions 2001

General Long-Term Obligations:

Commercial Paper Notes $ 60,000 $ - $ - $ 60,000

General Obligation Bonds 1,755 - 560 1,195

Special Obligation Bonds 718,300 146,210 175,500 689,010

Special Obligaton -BJP - 397,710 - 397,710

Notes Payable 16,565 - 3,540 13,025

Capitalized Lease Obligations 239 - 239 -

Accrued Compensated Absences 53,017 1,247 - 54,264

Due to Component Units 800 - 400 400
Total General Long-Term Obligations 850,676 545,167 180,239 1,215,604
Long-Term Obligations of Proprietary

and Fiduciary Fund Types:

Revenue Bonds, less current portion 82,985 - 3,315 79,670

Unamortized Discount/Premium and,

Deferred Loss on Advance Refunding (3,421) 262 - (3,159)

Total Revenue Bonds, less current portion,

and Unamortized Discount/Premium and,

Deferred Loss on Advance Refunding 79,564 262 3,315 76,511

Capitalized Lease Obligations 771 1,094 539 1,332

Accrued Compensated Absences 3,016 218 - 3,234
Total Long-Term Obligations of
Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Types 83,357 1,574 3,854 81,077
TOTAL LONG-TERM

OBLIGATIONS, less current portion $ 934,033 $ 546,741 $ 184,093 $ 1,296,681

Additions and deletions of accrued compensated absences are shown net since it is impractical

for the City to determine these amounts separately.
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

D. New Indebtedness and Refundings Issued by the City:

On April 24, 2001 the City closed on the sale of $103,725,000 Local Government Sales
Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 with a true interest cost of 4.57%. The 2001
Sales Tax bonds carry coupon rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.50% with maturity dates
ranging from October 1, 2001 through October 1, 2018. The proceeds were used to
defease with an advance refunding $74,330,000 of previously outstanding Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 and $29,650,000 of previously outstanding Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 1996. The issuance provided net proceeds for the refunding of
$108,774,619 (after payment of $1,435,411 in underwriter’s discounts, accrued interest,
insurance and costs of issuance) which was used to purchase securities that were placed
in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service payments
on the applicable portion of the 1995 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds and 1996 Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds. As a result of the refunding, the City realized an economic gain
(difference between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of
$2,700,645 or 2.60% as a percentage of bonds refunded. The present value savings were
used to lower future debt service.

On July 3, 2001, the City closed on the sale of $42,485,000 in Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 A (AMT) with a true interest cost of 4.34%. The 2001A
bonds carry a coupon rate of 5% with maturity dates ranging from October 1, 2003
through October 1, 2009. The proceeds were used to defease with a current refunding
$43,090,000 of previously outstanding Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B
(AMT). The issuance provided net proceeds for the refunding of $44,364,146 (after
payment of $433,365 in underwriter’s discounts, accrued interest, insurance and costs of
issuance) which was used to purchase securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service payments on the applicable
portion of the 1996B Excise Tax Revenue Bonds. As a result of the refunding, the City
realized an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt
service payments) of $1,728,928 or 4.01% as a percentage of bonds refunded. The
present value savings were used to lower future debt service.

The City issued the first bond issues in connection with the $2.2 billion Better
Jacksonville Plan. On June 5" the City closed on $218,430,000 Better Jacksonville
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 with a true interest cost of 5.26%. The 2001
Better Jacksonville Bonds carry coupon rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.50% and maturity
dates beginning in October 1, 2001 through October 1, 2030. The issuance provided net
proceeds of $200,000,000 (after payment of $17,081,960 for a debt service reserve fund,
underwriter’s discounts, costs of issuance and bond insurance) to fund the initial costs
of $750 million in roadway improvements, $525 million in new public facilities, $60
million in targeted economic development and $165 million in environment/quality of
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
D. New Indebtedness and Refundings Issued by the City: (continued)

life projects. The new public facilities to be built are a new main library, courthouse,
arena and baseball stadium. This bond will be repaid by a recently enacted half-cent
increase in the sales tax.

In addition, the City closed on June 5™ on $179,280,000 Transportation Revenue Bonds,
Series 2001 with a true interest cost of 5.38%. The 2001 Transportation Revenue Bonds
carry coupon rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.25% and maturity dates beginning October
1, 2002 and ending October 1, 2031. The issuance provided net proceeds of
$140,000,000 (after payment of $19,660,478 for a debt service reserve fund,
underwriter’s discounts, costs of issuance and bond insurance) to fund the initial costs
of $750 million in roadway improvements. In addition, $15,866,500 was provided to
defease $15,000,0000 in advance refunding of the State of Florida , Series 1992 issued
on behalf of the Jacksonville Transportation Authority. As a result of the refunding, an
economic gain was realized (difference between the present values of the old and new
debt service payments) of $790,869 or 5.27% as a percentage of bonds refunded. An
existing half-cent sales tax and constitutional gas tax will repay these bonds.

The City anticipates future debt activity to continue funding the Better Jacksonville Plan,
refinancing various bonds and additional needs for drainage and park improvements.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

E. DEFEASED DEBT:

The City has defeased certain serial bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets
and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements.

The City presently has outstanding the following serial bonds, which are legally defeased (in thousands):

ISSUE (a)

INVESTMENT
PRINCIPAL BALANCE WITH
BALANCE AT ESCROW AGENT AT

REFUNDED BY SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 (b)

Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 1977

Capital Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 1994

Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 1991

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds,
Series 1995 & Series 1996

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds,
Series 1996B

1984 C Excise Tax Revenue
Refunding Bonds

1999 Capital Improvement and
Revenue Refunding Bonds

1999A Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding Bonds

2001 Local Government Sales Tax
Revenue Refunding Bonds

2001A Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding Bonds

$ 18,980 $ 13,751
31,030 32,208
13,950 14,695

103,980 108,775
43,090 44,364

(a) Special Obligation Bonds payable from Specific Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes

(b) Source: Escrow Agent's Records
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

F. Lease Obligations:

At September 30, 2001, the City has several capital lease agreements in place. The
leases meet the criteria of a capital lease as defined by FASB Statement No. 13,
Accounting for Leases, which defines a capital lease generally as one which transfers
benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee. The lease agreements contain options that
allow the City to cancel the leases if sufficient funds are not appropriated. Since
cancellation of the leases is not foreseen, the leases have been capitalized. Further, upon
satisfaction of the lease obligations, asset title will pass to the City.

The City has a voice mail system, software, storage area network and two telephone
switches and wiring systems, which were acquired through capital leases (recorded in the
Information Technologies Internal Service Fund). The carrying value for these items
(capitalized cost less accumulated depreciation) is $1.2 million at September 30, 2001.
Depreciation of the items acquired through these capital leases was $915 thousand in
fiscal year 2001. '

The future minimum lease obligations as of September 30, 2001, were as follows (in
thousands):

Information
Technologies
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, Internal Service Fund
2002 $ 633
2003 625
2004 532
2005 255
2006 19
Total minimum lease payments 2,064
Less: Amount representing interest ( 193)
Present value of minimum lease
Payments $1,871
Classified as:
Current $539
Non-current 1332
Total $ 1,871

The City does not have any material operating leases.
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

G. Arbitrage Liability:

The City had no outstanding arbitrage liability as of September 30, 2001.

. Conduit Debt:

The City issued certain conduit debt in the form of industrial development revenue bonds
(IDB's) and private activity bonds (PAB's) to provide financial assistance to private-
sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities
deemed to be in the public interest. Conduit debt refers to certain limited-obligation
revenue bonds or similar debt instruments issued by the City for the express purpose of
providing capital financing for a specific nongovernmental third party. Although conduit
debt bears the name of the City as issuer, it is collateralized by the resources provided
by the loan with the third party on whose behalf they are issued. The City acts solely as
a conduit issuer with respect to the debt.

Conduit debt is collateralized by the property financed and is payable solely from
payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the IDB's and
PAB's, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served
by the bond issue. None of the assets or revenues of the City are pledged to the payment
of IDB's or PAB's and under the constitution and laws of Florida, the City may not
legally pledge any of its revenues or assets to the payment thereof. Neither the City, the
State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of
the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying
financial statements.

Effective January 1, 1983, the City pursuant to Chapter 159, Florida Statutes, assumed
responsibility for approving applications for IDB's and PAB's previously made through
the Jacksonville Port Authority. As of September 30, 2001, the City had authorized
$1,349,173,120 in IDB's and PAB's, of which $1,126,171,902 have been issued. From
time to time, certain of such conduit debt may be in technical default or under
investigation as to tax-exempt status of interest on such debt, however, this has no effect
on the City's financial position.

As of September 30, 2001, the City has authorized a total of $1,117,480,970 Duval
County Housing Finance Authority (DCHFA) Single Family and Multi-Family Bonds
of which $1,036,535,293 have been issued. The amount of Single Family Housing
Revenue Bonds authorized and issued are $824,000,000 and $769,030,331, respectively.
The amount of Multi-Family Housing Bonds authorized and issued is $293,488,970 and
$270,064,961, respectively. The amount of Single Family Housing Revenue Bonds
authorized and issued during the fiscal year ended 2001 are $27,000,000 and
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
H. Conduit Debt: (continued)

$26,660,000, respectively. The amount of Multi-Family Housing Bonds authorized and
issued during the fiscal year ended 2001 are $17,000,000 and $16,645,000, respectively.
Refundings of previous issues make up $228,811,526 of the total amount authorized and
issued.

As of September 30, 2001, the City has authorized $619,535,000 of Jacksonville Health
Facilities Authority (JHFA) Bonds, of which $493,216,184 have been issued. The
amount both authorized and issued during the fiscal year was $120,515,000. Of the total
amount of JHFA Bonds, refundings of previous issues make up $403,365,834 of the
authorizations and $328,074,166 of the issuances.

I. Special Assessment Debt - The City has no special assessment debt.
J. Demand Bonds - The City has no demand bonds.

PENSION PLANS

The City sponsors two employer public employee retirement systems (PERS), administered
by two separate and distinct pension boards of trustees, that provide retirement, death, and
disability benefits: the General Employees' Pension Plan and the Police and Fire Pension
Plan. Substantially all employees of the City participate in one of these two plans. In
addition, less than 1% of City employees participate in the State of Florida Retirement
System.

Under both the General Employees' and Police and Fire Pension Plans, the State of Florida
requires Plan contributions be made based upon an actuarial valuation and any contribution
shortfalls are the responsibility of the City to fund.

The General Employees’ Pension Plan and Police and Fire Pension Plan are considered to
be a part of the City’s financial reporting entity, as discussed in Note 1.B. Effective for the
fiscal year ending September 30, 1997, these PERS adopted GASB Statement No. 25,
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans, intended to provide information
needed to assess (1) funding status of a PERS on a long-term, going-concern basis; (2)
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due; and (3) whether
employers are making actuarially determined contributions. These PERS also follow GASB
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers,
which requires measurement and disclosure of an amount for annual pension cost on the
accrual basis of accounting, regardless of the amount recognized as pension expenditures.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(1)

)

Basis of Accounting -The City's financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the
period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to each plan
are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to
provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reported at fair value. Short-
term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities,
traded on a national or international exchange, are valued at the last reported
sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future
principal and interest payments, and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for
similar instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on
independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an established market are
reported at estimated fair value.

B. General Employees Pension Plan:

(M

Plan Description - The General Employees' Pension Plan is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan. All full-time City
employees and the employees of JEA are eligible to participate in the Plan upon
employment. There are no separately issued financial statements for the General
Employees Pension Plan. The Plan is administered by a seven-member board of
trustees.

The payroll for members covered by the Plan was $202.3 million during the 2000
fiscal year, consisting of $117.6 million City of Jacksonville payroll, $81.3
million JEA payroll and $3.4 million JHA payroll. The total 2000 payroll was
$275.3 million for the City, $92.7 million for the JEA and $14.8 million for JHA
for a total of $382.8 million.

The Plan provides for retirement, survivor, death and disability benefits. Under
normal retirement provisions, a member may retire after reaching the age of 55
with 20 years of credited service or at 65 with 5 years or more of credited service.
The requirements for early retirement are: (1) when an employee reaches age 50
and has 20 years of service, reduced 1/2% per month for retirement prior to age
55; (2) any age after 25 years of service adjusted to a benefit accrual rate of 2%
per year; and (3) any age after 30 years of creditable service at an unreduced rate
of 2 1/2% per year.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. General Employees Pension Plan: (continued)

2

Benefits vest after 10 years of credited service equal to 2 1/2% of a member's
average earnings for each year of credited service up to 32 years with a maximum
of 80%. Average earnings is the average monthly salary or wages for the highest
36 months of employment within the ten years preceding retirement. The regular
benefit is increased by up to 3% on the April 1 nearest the fifth anniversary of the
initial benefit commencement date, and on each April 1 thereafter. A monthly
supplement is payable equal to $3 times the number of years of creditable service
to subsidize retiree's health insurance. However, only that portion of the increase
in excess of the supplement is payable. Members who terminate covered
employment with less than ten years of credited service shall be paid a refund of
100% of their contributions to the Plan. All members of the General Employees'
Pension Plan are required to contribute 8% of their earnings actuarially
determined and required by City Ordinance effective October 1, 1993. There is
no mandatory retirement age.

At September 30, 2000, the Plan's membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
and terminated employees with future benefits 4,148

Current employees:

Vested 2,994
Nonvested 2,403
Total Current Employees 5,397
Total Membership 9,545

Contributions - The City's funding policy provides for contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are
adequate to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Level
percentages of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the
"entry age" actuarial cost method. Under this method, the cost of each member's
projected retirement benefit is funded through a series of payments, determined
as a level percentage of each year's earnings, from age at hire to assumed exit
age. The level-percentage-of-payroll method is also used to amortize the
unfunded liability and changes in Plan provisions, actuarial assumptions and
gains and losses over a period of 30 years. If the Plan is in a surplus position, the
surplus is recognized as an amortization credit in a level dollar amount over 10
years.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. General Employees Pension Plan: (continued)

©)

City contribution requirements are, as part of the funding policy, met through two
sources; cash payments from the City, and allocations from the past excess
contribution account, maintained as part of the pension fund in accordance with
State requirements to track prior payments made in excess of the actuarially
required amounts. Contributions from all sources during fiscal year 2000 totaled
$29.8 million. The City contributed $11.7 million (5.67% of covered payroll) in
cash, and $.7 million (.37% of covered payroll) from the past excess
contributions account. Employees paid $17.4 million ($16.4 million or 8% of
covered payroll in payroll deductions and $1.0 million in prior service
purchases). Contributions during fiscal 1999 and 1998 were $34.2 million (17.3%
of covered payroll) and $45.2 million (19.9% of covered payroll), respectively.
These contributions were made in accordance with contribution requirements
determined through an actuarial valuation performed October 1, 1999. The
actuarial methods used for this purpose are the same as those used in determining
funding progress.

Trend Information - Trend information gives an indication of the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Six-year historical
trend information is being developed on a year by year basis and is included in
the accompanying required supplemental information.

C. Police and Fire Pension Plan:

(M

Plan Description - The Police and Fire Pension Plan (the “Plan”) is a single-
employer contributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time civil-
service members of the City of Jacksonville’s Sheriff’s Office and Fire and
Rescue Departments. The Plan is administered solely by a five-member board of
trustees. The City’s payroll for members covered by the Plan was $96.2 million
during the fiscal year, excluding DROP participants. The Plan, as amended
effective April 1, 2001, provides, in general, retirement benefits after twenty
years of credited membership, regardless of age, with a minimum benefit of 60%
of the average salary received for the fifty-two pay periods immediately
preceding retirement. An additional 2% for each completed year over twenty up
to a maximum of 80% may be earned. There is no mandatory retirement age.
Effective October 1, 1996, the Plan provides for a cost of living increase to
pensioners and their beneficiaries of 3% per annum.

Pension benefits may be vested after a minimum of five years of membership.

Benefits are computed based on average salary for the fifty-two pay periods
immediately preceding vesting multiplied by 2.5% times the number of credited
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PENSION PLANS (continued)
C. Police and Fire Pension Plan: (continued)

)

3)

years of service. Employees, in this category, may alternatively select a 100%
payout of member contributions to the Plan without interest, upon withdrawal
from the Plan.

At September 30, 2001, the Plan's membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
and terminated employees with future benefits 1,418

Current Employees:

Vested 1,508
Nonvested 529
DROP Participants 465
Total current employees 2,502
Total membership 3,920

The City is currently contributing 8.75% of Plan members’ salaries. The Plan
members contribute 7.00% of salaries, and DROP participants contribute 2.00%.
Additional contributions are comprised of court fines, State premium tax refunds
and transfers from the Member Reserve Account, the Base Benefit Reserve
Account and the Enhanced Benefit Reserve Account. Investment costs of the
Plan are financed through investment earnings. Other administrative costs are
included in the annual required contribution amount.

The State of Florida requires funding of pension contributions to be made based
upon an actuarial valuation; the most recent valuation is as of April 1, 2001. The
City Council has the authority to amend its contribution to the Plan to not less
than the minimum state requirement.

Net Assets Available for Benefits - Net assets available for benefits are
designated pursuant to an agreement between the Police and Fire Pension Plan
Board of Trustees and the City dated October 1, 1992 (and recently updated
subsequent to September 30, 2001), consisting of the following actuarially
computed components as of September 30, 2001 (in thousands):

Combined Reserve Account V $ 24,409
Base benefits fund 703,253
Total net assets available for benefits $ 727,662

M The value of the Combined Reserve Account is composed of the value of
the City Budget Stabilization Account and the Enhanced Benefit Account.
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PENSION PLANS (continued)
C. Police and Fire Pension Plan: (continued)

(4)

The City stabilization reserve account was established for the purpose of
cushioning actuarial losses in the base benefits fund and giving the City greater
flexibility in its funding of the Plan. The enhanced benefits account was
established to hold any remaining State premium tax refunds not assigned to
offset City contribution requirements. The base benefits fund consists of the
assets pledged to provide fund benefits. The combined balances as of
September 30, 2001, have been calculated under the terms of the 2001 agreement
between the Plan and the City of Jacksonville.

Trend Information - Trend information gives an indication of the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Six-year historical
trend information, on a year by year basis, is included in the accompanying
required supplemental information. See Note 1.B. concerning financial statement
availability.

D. Florida Retirement System:

(M

Plan Description - The City also participates in the Florida Retirement System
(FRS), a multiple-employer cost-sharing retirement system which covers less
than 1% of the City’s full-time employees. FRS is a defined-benefit contributory
retirement plan, administered by the State of Florida, Division of Retirement. The
City payroll for employees covered by FRS was $2.4 million during the fiscal
year; the City’s total payroll for all employees was $280.0 million.

The System provides vesting of benefits after six (6) years of creditable service.
Members are eligible for normal retirement after they have met one of the
following; (1) after thirty years of service regardless of age; (2) six years of
service and age 62; or (3) twenty-five years special risk service (age 55 if not
continuous). Early retirement may be taken any time after completing six years
of service; however, there is a 5% benefit reduction for each year prior to normal
retirement. Benefits are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation
and service credit. Average final compensation is the average of the five highest
years of earnings. The System also provides death and disability benefits.
Benefits are established by State statutes.
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9.

10.

11.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
D. Florida Retirement System: (continued)

(2)  Contributions - During the years ended September 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999, the
City contributed $274 thousand, $321 thousand, and $409 thousand, respectively,
to the System for covered employees. For the fiscal year ended September 30,
2001, this contribution represented less than 1% of the total contributions
required by all participating employers which amounted to $2.1 billion.
Contributions in both fiscal 2000 and 1999 were less than 1% of the total
contributions required by all participating employers which amounted to $2.2 and
$3.2 billion, respectively. The funding methods and the determination of benefits
payable are provided in various Acts of the State Legislature. These Acts provide
that employers make required contributions actuarially determined at the rates in
effect at September 30, 2001, of 7.30% of the compensation for regular members,
18.44% for special risk members, and 15.14% for elected county officials.

3) Trend Information - Ten-year historical trend information showing the System’s
progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented
in the System’s June 30, 2000 annual financial report. The report may be
obtained from the State of Florida, Department of Management Services,
Division of Retirement at 2639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida
32399-1560.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation program created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 and Chapter 112.215, Florida Statutes. During the
year ended September 30, 1999, the City complied with the requirements of subsection (g)
of IRC Section 457 and, accordingly, all assets and income of the plan are held in trust for
the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Pursuant to the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, the financial statements no longer display
deferred compensation balances in an Agency Fund.

POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The City does not provide any post-retirement benefits for retired employees, such as health
care or life insurance, other than those disclosed in Note 9.
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12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The City's enterprise activities consist of five funds: Public Parking System; Sports
Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium; Motor Vehicle Inspection; Solid
Waste Disposal; and Mayport Ferry. Segment information for the year ended
September 30, 2001, is as follows (in thousands):

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
Operating revenue $ 2,969 $ 12,004
Depreciation and amortization expense 405 5,889
Operating income (loss) (146) (10,275)
Operating grants - -
Operating transfers in 1,457 4,475
Operating transfers (out) (1,307) (1,848)
Net income (loss) 454 1,115
Net additions to (reductions in)
contributed capital (165) (6,976)
Net additions (disposals) of property,
plant and equipment 469 6,581
Net working capital (deficiency) 3,714 2,333
Bonds and other long-term liabilities -
payable from operating revenue 21,365 -
Total equity (deficit) 4,173) 226,456
Total assets 18,966 229,475
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681

SOLID TOTALS
WASTE MAYPORT
DISPOSAL FERRY 2001 2000
$ 35,625 $ 1,045 $52,139 $ 47,585
2,036 274 8,621 9,315
(19,567) (851) (30,815) (38,297)
665 - 665 914
28,283 657 34,872 31,646
(48) - (3,203) (2,581)
9,727 (184) 11,154 (2,544)
(734) (243) (8,118) 2,539
13,591 80 20,722 3,870
39,088 6) 45,696 47,220
76,901 - 98,288 101,878
50,874 4,875 278,671 267,517
136,401 5,057 390,580 378,616
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13.

14.

CHANGES IN CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL ACCOUNTS

During the year, contributed capital (decreased) by the following amounts (in thousands):

Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Funds
Balance, October 1, 2000 $ 226,652 $ 11,345
Deductions from contributed assets:
Current year depreciation on contributed assets (8,118) 214)

Balance, September 30, 2001 $218,534 $11,131

The adoption of GASB Statement No. 33 resulted in the reporting of $6.3 million as capital
contributions revenue for fiscal year 2001 rather than as additions to the contributed capital
account.

RISK FINANCING

The Risk Management Division (Division) of the City administers general liability, workers'
compensation (up to $1 million) and public liability insurance programs covering activities
of City general government, JEA, Jacksonville Housing Authority, and Jacksonville Port
Authority under a comprehensive self-insurance program wherein the City assumes
substantially all risks of losses. The City funds assets on a dollar-for-dollar basis for
actuarially determined estimated losses in the City's Self-Insurance Fund, an internal service
fund. The Self-Insurance Fund, established under Jacksonville City Ordinance, Chapter 128,
services claims for tort liability claims brought against the City, its officers, employees, or
agents; workers' compensation; and direct physical damage or injury due to operation of City
vehicles. The City is not involved in any risk pools with other governmental entities. The
City purchases conventional, commercial insurance coverage from various independent
carriers on all other types of insurable risks including group health and life, property and
casualty, and blanket excess policies. There have been no significant reductions in insurance
coverage in the last year. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of
the past three fiscal years.

The City's liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount
of that loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have
been incurred but not reported. Because actual claim liabilities depend on such complex
factors as inflation and changes in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process used to
compute claim liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claim liabilities are
reevaluated periodically with consideration of recently settled claims, the frequency of
claims, and other economic and social factors. The estimated liability for self-insured losses
is not discounted. Independent actuaries use all years of City claims data and the projected
number of employees, payroll, vehicles, and other property to estimate claims that have been
incurred, but not reported and to forecast ultimate losses by line of coverage.
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14.  RISK FINANCING (continued)

The estimated liability for self-insured losses at September 30 (in thousands) consisted of:

2001 2000
Reported and known claims $ 33,553 $ 34,695
Incurred but not reported and claims development 23,237 21,452
Total estimated liability for self insured losses $ 56,790 $ 56,147

Changes in the estimated liability for self-insured losses were as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
Balance, October 1 $ 56,147 $ 65,580
Current-Year Claims and Changes in Estimates 13,990 327
Claim Payments (13,347) (9,760)
Balance, September 30 $ 56,790 $ 56,147

15. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
A. Compliance With Finance Related Legal and Contractual Provisions:
The City has no violations of finance related legal and contractual provisions.
B. Fund Deficits and Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations:

The following individual funds had a fund deficit at September 30, 2001, (in thousands):

Fund Balance/ Total Fund
Retained Earnings Contributed Balance/
(Deficit) Capital Fund Equity
Special Revenue Fund:
Community Development Block Grant ($4,900) $ - ($4,900)
Housing Rehabilitation and Home
Investment and Opportunity Grants (1,365) - (1,365)
Metropolitan Planning Organization 34) - (34)
State Housing Initiative Partnership (1,516) - (1,516)
Capital Projects Fund:
Grant Projects (1,187) - (1,187)
Better Jax Construction Projects (345) - (356)
Enterprise Fund:
Public Parking (6,629) 2,456 4,173)

It is anticipated future revenues will eliminate these fund deficits.

The Public Safety Fund of the Special Revenue Funds had an excess of expenditures over
appropriations of $82 thousand for the year ended September 30, 2001.
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15.

OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
(continued)

C. Reconciliation is necessary because budgets for certain Special Revenue Funds are
prepared on a program basis rather than on an annual basis. The Combined Statement of
Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual — All
Budgeted Governmental Fund Types does not agree with the amounts of revenue and
expenditures reported in the Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - All Governmental Fund Types. The differences between revenue,
expenditures and other financing sources (uses) between the budgetary and nonbudgetary

operating statements are as follows (in thousands):

Total Other
Financing
Revenue Expenditures Sources (Uses)

Actual amounts reported per the Combined
Budget and Actual Statement, page 15 $ 167,614 $ 140,793 ($20,870)

Add Special Revenue Funds not budgeted
on an annual basis:

Community Development Block Grant 10,963 13,962 33
Housing Rehabilitation and Home

Investment and Opportunity Grants (503) 2,805 -
Job Training Partnership Act Grant 25 - -
Maintenance, Parks and Recreation 1,877 1,782 (371)
Metropolitan Planning Organization 1,172 1,275 105
Other Federal, State and Local Grants 19,770 29,310 3,270
State Housing Initiative Partnership 8,431 8,862 (313)
Better Jacksonville Trust Fund 38,556 - (29,531)
Non-Budgeted General Government 753 555 62

Actual amounts reported per the Combined
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance, page 12 $ 248,658 $199,344 ($ 47,615)

D. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs:

The State of Florida's Solid Waste Management Act of 1988 (the "Act") and regulations
of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the State of Florida Department
of Environmental Protection (FDEP) require the City to be responsible for constructing
and maintaining the final landfill cover, monitoring ground water and methane gas, and
continuing leachate management thirty years after its municipally owned landfills stop
accepting solid waste and are closed. The estimated total costs of municipal solid waste
landfill (MSWLF) closure and postclosure care costs reported by the City are based upon
professional consulting engineers' studies prepared annually pursuant to rules
promulgated by EPA and FDEP. However, existing EPA and FDEP closure and
postclosure regulations may change which might require the City to revise its MSWLF
cost estimates used in the future.
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15. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
(continued)
D. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

MSWLF costs, for open landfills, are recognized in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care
Costs. A liability of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund (the "Fund") is recorded
based upon landfill capacity used at fiscal year-end and a current operating expense of
the Fund in the fiscal year in which the MSWLF costs are recovered through earned,
operating revenue.

The estimated liability for MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs at September 30,
2001, is (in thousands):

Balance, Accrual  Payment Balance,
October 1, of of September 30,
2000 Costs Costs 2001

Closed Landfills -

Postclosure care costs $12,910 ($ 550) ($415) $11,945
Operating Landfill -

Postclosure care costs 7,277 668 - 7,945
Total Landfill Postclosure

Care Costs 20,187 118 (415) 19,890
Waste Dump Site -

Long Term Care Costs 1,565 (237) B 1,328
Total Liability for Landfill Closure,
Postclosure, Decontamination and

Long Term Care Costs $21,752 ($ 119) (5415 $21,218

At September 30, 2001, the closure and postclosure care costs for the closed landfills
(North and East sites) had been fully recognized as these two landfills both stopped
accepting solid waste in April 1992. Of the total MSWLF closure and postclosure care
cost liability, $45.1 million had been paid for the cost of closure and $3.6 million had
been paid for postclosure care costs through September 30, 2001.

Funding MSWLF costs for these two closed landfills will be provided from future
operating revenues of Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund activities. As discussed in
Note 1.P., after adjustments for the current year change in estimate, the $61.2 million in
MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs recorded for the City's two closed landfills,
North and East, and the $9.1 million in Waste Dump Site decontamination costs has been
capitalized and recorded as a deferred charge in the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise
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15. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
(continued)
D. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

Fund. Through fiscal 2000, $31.9 million of this deferred charge had been expensed to
solid waste disposal operations. Additionally, during fiscal 2001, $1.5 million of this
deferred charge was expensed to solid waste operations, resulting in a balance at
September 30, 2001, of $36.9 million. It is the intent of the City that these costs be
recovered from future operating revenues of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund,
and accordingly will be recognized as operating expense as such revenue is earned.

The total closure and postclosure liability for the operating landfill (Trailridge) is $7.9
million. This total is based on the estimated capacity used of 34.4% or 6,034,510 tons
used with a total estimated capacity of 17,542,735 tons. The City will recognize the
remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure costs of $24.2 million as the
remaining capacity is filled. These amounts are based upon what it would cost to
perform all closure and postclosure care in 2001. The City expected to close the landfill
in approximately eleven years (2012); however, it is presently extending the life of the
landfill by increasing the capacity (Phase III) and the life to 4 more years (2016). As
mentioned, actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in environmental regulations.

The liability for the Waste Dump Site at September 30, 2001, of $1.3 million is based
on the most recent estimate by the Federal Government of the City's allocated share of
the clean-up and long term care cost of the site under a Participation Agreement and
Consent Decree with the Environmental Protection Agency. The City was identified as
a responsible party, sharing 65% of the total clean-up costs.

Annually, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) requires the City
to meet a proof of financial responsibility for its two closed (East and North) and one
open (Trailridge) municipally owned landfills. This proof of financial responsibility
provides assurance to FDEP that future closure and postclosure care costs will be
adequately funded by the City. At September 30, 2001, this proof of financial
responsibility has been met by the City under Rule 62-701.630(5)(c) of the Florida
Administrative Code by $12.3 million in deposits made to a restricted cash escrow
account of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund.

16. CHANGES IN REPORTING ENTITY

For the year ended September 30, 2001, the City had no changes in reporting entity.
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17.

18.

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER

The City Council approved ordinance 2000-671-E which provided for the lapse of certain
unspent project balances in the Local Gas Tax and Fifth and Sixth Cent County Road
Program. Remaining assets and fund equity were transferred to the Better Jax Construction
Capital Projects Fund. A residual equity transfer was recorded, as follows (in thousands):

Transfers Out Amount Transfers In
Capital Projects Fund - Better Jax Construction
Special Revenue Fund - Transportation $ 44,492 Projects
Total $ 44,492
LESSOR OPERATING LEASE

The City has entered into a lease dated September 7, 1993, pursuant to which the City leases
the ALLTEL Stadium and adjacent practice facilities to the Jacksonville Jaguars, Inc.
(Jaguars) for a period of thirty years from the first NFL regular season play in 1995. The
lease entitles the Jaguars to use the Stadium on game days, for practices and summer training
camp, and for the period necessary before game days. During other periods of time, the City
has the right to use the Stadium, except for certain administrative spaces, training facilities,
suites, and other areas that are for the exclusive use of the Jaguars.

For the first five years, rent is deferred in the amount of $250,000 per year; in years 6-10 rent
is $500,000 per year; in years 11-20 $1,000,000; and in the final ten years $1.25 million.
Rents from years eleven through the end of the lease are subject to escalation based on one-
half of any increase in the Consumer Price Index, but not to exceed 2.5% per year. In
addition, the Jaguars are obligated to pay supplemental rent in an amount equal to the annual
debt service incurred by the City for certain costs of renovation of $20 million requested by
the Jaguars over a thirty-year period with interest computed on a tax-exempt basis.

The lease generally permits the City to retain all revenues from all activities at the Stadium
not connected with pre-season, regular season or post-season Jaguar games. The City is
required to provide electricity, water and sewer services for the Stadium at its expense. The
City must maintain the Stadium and all leasehold improvements. The City is required to pay
for game day personnel on the days of Jaguar games. The Jaguars retain all net revenues
from concessions and similar sales on NFL game days. The lease obligates the Jaguars to
maintain its franchise at the Stadium in Jacksonville and to not relocate unless it pays the
City certain guaranteed amounts.
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19.

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS

A. Litigation:

The City is named as party in legal proceedings which occur in the normal course of
government operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted
against the City arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contract, condemnations
proceedings and other alleged violations of State and Federal laws.

It is not possible at the present time to estimate the ultimate outcome or liability, if any,
to the City for these proceedings. However, it is the City's opinion that any ultimate
liability is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the City's financial position.

. Grants and Contracts:

The City participates in various federal and state assisted grant programs that are subject
to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlement to these resources are generally
conditional upon compliance with the terms and conditions of grant agreements and
applicable federal and state regulations, including the expenditure of resources for
allowable purposes. Any disallowance resulting from a federal or state audit may become
a liability of the City.

All City agencies and departments are required to comply with various federal
regulations issued by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget if such agency or
department is a recipient of federal grant, contracts, or their sponsored agreements.
Certain agencies and departments may not be in total compliance with these regulations.
Failure to comply may result in questions concerning the allocability of related direct and
indirect charges pursuant to such agreements. It is believed that the ultimate disallowance
pertaining to these regulations, if any, will be immaterial to the overall financial
condition of the City.

. Self-Insurance:

Through the City's Risk Management Division, the City maintains an insurance and self-
insurance program (See Note 14). Workers' compensation, public liability and general
liability, including motor vehicles operated by the City under the City's Ordinance Code
Chapter 128, are self-insured. The City purchases commercial insurance for workers'
compensation claims in excess of $1 million. Under the laws of the State of Florida, the
City has limited sovereign immunity for certain self-insured losses in excess of
$200,000. The City retains coverage on all other types of insurance including real and
personal property damage. The self-insured programs of the City, which are included in
the Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund, are funded on a dollar-for-dollar basis
determined actuarially for the estimated losses for incurred but not reported and claims
development liabilities.
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19.

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

D. Environmental Matters:

There are claims pending against the City as a potentially-responsible party (PRP) for
cleanup of hazardous and other contaminated waste sites under federal and state
superfund and other environmental laws as follows:

Several years ago, the City and other PRP's completed remedial action at the Pickettville
Road Landfill Superfund Site pursuant to a consent decree with the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (USEPA). During the post-construction monitoring phase,
contaminants were discovered in monitoring wells beyond the site. Following a remedial
investigation and feasibility study, the PRP's recommended constructing an iron reactive
impermeable barrier between the landfill and Pickettville Road and further monitoring
on the other side of the landfill along Six Mile Creek. The cost of the remedy is about
$800,000, which the PRP's have deposited with the Site Trustee. The PRP's are awaiting
USEPA's approval of the proposed action which the Agency advises may require an
amendment to the Record of Decision.

USEPA identified the City as a PRP at the Whitehouse Waste Oil Pits Superfund Site in
western Duval County. The City and other PRP's participated in USEPA's Pilot
Allocation Project which resulted in EPA assuming as much as 80% of the liability at the
site, and the City being allocated slightly less than 10% of the liability. USEPA
estimates $20 million site costs, with the City paying approximately $2 million over the
life of the project (which includes a 20 year operations and maintenance period). A
complaint and consent decree have been lodged in the U.S. District Court for the Middle
District of Florida to memorialize the agreement between USEPA and the PRP's. Site
work is expected to begin in Summer, 2002.

The City and other PRP's settled with the USEPA which had sought reimbursement of
its cost of a removal action in 1995, regarding the Bill Johns Waste Oil Site. The City's
liability is based on contracting with the waste oil service to empty used oil collection
points operated under a recycling grant from the State. The City agreed to pay $24,000
and USEPA has lodged a complaint and consent decree with the U.S. District Court for
the Middle District of Florida memorializing the agreement between the government and
the PRP's. The Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) has submitted
a demand to the PRP's to assess the site further to determine the extent of contamination
that may remain after the removal action. Liability to FDEP is probable, but the site may
be eligible for the state-funded clean up program, relieving them of any financial
exposure.

Because of the uncertainty as to the amount of any environmental cleanup costs which
may ultimately be paid by the City no accrual has been made in the accompanying
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19.

20.

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
D. Environmental Matters: (continued)

financial statements at September 30, 2001, except as disclosed in Note 15.D. Funding
for such payment, if any, will be from general revenue sources, environmental protection
trust fund monies, third-party recoveries, Federal assistance and earnings.

E. Construction Commitments:

At September 30, 2001, the City had contracts, within the Better Jacksonville Program,
in place for citywide resurfacing, in the amount of $71,000,000.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 13, 2001, the City Council passed an ordinance authorizing up to $49.0
million principal amount of the City’s excise revenue bonds Series 2001B for the financing
of the City’s portion of infrastructure improvements and public improvements for the
redevelopment project known as the Jacksonville Shipyards Project. Under the
Redevelopment Agreement, the City has agreed to provide up to $40 million for
development of a riverfront park, roadway improvements, extension of the public riverwalk,
and related public amenities. The projected date for the bonds to be sold is late March 2002
with a closing in early April 2002.

In late January 2002, the City completed a forward delivery deal of $56,685,000 Excise
Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002A. The City anticipates that
the 2002A bonds will be issued and delivered on or about July 3, 2002. The proceeds from
the refunding will be used to pay the costs of an animal care and control center.

On January 22, 2002, the City Council authorized the issuance of capital improvement
revenue bonds, Series 2002, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $7,350,000 to
finance improvements to the south end zone at Alltel Stadium. The anticipated date for the
bonds to be issued is Summer 2002.

On January 22, 2002, the City Council approved the issuance and sale of $94,000,000 capital
project revenue bonds, series 2002. These monies will be used to finance drainage projects,
park improvements and town center projects. The bonds will be issued as 7-day Variable
Rate Demand Bonds in a tax exempt mode.
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21.  MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Financial disclosure about each of the City's major discretely presented component units
essential to the fair presentation of the General Purpose Financial Statements is presented
below. The City's nonmajor discretely presented component units are reported along
with the City's major component units in separate columns in the Component Unit
Combining Statements. Accordingly, no additional financial disclosure is presented here.

A. JEA
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) Reporting Entity

JEA (formerly known as the Jacksonville Electric Authority) is currently
organized into four separate systems: the Electric System, the Bulk Power
Supply System, which consists of Scherer Unit 4, a coal-fired 846
megawatt generating unit operated by Georgia Power Company and
owned by JEA (23.64% ownership interest) and Florida Power & Light
Company (FPL) (76.36% ownership interest); St. Johns River Power Park
System (SJRPP), which is two coal-fired generating units (638 net
megawatts each) jointly owned and operated by JEA (80% ownership
interest) and FPL (20% ownership interest); and the Water and Sewer
System. These financial statements include JEA’s ownership interest in
the Bulk Power Supply System and SJRPP. Separate accounting records
are currently maintained for each system. The following information
relates to JEA’s ownership of the respective plants as of September 30,
2001 (in thousands):

Bulk Power Supply System

Utility plant in service, net $ 103,485
Inventory 6,222
Revenues to be used for future costs 103,485
SJRPP

Utility plant in service, net $ 781,446
Restricted assets 423915
Current assets 84,544
Other assets 509,269
Long term debt 1,511,921
Other liabilities 263,997

The Electric System, SJRPP, and the Water and Sewer System each has its
own bond resolution.

During fiscal year 1999, JEA defeased the remaining principal amount of
its outstanding Bulk Power Supply System Bonds in advance of their
scheduled due dates. As a result, all of the covenants, agreements, and
other obligations of JEA under the Bulk Power Supply System Bond
Resolution, have ceased, terminated, and become void and have been
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21.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
A. JEA (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

)

()

(b)

(c)

Reporting Entity (continued)

discharged and satisfied, and JEA no longer is required to maintain the
various funds and accounts established thereunder, nor to make any
deposits thereto. For fiscal year 2001 and going forward, JEA expects that
all costs of operating and maintaining its interest in the Bulk Power
Supply System will continue to be paid as part of the Electric System’s
Cost of Operation and Maintenance.

Basis of Accounting

JEA consists of two enterprise funds: Electric, and Water and Sewer. The
Electric Enterprise Fund includes the Electric System, the Bulk Power
Supply System and SJRPP. JEA is presenting combined financial
statements for the two enterprise funds. JEA uses the accrual basis of
accounting for both enterprise funds and has adopted the uniform system
of accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission for
the Electric Enterprise Fund and the National Association of Regulatory
Utility Commissioners for the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund. The
investment in The Energy Authority (TEA) joint venture is recorded on
the equity method.

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB), including GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity, which defines JEA as a component unit of the City of Jacksonville,
Florida (the City). Accordingly, the financial statements of JEA are
included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City. JEA
has elected to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations except for those that conflict with GASB
pronouncements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental
Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. Both SJRPP and the Bulk
Power Supply System follow FASB Statement No. 71, Accounting For the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.

Revenue

Electric, and water and sewer revenue is recorded as earned. JEA earned
15% of its electric revenue from electricity sold to FPL in fiscal year 2001.
Operating revenues include amounts estimated for unbilled services
provided during the reporting period.
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21.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
A. JEA (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

M

(d) Utility Plant

(e)

®

The costs of utility plant additions and replacements are capitalized.
Maintenance and replacements of minor items are charged to operating
expenses. The cost of depreciable plant retired is eliminated from the
plant accounts, and such cost plus removal expense less salvage value is
charged to accumulated depreciation.

SJRPP is required by its bond resolution to deposit certain amounts in a
renewal and replacement fund. These amounts are then required to be
expended on capital expenditures to maintain and improve the system.
The amounts deposited in the fund are recorded as an expense when
deposited. As capital expenditures are made, the amounts funded from the
renewal and replacement fund are transferred to Utility Plant as a
reduction of installed cost.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

An allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) is included in
"Construction in progress" and as a reduction of interest expense. JEA
capitalizes interest on construction projects financed with the revenue
bonds, commercial paper and renewal and replacement funds in
accordance with SFAS No. 34 and SFAS No. 62. The AFUDC rate for
the Electric System fixed and variable rate debt was 5.111% for fiscal year
2001. The AFUDC rate for the Water and Sewer System was 5.326% for
fiscal year 2001. The amount capitalized is the interest cost of the debt
less any interest earned on investment of debt proceeds from the date of
the borrowing until the assets are placed in service. Total interest incurred
was approximately $170,314,000 for fiscal year 2001. Interest expense of
approximately $62,709,000 for fiscal year 2001 was capitalized, and
interest income on bond proceeds of approximately $8,356,000 was also
capitalized.-

Depreciation

Depreciation of the JEA utility plant, all of which is charged to operations,
is computed on a straight-line basis at rates based upon the estimated
service lives of the various property classes. A depreciation study
commissioned by JEA was completed in fiscal year 2001 and depreciation
rates were adjusted to reflect the findings of the study. The effective rate
of depreciation based upon average gross depreciable property balances
was approximately 3.79% for fiscal year 2001.
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21.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
A. JEA (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

0y

(®

(h)

(@

1)

(k)

Amortization

Amortization of debt issue costs and debt original issue discount is
computed on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective
interest method over the remaining term of the outstanding bonds.

Losses on Refundings

Losses on refundings of JEA revenue bonds are deferred and amortized as
a component of interest expense using the straight-line method over the
remaining life of the old debt or the new debt, whichever is shorter, in
accordance with Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
No. 23, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Refundings of Debt
Reported by Proprietary Activities. The losses on refundings are reported
as a reduction of long-term debt. Whereas JEA has incurred accounting
losses on refundings, calculated as the difference between the net carrying
value of the refunded and the refunding bonds, JEA has over time realized
economic gains calculated as the present value difference in the future
debt service on the refunded and refunding bonds.

Investments

Investments in U.S. treasury and government agency securities are
recorded at fair value, as determined by quoted market prices.
Investments in overnight repurchase agreements and commercial paper are
recorded at cost, which approximates fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, bank demand accounts, overnight repurchase agreements,
and short-term liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of
90 days or less.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

JEA’s risk management policies allow the use of interest rate swaps and
caps to manage financial exposures, but prohibit the use of these
instruments for speculative or trading purposes. JEA utilizes interest rate
swaps and caps to manage the interest rate risk associated with various
assets and liabilities. Interest rate swaps are used in the area of investment
management to increase the yield on revolving short-term investments.
Interest rate swaps are also used in the area of debt management to
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M

(k)

)

Interest Rate Swap Agreements (continued)

take advantage of favorable market interest rates, while caps are used to
limit variable rate debt exposure. Due to the policies followed, JEA does
not qualify for hedge accounting. Thus, all changes in the fair value of
these instruments are recorded in the combined statements of operations.
Under the swap program, JEA pays a variable rate of interest, which is
based on various indices, and receives a fixed rate of interest. These
indices are affected by changes in the market. The net amounts received
or paid under the swap agreements are recorded either as an adjustment to
interest income (asset management) or interest expense (debt
management).

Inventory

Inventories are maintained for fuel and material and supplies. Fuel
inventories are maintained at levels sufficient to meet customer demands.
Inventories are valued at average cost.

(m) Fuel Management Program

(n)

In connection with the purchase of oil and natural gas, JEA has developed
and implemented a fuel management program intended to manage the risk
of changes in the market prices of oil and natural gas. Pursuant to this
program, JEA executes futures and options contracts from time to time to
help manage fluctuations in the market prices of oil and natural gas. The
fair value adjustments of such contracts are recorded in “Operating
Expenses - Fuel” and “Prepaid expenses and other assets.” The associated
margin deposits are also recorded in “Prepaid expenses and other assets.”
The net amounts received or paid under the expired or closed fuel
contracts are recorded as an adjustment to “Operating Expenses - Fuel.”
See Note 21.A.(10) — Fuel Management Program.

Contributed Capital

Contributed capital for the Water and Sewer System represents contri-
butions of cash and fixed assets from third parties. Contributed capital is
recorded at fair value at the time of receipt. Depreciation is recorded on
contributed fixed assets on the straight-line basis. As of October 1, 2000,
JEA adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Transactions. See Note 21.A.(1)(s) — New Accounting Pronouncements.
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(0)

(p)
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(r)

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities

"Deferred credits and other liabilities" includes long-term compensated
absences, accrued environmental liabilities, and the long-term obligation
to the City of Jacksonville for its Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, net of
unamortized losses on refundings. See Note21.A.(6) — City of
Jacksonville.

Environmental Costs

JEA expenses, on a current basis, certain known costs incurred in
complying with environmental regulations and conducting remediation
activities. JEA also accrues liabilities in accordance with SFAS No. 5 for
certain potential future costs required for site restoration for which JEA
may be liable whenever, by diligent legal and technical investigation, the
scope or extent of damage has been determined, remedial measures have
been specifically identified as practical and viable, and the cost of
remediation and JEA’s proportionate share can be reasonably estimated.
Generally, the timing of these accruals coincides with completion of a
remedial investigation and feasibility study or JEA’s commitment to a
formal plan of action. Potential claims for recovery from other potentially
responsible parties (PRPs) effectively reduce the recorded liability.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets subject to the requirements of SFAS No. 121,
Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to Be Disposed Of, are evaluated for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of any asset
may not be recoverable. During 2001, JEA recorded an adjustment of
approximately $5,880,000 due to the impairment determined in an
analysis related to the decommissioning of the Southside Generating
Station.

Costs to be Recovered from Future Revenues / Revenues to be Used
for Future Costs

Cost-based regulation - Due to the application of SFAS No. 71, the Bulk
Power Supply System and SJIRPP record certain assets and liabilities that
result from the effects of the ratemaking process that would not be
recorded under generally accepted accounting principles for nonregulated
entities. Currently, the electric utility industry is predominantly regulated
on a basis designed to recover the cost of providing electric power to its
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A. JEA (continued)
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)
(r) Costs to be Recovered from Future Revenues / Revenues to be Used
for Future Costs (continued)

customers. If cost-based regulation were to be discontinued in the electric
industry for any reason, market prices for electricity could be reduced or
increased and utilities might be required to reduce their balance sheet
amounts to reflect market conditions. Discontinuance of cost-based
regulation could also require affected utilities to write off their associated
regulatory assets and liabilities. Management cannot predict the potential
impact, if any, of the change in the regulatory environment on JEA’s
future financial position and results of operations.

The rates for SJRPP and the Bulk Power Supply System are established on
a cost of service basis, which is based upon debt service, if any, and
operating fund requirements. Straight-line depreciation is not considered
in the cost of service calculation used to design rates.

Costs to be Recovered from Future Revenues - The deferred debt
related costs are resulting differences between expenses in determining
rates and those used in financial reporting and shown under Other Assets
on the Combined Balance Sheet. SJRPP has a contract with the Electric
System and FPL to recover these costs from future revenue that will
coincide with retirement of long-term debt of SJRPP. The amount
recovered each year will be the difference between debt principal
maturities (adjusted for the effects of premiums, discounts, and
amortization of gains and losses) and straight-line depreciation and results
in recognition of deferred costs on the Combined Statement of Revenue,
Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings. SJRPP recognized (in
thousands) $39,636 in deferred costs in fiscal year 2001.

Revenues to be Used for Future Costs - Early debt principal retirements
of the Bulk Power Supply System in excess of straight-line depreciation
are included in "Deferred credits and other liabilities on the Combined
Balance Sheet and as an "Other non-operating revenue" in the Combined
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings. In
the future, recognition of deferred revenues on the Combined Statement
of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings will coincide
with future costs for straight-line depreciation that exceed any debt
principal occurring at that time. The Bulk Power Supply System
recognized revenue (in thousands) of ($3,878) in fiscal year 2001.

-111-



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

21.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
A. JEA (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

)

()

)

®

()

Costs to be Recovered from Future Revenues / Revenues to be Used
for Future Costs (continued)

Summary:
Recognition of deferred costs from SJRPP $ 39,636
Recognized revenues from the Bulk
Power Supply System (3,878)
Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, net $ 35,758

New Accounting Pronouncements

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions,
became effective during fiscal year 2001. The effect of the accounting
pronouncement was to increase net income in fiscal year 2001 by
approximately $19,433,000 for capital contributed to JEA during the year.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (SFAS 133), as amended,
became effective during fiscal year 2001. SFAS 133 provides guidance on
accounting for derivative instruments, such as JEA’s asset management
and debt management interest rate swaps and fuel management contracts.
The effect of the accounting pronouncement was not material to the
financial statements.

New Governmental Accounting Standards

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, GASB
Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus —
an amendment of GASB Statements No.21 and No. 34, and GASB
Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures, are
effective for JEA’s fiscal year ending September 30, 2002. JEA has not
determined the impact, if any, of adopting GASB Statements No. 34, 37
and 38 on its financial statements.

Pervasiveness of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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Restricted Assets:

Restricted assets were held in the following funds on September 30, 2001 (in
thousands):

Electric System:

Sinking Fund $ 22,595
Construction Fund 185,129
Renewal and Replacement Fund 9,714
Customer Deposits Trust Fund 16,347
Customer Financing Program 5,000
Self Insurance Fund 3,500
Adjustment to fair value of investments 1,938

Total Electric System 244223

SJRPP System:

Sinking Fund 124,989
Debt Service Reserve Fund 175,907
Renewal and Replacement Fund 90,000
Revenue Fund 29,416
Adjustment to fair value of investments 3,603

Total SJRPP System 423,915

Water and Sewer System:

Sinking Fund 23,227
Debt Refunding Escrow 82,668
Renewal and Replacement Fund and Capital Outlay Fund 30,082
Customer Deposits Trust Fund _ 1,886
Customer Financing Program 5,000
Adjustment to fair value of investments 4,346

Total Water and Sewer System 147,209

Total Restricted Assets $ 815,347

The Electric System, Bulk Power Supply System, SJRPP, and Water and
Sewer System are permitted to invest restricted funds in specified types of
investments in accordance with their bond resolutions and investment policy
until the time such funds are required to be disbursed for their designated

purposes.
Cash and Investments:

JEA maintains cash and investment pools that are utilized by all funds except
for those bond funds established subsequent to the 1986 Tax Reform Act.
Included in the JEA cash balances are amounts on deposit with JEA’s
commercial bank as well as amounts deposited with the Florida State Board of
Administration’s Local Government Investment Pool. The commercial bank
balances are covered by federal depository insurance or collateralized subject
to the “Florida Security for Public Deposits Act” of Chapter 280, Florida
Statutes. Amounts subject to Chapter 280, Florida Statutes are collateralized
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A3

Cash and Investments: (continued)

by securities deposited by JEA’s commercial bank under certain pledging
formulas with the State Treasurer or other qualified custodians.

JEA is authorized to invest in securities as described in each bond resolution.
Investments in securities are categorized in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 3, Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase
Agreements), and Reverse Repurchase Agreements. Each category is a level
of custodial risk assumed by JEA: Category 1 includes investments that are
registered or insured or which are held by JEA or by an agent in JEA’s name;
Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the broker’s or dealer’s trust department or agent in
JEA’s name; and Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments
for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust
department or agent, but not in JEA’s name. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 3, these category classifications do not apply to investment
pools or investments in mutual funds. For fiscal year 2001, all cash and
investments were classified as Category 1.

During fiscal year 2001, JEA had a securities lending agreement with an
independent third party on certain securities of the Electric System, the Bulk
Power Supply System and the Water and Sewer System for the purpose of
increasing investment income as permitted by the respective bond resolutions.
When JEA lends securities, the risk of failure by the borrower to return the
loaned securities is alleviated by such loans being continuously collateralized
by securities that are permitted investments under each bond resolution. The
collateral securities are in an amount equal to 103% of the market value of the
loaned securities and are held by a third party safekeeping agent. Under the
lending agreement, the collateral securities are deemed to be substituted for the
loaned securities, and are subject to the lien or pledge under each bond
resolution. JEA has the right and the ability to sell the collateral securities
upon default of the borrower to return the loaned securities to JEA under the
lending agreement. JEA cannot sell the collateral securities without a default
by the borrower. The borrower is required by the contract agreements to
indemnify JEA if upon a default the collateral securities are insufficient to
replace the loaned securities or if the borrower fails to pay JEA for income
distributions from the loaned securities of the Electric System, the Bulk Power
Supply System and the Water and Sewer System while they are on loan. These
loaned securities are considered Category 1 investments in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 3.
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Cash and Investments: (continued)

The JEA follows GASB No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, which requires the
adjustments of the carrying value of investments to fair value to be presented
as a component of investment income. Investments are presented at fair value,
which is based on available or equivalent market values. The Local
Government Investment Pool operated by the Florida State Board of
Administration is a ‘“2a-7-like” pool in accordance with GASB No. 31;
therefore, it is not presented at fair value but at its actual pooled share price
which approximates fair value. At September 30, 2001, the fair value of all
securities, regardless of balance sheet classification as cash equivalent or
investment, was as follows (in thousands):

Securities:
U.S. Treasury and Government Agency Securities $ 489,014
Repurchase Agreements 49,600
Commercial Paper 113,730
Local Government Investment Pool 100,000
Investment in Money Market Mutual Fund 75,237

Securities subtotal 827,581

Fair value of interest rate swaps 1,970
Total securities, at fair value $ 829,551

These securities are held in the following accounts (in thousands):

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 440,870

Investments, at fair value 356,130
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 65,291

Investments, at fair value 19,583
Total cash and investments 881,874
Plus: Interest due on securities 8,008
Less: Cash on deposit (60,331)

Total Securities, at fair value $ 829,551

For asset management purposes, JEA has entered into various interest rate
swap agreements that expire over the next three years with outstanding total
notional amounts of $160,000,000 for the Electric System at September 30,
2001, and $45,000,000 for the Water and Sewer System at September 30,
2001. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, the weighted average rates
of interest were:
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Cash and Investments: (continued)

Variable 3.258%
Fixed 4.279%

Asset management interest rate swap earnings and losses are recorded as an
adjustment to "Interest revenue" in the Combined Statement of Revenue,
Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings. As a result of these interest rate
swap earnings, JEA increased investment income for the Electric System by
$1,323,974 in fiscal year 2001 and for the Water and Sewer System by
$351,945 in fiscal year 2001. For fiscal year 2001, the notional amounts of the
interest rate swaps are not reflected in the financial statements; however, the
fair value of the interest rate swaps are included in "Investments" on the
Combined Balance Sheet. Although JEA has no plans or expectations to
terminate the asset management interest rate swaps prior to their maturity
dates, the aggregate fair value of the interest rate swaps as of September 30,
2001 were assets of $2,520,718 for the Electric System, and an asset of
$1,531,625 for the Water and Sewer System. These amounts were calculated
using market rates as of September 28, 2001, and standard cash flow present
valuing techniques. The fair value of the interest rate swaps in the above
schedule includes the asset management program and the RCR and JPA
programs described in Note 21.A.(9). The Electric System and the Water and
Sewer System are exposed to a potential nonpayment in the event of
nonperformance by the counterparty of its interest rate swap agreements. JEA
believes that the risk of nonpayment in the event of nonperformance by the
counterparty under these agreements is not significant. JEA does not
anticipate nonperformance by the counterparty.

Renewal and Replacement Funds:

The requirements of the respective bond resolutions for contributions to the
respective systems’ renewal and replacement funds are as follows:

Electric System: An amount equal to the greater of 10% of the prior
year defined net revenues or 5% of the prior year
defined gross revenues.

SJRPP System: An amount equal to 12.5% of aggregate debt service,
as defined.
Water and Sewer System: An amount equal to the greater of 10% of the prior

year defined net revenues or 5% of the prior year
defined gross revenues.
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(5) Long-Term Debt:

The Electric System, SJRPP System, and Water and Sewer System Revenue
Bonds (JEA Revenue Bonds) are payable from and secured by a pledge of the
Net Revenues of each of the respective JEA Systems. JEA is required to
deposit monthly, into separate debt service sinking funds for each System,
approximately one-twelfth of the aggregate amount of principal and interest
becoming payable on the outstanding JEA Revenue Bonds within the bond
year. Interest on the fixed rate portion of the JEA Revenue Bonds (excluding
SJRPP capital appreciation bonds) is payable semi-annually on April 1 and
October 1, with the principal amount payable on October 1. FPL is responsible
for certain debt service payments on SJRPP Revenue Bonds. These payments
are made in accordance with the requirements of the SIRPP Bond Resolution
and Joint Ownership Agreement between JEA and FPL. On September 23,
1999, all of the outstanding Bulk Power Supply System Bonds were defeased.

The debt service to maturity on the outstanding JEA Revenue Bonds
(excluding Commercial Paper Notes and Variable Rate Obligations) as of
September 30, 2001, is summarized in the following table (in thousands):

Electric

Bond Yrs System SJRPP Water & Sewer ()

Ending

October 1  Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest  Total ®
2001 @ $ 960 $ 19,994 $ 80,370 $ 43,338 $ 8,735 $ 14,415 $ 167,812
2002 1,455 39,940 84,715 82,321 8,660 28,462 245,553
2003 2,380 39,869 85,735 78,161 9,075 28,047 243,267
2004 2,500 39,762 90,430 73,464 9,510 27,616 243,282
2005 17,955 39,650 90,420 68,820 9,990 27,135 253,970

2006-2010 198,990 182,780 529,968 280,928 57,805 127,822 1,378,293
2011-2015 187,480 122,391 497,821 139,015 73,630 111,985 1,132,322

2016-2020 73,770 88,461 177,300 34,174 77,835 91,427 542,967
2021-2025 66,930 71,060 14,200 746 78,215 70,283 301,434
2026-2030 96,825 50,736 - - 75,550 48,824 271,935
2031-2035 121,575 18,010 - - 68,050 31,089 238,724
2036-2040 - - - - 61,950 9,293 71,243
Total $770,820 $712,653 $1,650,959 $800,967 $539,005 $616,398 $5,090,802

1) Excludes First Crossover Series Refunding Bonds.

2) Excludes debt service on variable rate debt.

3) Represents principal and interest paid on October 1, 2001, only; excludes interest paid on April 1, 2001 of this bond year.
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(5) Long-Term Debt: (continued)

The estimated fair value of the outstanding fixed rate JEA Long-Term Debt
(does not include commercial paper notes and variable rate demand
obligations) at September 30, 2001 was approximately $3,130,759,000. The
estimated fair value at September 30, 2001 for the fixed rate portion of the JEA
Revenue Bonds was determined through a nationally recognized third-party
financial information service. The estimated fair values at September 30, 2001
for the $632,100,000 of JEA Variable Rate Electric System Subordinated
Revenue Bonds and $50,250,000 of JEA Variable Rate Water and Sewer
System Revenue Bonds were determined to be the par amount outstanding at
September 30, 2001.

JEA, at its option, may redeem specific outstanding JEA Revenue Bonds prior
to maturity, as discussed in the Official Statements covering their issue. A
summary of the redemption provisions is as follows:

Electric System SJRPP Water and Sewer

Earliest year for redemption 2001 2001 2002

Redemption price ranges 101%-100%  101.5%-100%  101% - 100%

Electric System

During fiscal year 2001, JEA issued Electric System debt as summarized in the
following table (in thousands):

Par Par Accounting
Priority Of Amount Amount  Losson

Debt Issued Purpose Lien Month Issued  Issued Refunded Refunding

Series Three 2001 A New Money Senior February 2001 $ 75,000 $ -
Series Three 2001 B Refunding Senior February 2001 83,025 80,040 2,595
2000 Series F New Money Subordinated December 2000 125,000 - -
2001 Series A Refunding/New Money Subordinated February 2001 50,840 40,000 134

2001 Series B and C New Money Subordinated May 2001 132,000 -

2001 Series D STARS New Money Subordinated September 2001 175,100 - -
$640,965 $120,040 §$ 2,729

(1) Short-Term Adjustable Rate Securities.

The estimated economic gain from the issuance of the Series Three 2001 B
Bonds calculated as the difference between the present value of the debt
service payments of the refunded bonds and the debt service payments of the
refunding bonds is $4,004,189. The refunding related to the 2001 Series A
Bonds did not have an economic effect because the refunded bonds were
variable rate obligations.
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(5) Long-Term Debt: (continued)

The payment of principal and interest on the 2000 Series F, 2001 Series A,
2001 Series B and C, and 2001 Series D STARS is subordinate in all respects
to the payment of principal and interest on the Series Two and Three Electric
System Revenue Bonds from the Net Revenues of the Electric System.

JEA has outstanding five series of subordinated variable rate demand
obligations (VRDO). Each series are subject to mandatory and optional
redemption prior to their scheduled maturity as set forth in the Official
Statement relating to their issuance. The VRDO were initially issued and
currently are issued in the daily mode. They bear interest at a daily rate which
is determined on each business day. Interest is payable on the first business day
of each month. Liquidity support in connection with tenders for purchase are
provided by separate liquidity providers with respect to each separate Series of
VRDO pursuant to a standby bond purchase agreement (the liquidity facility).
With respect to each separate liquidity facility, JEA can and expects to request
extensions of the termination dates. The purchase price of the VRDO tendered
or deemed tendered for purchase is payable solely from the proceeds of the
remarketing thereof and moneys drawn under the applicable liquidity facility
and are not payable from any funds of JEA.

The following table summarizes JEA's outstanding subordinated VRDO:

Principal Average Interest
Amount Liquidity Facility = Rate for Fiscal
Series Outstanding Expiration Date Year 2001

2000 Series A $ 100,000 January 18, 2003 3.190%
2000 Series B 100,000 January 14, 2002 3.190%
2000 Series F 125,000 December 5, 2001 2.910%
2001 Series B 66,000 May 22, 2004 2.510%
2001 Series C 66,000 May 22, 2006 2.510%

$ 457,000

JEA also has outstanding $175,100,000 of its Variable Rate Electric System
Subordinated Revenue Bonds, 2001 Series D Short-Term Adjustable Rate
Securities (STARS). The 2001 Series D STARS are subject to the Auction
Procedures as set forth in the Electric System Seventeenth Supplemental
Subordinated Resolution. The 2001 Series D STARS were initially issued and
currently are issued in the auction mode. Interest for each auction period
(other than the initial auction period) will be an amount equal to the sum of the
rate per annum determined on the basis of orders placed in an auction
conducted on the business day preceding the commencement of such auction
period and the service charge rate. Interest on the 2001 Series D STARS are
currently payable every thirty-five days. The interest rate on the 2001 Series D

- 119 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

21.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
A. JEA (continued)
(5) Long-Term Debt: (continued)

STARS for any subsequent auction period may not exceed the lesser of 15%
per annum and the maximum interest rate permitted by law.

SJRPP

In July 1995, JEA issued $141,755,000 of SJRPP Special Obligation Bonds,
Fifth Crossover Series (Fifth Crossover Series). The proceeds from the Fifth
Crossover Series were held in a special escrow fund until October 1, 1999, the
“crossover date.” A portion of the invested proceeds and income of the special
escrow fund was used to pay the interest on the Fifth Crossover Series until the
crossover date. On the crossover date, the balance of the funds on deposit in
the special escrow fund was used to redeem $138,450,000 of Issue Two, Series
Five Bonds. Also, on the crossover date, the SIRPP Special Obligation Bonds,
Fifth Crossover Series were exchanged for the SJRPP Issue Two, Series
Twelve Bonds. JEA realized and deferred an accounting loss of $2,802,258 in
October 1999 on the redemption. However, a net economic gain of $9,963,165
was realized as a result of the transaction. After the crossover date, the SJRPP
Issue Two, Series Twelve Refunding Bonds that were exchanged for the Fifth
Crossover Series bear the same interest rates, have the same maturity dates,
and are subject to optional and mandatory redemption at the same times, in the
same amounts, and at the same redemption prices as the Fifth Crossover
Series.

Water and Sewer System

On January 4, 2001, JEA issued $130,000,000 of Water and Sewer System
Revenue Bonds 2001 Series A to fund various additions and improvements to
the Water & Sewer System.

On March 20, 2001, JEA issued $81,990,000 Water and Sewer System
Subordinated Revenue Bonds, First Crossover Series. The proceeds from the
First Crossover Series are to be held in a special escrow fund until the
crossover date of April 1, 2005. The First Crossover Series are secured by a
pledge upon the moneys and eligible investments on deposit in the special
escrow fund and by amounts on deposit in the Subordinated Indebtedness
Fund. A portion of the invested proceeds (and income thereon) will be used to
pay interest on the First Crossover Series until the crossover date. On the
crossover date, unless certain conditions are not satisfied, the balance of the
funds on deposit in the special escrow fund will be used to redeem the
$78,890,000 of Water & Sewer System Revenue Bonds 2000 Series A. On the
crossover date, the First Crossover Series will be exchanged for Water and
Sewer System Revenue Bonds 2001 Series B (the 2001 Series B). Upon the
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exchange, the 2001 Series B bonds will bear the same interest rates, have the
same maturity dates and be subject to optional and mandatory redemptions at
the same times, in the same amounts and at the same redemption prices as the
First Crossover Series bonds. In addition, upon the exchange the 2001 Series
B bonds will be secured by a pledge of the Revenues of the Water & Sewer
System on a rank equal to that of any other bonds outstanding under the Water
and Sewer System Bond Resolution. The First Crossover Series bonds bear
interest rates ranging from 3.80% to 5.30% and mature in years beginning on
October 1, 2006 through October 1, 2039.

As a result of the issuance of the First Crossover Series bonds and as a result of
the events to occur on the crossover date, the scheduled debt service will be
adjusted for the period ending September 30, 2005 to the maturity for the 2001
Series B and the total debt service on all Water and Sewer fixed rate bonds will
be as follows:

Total Debt

Bond Year Ending October 1, 2001 Series B Service

2001 $ - $ 14,414
2002 - 37,122
2003 - 37,122
2004 - 37,126
2005 2,147 36,878
2006 - 2010 22,092 . 183,784
2011 -2015 22,100 183,779
2016 - 2020 28,625 167,414
2021 - 2025 36,513 146,662
2026 - 2030 22,788 122,535
2031 - 2035 18,928 97,298
2036 - 2039 39,484 69,769
Total $ 192,677 $ 1,133,903

In February 2000, JEA issued $50,250,000 of Variable Rate Water and Sewer
System Bonds 2000 Series B to fund projects of the Water and Sewer System.
The 2000 Series B Bonds are subject to mandatory and optional redemption
prior to their scheduled maturity on October 1, 2034, and to optional and
mandatory tender for purchase as set forth in the Official Statement relating to
their issuance. The 2000 Series B Bonds bear interest at variable rates in the
weekly mode and the average interest rate was 3.275% during fiscal year 2001.
Liquidity support in connection with tenders for purchase of the 2000 Series B
Bonds is provided pursuant to a standby bond purchase agreement (the
liquidity facility). The liquidity facility relating to the 2000 Series B Bonds
has a stated termination date of April 5, 2004. With respect to the liquidity
facility, JEA can and expects to request an extension of the termination date.
The purchase price of the 2000 Series B Bonds tendered or deemed tendered
for purchase is payable solely from the proceeds of the remarketing thereof,
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and moneys drawn under the liquidity facility and not payable from any funds
of JEA.

On October 23, 2001, JEA issued $152,635,000 of Water and Sewer System
Revenue Bonds, 2001 Series C, to fund various additions and improvements to
the Water and Sewer System.

Commercial Paper

During fiscal year 2001, JEA retired $4,600,000 of Series B and C Commercial
Paper Notes. Also, during fiscal year 2000, JEA refunded $101,682,000 and
$100,000,000 of Series A and Series E Commercial Paper Notes, respectively,
through an economic defeasance, from the proceeds of its Series Three 2000A,
Series Three 2000 B and 2000 Series D bonds.

The following table summarizes the Electric System Commercial Paper Notes
(Commercial Paper Notes) as of September 30, 2001 (in thousands):

Principal ~ Final Maturity Average Interest
Amount Date Not to Interest Rate Rate For
Outstanding Exceed Not to Exceed  Fiscal Year 2001
Series B (Taxable) $ 16,047 June 7,2033 20% 5.167%
Series C (Tax exempt) 122,650  June 7, 2033 15% 3.423%
$ 138,697

The Commercial Paper Notes, shown in the previous table, have been
classified as long-term debt obligations and are subordinate in all respects to
the Electric System Revenue Bonds. The estimated fair value of the
Commercial Paper Notes at September 30, 2001 was $138,697,000. The
Commercial Paper Notes were valued at par.

In order to manage more effectively its finances and to reduce the net cost of
its debt, JEA from time to time enters into interest rate cap agreements to limit
the interest rate risk associated with the Commercial Paper Notes. As of
September 30, 2001, JEA has an interest rate cap with a total notional amount
of $60 million associated with the Commercial Paper Notes. JEA is exposed
to a potential nonpayment in the event of nonperformance by the counter-party
to its interest rate cap agreements. JEA believes that the risk of nonpayment in
the event of nonperformance by the counter-party under these agreements is
not significant and furthermore, JEA does not anticipate nonperformance by
the counter-party.
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In order to provide liquidity support for each series of Commercial Paper
Notes, JEA has two separate revolving credit agreements with a commercial
bank for its two remaining commercial paper programs. If moneys are not
available to pay the principal of any maturing Commercial Paper Notes during
the term of the credit agreements, JEA is entitled to make a borrowing under
the applicable credit agreements, provided that certain conditions are satisfied,
in an amount equal to the principal amount of the maturing Commercial Paper
Notes. As of September 30, 2001, the expiration dates for the credit
agreements are as follows:

Series B Commercial Paper Notes September 25, 2002
Series C Commercial Paper Notes May 13,2002

JEA has and will continue to request extensions of the credit agreements
expiration dates as provided for in the agreements, so that a current credit
agreement is in place for each of the outstanding Commercial Paper Notes. If
JEA is unable to fund any Commercial Paper Note maturities, JEA can utilize
the credit agreements prior to their expiration dates to the extent alternate
sources of financing are not available. Upon the expiration of the term of any
of the credit agreements, if any of the Commercial Paper Notes secured
thereby are outstanding, JEA is required to make a borrowing under the credit
agreements to repay the principal of all outstanding Commercial Paper Notes
secured thereby. Any loans outstanding under the credit agreements on the
expiration date thereof may be converted to a term loan that is repayable, in
general, in twelve equal semi-annual installments. JEA has not made any
borrowings under the credit agreements and does not expect to do so in the
future.

In May 2000, JEA obtained an unsecured line of credit for $50 million which
expires May 3, 2003. As of September 30, 2001, there was no outstanding
balance.

Debt Management Strategy

JEA had entered into various interest rate swap agreements in connection with

its debt management strategy that would have expired over the next five years

and which had total notional amounts outstanding of $535 million for the
Electric System and $200 million for the Water and Sewer System at
September 30, 2000. During March 2001, JEA terminated certain of the
interest rate swaps that were previously entered into with respect to the debt
management strategy program. JEA terminated $410 million in aggregate
notional amount of such interest rate swaps with respect to the Electric System
and $190 million in aggregate notional amount of such interest rate swaps with
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respect to the Water and Sewer System. Of the remaining debt management
strategy interest rate swaps, $125 million in aggregate notional amount for the
Electric System and $10 million in aggregate notional amount for the Water
and Sewer System were reallocated to the asset management program. As a
result of the termination of such interest rate swap transactions, JEA has
recognized gains of $7,846,975 for the Electric System and $5,096,864 for the
Water and Sewer System, which has been included as a reduction of "Interest
expense" on the Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in
Retained Earnings. In addition, JEA has released the reserve funds it had
established pursuant to its debt management strategy policy in the amount of
$26.75 million for the Electric System and $10 million for the Water and
Sewer System.

For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001, the weighted average rates of
interest were as follows:

Variable 3.735%
Fixed 4.273%

Debt management strategy interest rate swap earnings and the related
adjustments to fair value are shown as additions or reductions to "Interest
expense" in the Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in
Retained Earnings. As a result of these interest rate swap earnings and fair
value adjustments, JEA decreased "Interest expense" for the Electric System
by $11,416,606 and decreased "Interest expense" for the Water and Sewer
System by $5,671,106 in fiscal year 2001. The fair value of the interest rate
swap instruments are also included as an addition to "Long-term debt and other
long-term obligations" on the Combined Balance Sheet; however, the notional
amounts of the interest rate swaps are not reflected in the financial statements.

There were no debt management strategy interest rate swaps open at
September 30, 2001.

JEA has also entered into interest rate cap instruments to manage the interest
rate risk related to its Series B and Series C Commercial Paper notes. As of
September 30, 2001, the fair value of these caps was an asset of $36,000 and is
reflected as a deduction to "Long-term debt and other long-term obligations"
on the Combined Balance Sheet.

The Electric System and the Water and Sewer System are exposed to a
potential nonpayment in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to its
interest rate swap agreements. JEA believes that the risk of nonpayment in the
event of nonperformance by the counterparty under the agreements is not
significant and furthermore, JEA does not anticipate nonperformance by the
counterparty.
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(6) City of Jacksonville

JEA is a component unit of the City and utilizes various services provided by
departments of the City, including revenue collections, insurance, legal and
motor pool. JEA is billed on a proportionate cost basis with other user
departments and agencies.

JEA provides electric, water and sewer service to the City and its agencies and
bills for such service using established rate schedules. The revenues for
services provided and expenses for services received by JEA for these related
party transactions with the City were as follows (in thousands):

Revenues Expenses
Fiscal year 2001 $ 14,190 11,458

Beginning in fiscal year 1999, the JEA Electric System is required to
contribute annually to the General Fund of the City an amount not to exceed
7.5 mills per kilowatt hour delivered by JEA to retail users in JEA’s service
area, and to wholesale customers under firm contracts having an original term
of more than one year, other than sales of energy to FPL from JEA’s St. Johns
River Power Park System. The contribution rate, beginning with fiscal year
1999, is the greater of 5.5 mills per kilowatt hour delivered or the 1998 fiscal
year contribution of $52,039,278 plus an increase of $3 million a year for the
next five years.

The contribution rate for fiscal year 2001 was 5.5 mills per kilowatt hour
delivered and amounted to $62,589,668. A contribution of $65,489,556 has
been budgeted for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002.

Beginning in fiscal year 1999, the JEA Water and Sewer System is required to
contribute annually to the General Fund of the City an amount not to exceed
2.63 mills per cubic foot of potable water and sewer service provided,
excluding reclaimed water service. The contribution amount for fiscal year
2001 was $11,048,609. These amounts are based on a contribution rate of 1.75
mills and such rate will be in effect for the next five years. A contribution of
$11,116,676 has been budgeted for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002.

Although the calculation for the annual transfer of available revenue from JEA
to the City is based upon formulas that are applied specifically to each utility
system operated by JEA, JEA may, in its sole discretion, utilize any of its
available revenues regardless of source to satisfy its total annual obligation to
the City.
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City of Jacksonville (continued)

In addition to the contributions described above, JEA is also obligated to make
semi-annual payments with respect to a portion of the debt service for the
City’s Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1988A and 1995A through fiscal
year 2009. In March 1999, the City refunded the Series 1988A Bonds with the
City’s Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A. In fiscal year 2001, JEA
paid to the City $2,498,688 in principal and $690,966 in interest. The total
principal amount due the City as of September 30, 2001 was $18,002,893, and
is reflected in "Deferred credits and other liabilities" in the Combined Balance
Sheet.

Joint Projects Agreement

The Joint Projects Agreement (Agreement) between JEA and the City, entered
into on November 23, 1998, authorized the design and/or construction of
certain JEA water, sewer, and electric utility upgrades in conjunction with
certain City projects for streets and drainage to accomplish one-time
construction within the public rights of way.

Pursuant to this Agreement, JEA funded a $750,000 working fund to be kept
by the City, from which monthly payments are made for JEA’s portion of these
projects. The working fund is replenished the following month for payments
made on behalf of JEA. JEA is not required to fund its unexpended project
commitments other than the working fund amount unless the working fund
becomes inadequate, which would require immediate wire transfer of needed
funds. At September 30, 2001, JEA’s unfunded project commitment to the
City in excess of the working fund is approximately $1.5 million.

Coal Purchase and Purchased Power Commitments:

JEA has commitments to purchase a majority of the coal for SJRPP and
Scherer Unit4 under long-term contracts expiring in 2007 and 2003,
respectively. JEA also has commitments for the transportation of coal
purchases under a long-term contract for SJRPP expiring in 2005.
Commitments for transportation of coal purchases for Scherer Unit4 are
effective through 2002 and are currently being re-bid for 2003 and beyond.
Contract terms specify minimum annual purchase commitments at certain
prices subject to adjustments for price level changes according to the contract.

JEA also has contracts with certain operating subsidiaries of Southern
Company (such operating subsidiaries are referred to herein as “Southern”) for
the purchase of 200 MW of coal-fired capacity and energy through May 2010.
These capacity obligations of Southern are firm, subject to the availability of
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the units involved (Miller Units 1-4 and Scherer Unit 3). Upon three years

notice to Southern, JEA may elect to reduce its capacity obligations by as
much as 150 MW.

Under these contracts with Southern, JEA is committed to purchase for the
Electric System certain energy output associated with the purchased generating
capacity entitlement. The total cost to be incurred by JEA depends upon future
costs incurred by Southern in connection with its ownership and operation of
coal-fired generating facilities to which the agreements relate and upon the
amount of energy actually purchased by JEA. A portion of such future costs is
related to the electric generating capacity entitlement and is payable by JEA,
subject to certain contingencies, whether or not any energy is actually
produced by such units or purchased by JEA.

The maximum aggregate amount of future payments, including the projected
effects of inflation for coal purchase commitments of SJRPP (at JEA’s 80%
ownership interest) and the Bulk Power Supply System and future estimated
fixed charges for electric generating capacity entitlement and transmission,
including the projected effects of inflation for JEA, appear in the following
table (in thousands). The electric generating capacity and transmission charges
do not reflect JEA’s option to reduce its capacity obligations with three years
notice.

Electric
Generating

Year Ending Coal Capacity/

September 30 Purchases Transportation Energy Transmission
2002 $ 92,017 $ 36,921 $ 19,016 $ 7,258
2003 63,625 14,382 19,368 7,608
2004 62,080 14,526 19,920 7,992
2005 63,149 14,671 20,412 8,520
2006 19,000 14,818 20,724 8,892
2007 19,200 14,966 20,664 9,072

2008 - 2011 - - 49,508 28,723

General Employees Pension Plan:

JEA Plan Description and Contributions

Substantially all of the employees of the Electric System and Water and Sewer
System participate in and contribute to the City of Jacksonville General

Employees Pension Plan (Plan), as amended. The Plan is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan.
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All full-time employees who successfully complete a physical examination and
meet the medical requirements for membership are eligible to participate in the
Plan. The Plan, based on laws outlined in the City of Jacksonville Ordinance
Code and applicable Florida Statutes, provides for retirement, survivor, death
and disability benefits.

Plan members are required to contribute 7% of their current-year annual
covered salary in fiscal 2001. For fiscal year 2001, JEA was not required to
contribute a percentage of annual covered payroll to the plan as it was
overfunded. The State of Florida requires Plan contributions be made based
upon an actuarial valuation and any contribution shortfalls are the
responsibility of the City to fund. JEA’s contributions (in millions) to the Plan
for the years ending September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $0, $4.5, and
$6.8, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

St. Johns River Power Park Plan Description

The JEA St. Johns River Power Park System Employees’ Retirement Plan
(Plan) is a single employer contributory defined benefit plan covering
employees of SJRPP. All participants who have met the requirements for
number of years of vesting service and age are entitled to monthly Plan
benefits as provided for retirement, survivor, death and disability. SJRPP
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. The latest report (1999) may be
obtained by writing to JEA, Employee Services, Tower 6, 21 West Church
Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32202-3139 or by calling (904) 665-6257.

Plan members are required to contribute currently 1% of their current-year
annual covered salary. SJRPP’s required contribution rate for fiscal year 2001
was 10% of annual covered payroll. The Plan’s funding policy provides for at
least quarterly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates that,
expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to
accumulate assets to pay benefits when due. SJRPP contributions (in millions)
to the Plan for the years ending September 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999 were
$1.8, $1.9, and $1.4, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year.
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JEA has ongoing capital improvement programs for the Electric System
and the Water and Sewer System. The capital programs consist of: (a) the
Electric System capital requirements for additional generating facilities, as
well as improvements to existing generating facilities, that are determined
to be necessary as a result of JEA’s annual resource planning process, (b)
the Electric System’s remaining capital requirements for transmission and
distribution facilities and other capital items, and (c) the Water and Sewer
System capital requirements necessary to accommodate system growth.

JEA’s projected total capital expenditures for fiscal year 2002 through
fiscal year 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

Electric System - Generation, Transmission, Distribution, and Other $ 968,000

Water and Sewer System 572,000

An additional $283 million of capital expenditures (including the
acquisition price) may be spent related to JEA’s anticipated acquisition of
the United Water Florida, Inc. utility in the Northeast Florida area. The
acquisition will be contingent upon the completion of a due diligence
review.

The City has authorized a capital improvement program, referred to as the
River City Renaissance Program (RCR Program), for the acquisition,
construction and improvement of various civic facilities. JEA has assisted
the City in structuring a financing plan, which currently consists of City-
issued commercial paper notes and long-term debt. The City-issued
commercial paper notes are expected to be converted to long-term debt at
some date in the future. The City and JEA have agreed that JEA’s
contribution to the City’s General Fund would be adjusted to offset any
increase (or a portion of any decrease) from $17,403,000 in the annual
debt service after October 1, 2000, on the debt issued by the City to
finance the RCR Program. Current projections indicate that no such
increase will be required in JEA’s contribution to the City’s General Fund.
This program was designed to provide the City with funds sufficient to
pay approximately $242,210,000 of project costs. Any increase in the
JEA contribution would not be effective until after October 1, 2001.
Current  projections  indicate  that the  revenue  streams
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will be sufficient to pay debt service on the outstanding bonds. For fiscal
year 2001, the average commercial paper interest rate under this program
was 3.01% and $60 million of commercial paper notes were outstanding
during this period. The average interest rate for the $151,155,000 of long-
term debt outstanding as of September 30, 2001 was 5.19%, with a final
maturity on this fixed rate debt on October 1, 2018.

Beginning in fiscal year 1996, JEA entered into various interest rate swap
transactions on behalf of the Electric System to manage its interest rate
risk under the River City Renaissance Program. The total notional amount
of the various interest rate swap agreements outstanding at September 30,
2001, was $70 million. Under these agreements, JEA pays a variable rate
of interest, based on various indices, and receives a fixed rate of interest
on outstanding swap agreements expiring over the next four years. For the
fiscal year ending September 30, 2001, the weighted average rates of
interest were as follows:

Weighted-Average Interest Rate
Variable 3.258%
Fixed 4.809%

All earnings on the interest rate swaps are paid to the City of Jacksonville
to supplement the cash flows available for debt service. The notional
amount of the various interest rate swaps is not reflected on the Combined
Balance Sheet; however, the fair value of the interest rate swaps are
included in "Investments" on the Combined Balance Sheet. Although JEA
has no plans or expectations to terminate the interest rate swaps prior to
their maturity dates, as of September 30, 2001, the aggregate fair value of
the interest rate swaps was an asset of $1,971,771. This amount was
calculated using market rates as of September 28, 2001, and standard cash
flow present valuing techniques. JEA is exposed to a potential
nonpayment in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to its
interest rate swap agreements. The risk of nonpayment to JEA in the
event of nonperformance by the counterparty under these agreements is
not significant. JEA does not anticipate nonperformance by the
counterparty.

The City has issued a fixed rate bond issue to finance and refinance
various marine facilities for the Jacksonville Port Authority. JEA, through
a financing agreement, has committed to guaranteeing the growth of
certain revenue streams dedicated to paying the debt service for these
bond issues. The principal amount of the bonds outstanding is $48.72
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(b)

million at September 30, 2001, with a final maturity of October 1, 2009.
Coupon rates for the bonds range from 4.75% to 5.00%. The City and
JEA have agreed that JEA’s contribution to the City’s General Fund
would be adjusted to offset any shortfall in the dedicated revenue streams
to pay the actual debt service. Current projections indicate that the
revenue streams will be sufficient to pay the debt service on the
outstanding bonds.

Starting in fiscal year 1997, JEA entered into an interest rate swap
agreement on behalf of the Electric System to manage its interest rate risk
under the City/Jacksonville Port Authority Financing Agreement. The
total notional amount of the interest rate swap agreement outstanding at
September 30, 2001 was $15 million. Under this agreement, JEA pays a
variable rate of interest, based on an index, and receives a fixed rate of
interest on the outstanding swap agreement, which will expire during the
next year. For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001, the weighted
average rates of interest were as follows:

Weighted-Average Interest Rate
Variable 3.258%
Fixed 4.562%

All earnings on the interest rate swap are currently held by JEA for the
benefit of the Jacksonville Port Authority. The notional amount of the
interest rate swap is not reflected on the Combined Balance Sheet;
however, the fair value of the interest rate swaps is included in
"Investments" on the Combined Balance Sheet. Although JEA has no
plans or expectations to terminate the interest rate swap prior to maturity,
as of September 30, 2001, the aggregate fair value of the interest rate swap
was an asset of $193,903. These amounts were calculated using market
rates as of September 28, 2001, and standard cash flow present valuing
techniques. JEA is exposed to a potential nonpayment in the event of
nonperformance by the counterparty to the interest rate swap agreement.
The risk of nonpayment to JEA in the event of nonperformance by the
counterparty under the agreement is not significant. JEA does not
anticipate nonperformance by the counterparty.

General Litigation
JEA is party to various pending or threatened legal actions arising in

connection with its normal operations. Although the outcome of these
actions is not presently determinable, it is management’s opinion that the
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(d)

General Litigation (ocntinued)

resolution of these matters will have no material adverse effect on JEA’s
financial position or results of operations.

JEA is insured for worker’s compensation and general liability through an
internal service fund of the City of Jacksonville.

Grants and Contracts

JEA participates in various federal and state assisted grant programs that
are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlements to
these resources are generally conditional upon compliance with the terms
and conditions of grant agreements and applicable federal and state
regulations, including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes.
Any disallowance resulting from a federal or state audit may become a
liability of JEA. It is management’s opinion that the results of these audits
will have no material adverse effect on JEA’s financial position or results
of operations.

Environmental Matters

JEA’s generating stations are subject to regulation of their thermal and
wastewater discharges, hazardous wastes, and air emissions by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the Florida Department of
Environmental Protection (FDEP), and the Jacksonville Regulatory and
Environmental Services Department.

JEA has entered into two consent orders with the EPA related to various
solid waste management units and areas of concern at J. Dillon Kennedy
Generation Station and Northside Generation Station. These orders
require JEA to do studies and prepare demonstrations without presently
requiring remedial work. In connection with one area of concern at
Kennedy Generation Station, JEA is in litigation with former owners and
operators of the site and negotiating with their insurance carriers to recoup
anticipated clean-up costs. It is estimated that the remedial cost could be
between $7 and $13 million, although additional costs are possible.

Under Florida Department of Environmental Protection supervision, JEA
has investigated groundwater contamination in the vicinity of the San
Souci Substation in Jacksonville. The contaminants are solvents that may
be associated with substation operations. JEA proposed to monitor the
groundwater conditions to determine if the contaminants are naturally
attenuating. If FDEP approves, it will take several years and cost
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approximately $600,000 to install monitoring wells and confirm natural

attenuation.

An accrued liability of $8.0 million is reflected in the Combined Balance
Sheet under "Deferred credits and other liabilities" applicable to the
corrective action plans for property acquired by JEA such as the one
adjacent to the J. Dillon Kennedy Generation site. This accrued liability is
based on facts known at the date reported. While the final outcome of any
of the proceedings referred to above cannot be predicted with certainty,
JEA does not believe that its potential liabilities for such proceedings,
either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect
upon its financial position and results of operations; however, changes in
EPA standards, improvements in cleanup technology and discovery of
additional information concerning these sites and other sites could affect

the estimated costs in the future.

(e) Green Works Initiative

As part of its Green Works Initiative to supply 7.5 percent of its peak
demand with renewable resources by the year 2015, JEA has contracted
with Biomass Industries, Inc. (BII) to purchase up to 70 MW peak and 35
MW off-peak of firm renewable (Green Power) energy from a gasified
biomass fueled electric generation plant proposed to be constructed by BII
in south Florida. The proposed facility is to be fueled by “E-grass” to be
grown by BII. The initial term of the purchase is for 15 years from the
commercial operations date of the facility, and the parties, by mutual
agreement, have the right to extend the initial term for two additional five-
year periods, on terms to be agreed upon by the parties.
currently is scheduled to be in service by January 2003.
contract, JEA will be obligated to take and pay for such energy as is
produced by the facility, up to the limits stated above, at a fixed price
stated in the contract (subject to periodic escalations). The facility is in
the early stages of development, so JEA can make no assurances as to
whether the facility will be able to achieve commercial operations.

The facility
Under the

() Acquisition of Assets and Customers of United Water Florida, Inc.

On August 1, 2001, JEA announced that it had reached an agreement with
United Water Florida, Inc. (UWF) to purchase the water and sewer assets
and franchise of UWF located in Florida, subject to due diligence review.
UWF currently provides water and/or wastewater services, primarily to
residential customers in parts of Duval County, St. Johns County and
Nassau County. The purchase price of such assets and franchise is
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A. JEA (continued)
(9) Commitments and Contingent Liabilities: (continued)
(f) Acquisition of Assets and Customers of United Water Florida, Inc.
(continued)

expected to be $219,000,000. JEA and UWF currently are in the process
of negotiating an asset purchase agreement. As a condition of the asset
purchase agreement, JEA and UWF are also in the process of negotiating
an operation and maintenance agreement related to certain water and
sewer assets. JEA anticipates issuing long-term debt to pay for the
purchase of the assets and franchise of UWF. JEA and UWF are
attempting to close the acquisition before December 31,2001.

(g9 COLECTRIC PARTNERS, INC.

On April 30, 2001, JEA, along with three other public power utilities,
became a member of COLECTRIC PARTNERS, INC. (formerly known
as PowerPartners, Inc.), a Georgia nonprofit corporation. The purpose of
COLECTRIC PARTNERS INC. (COLECTRIC PARTNERS) is to secure
cost savings through the implementation of reference plant practices in the
development, engineering, procurement, construction and start-up of
generation facilities. Cost savings are also envisioned by joint measures
for training and spare parts. The long-term goal of COLECTRIC
PARTNERS is to provide its members with services in other aspects of the
energy supply chain.

(10) Fuel Management Program:

The fuel management program is intended to help manage the risk of changes
in the market prices of oil and natural gas. During fiscal year 2001, JEA
entered into various fuel management contracts. It is possible that the market
price before or at the specified time to purchase fuel oil may be lower than the
price at which JEA is committed to buy. This would reduce the value of the
contract. JEA is also exposed to the failure of the counterparty to fulfill the
contract. JEA believes the risk of nonperformance by the counterparty under
these contracts is not significant. JEA does not anticipate nonperformance by
the counterparty. It is expected that the dollar value at the exercise price of
such contracts in effect under the program will not exceed $90 million.

(a) Fuel Management of Oil

At September 30, 2001, the fuel management program had no open oil
contracts. For fiscal year 2001, expirations, closings and the fair value
adjustment of fuel management contracts related to oil resulted in a
decrease of $152 in “Operating expense — Fuel.” At September 30, 2001,
the fuel management program related to oil had margin deposits of $0.
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(10) Fuel Management Program: (continued)

(b) Fuel Management of Natural Gas:

During fiscal year 2001, JEA started utilizing The Energy Authority in
managing risks associated with JEA’s fuel management program related to
natural gas. See Note 21.A.(11) - Investment in The Energy Authority.

At September 30, 2001, the fuel management program had 17 open natural
gas contracts with a notional amount of $7,474,900 and a fair value of an
asset of $52,390. For fiscal year 2001, expirations and closings of fuel
management contracts related to natural gas and the fair value adjustment
resulted in a $2,564,941 increase in “Operating expense — Fuel.” At
September 30, 2001, the fuel management program related to natural gas
had margin deposits with a fair value of $1,403,029, which is included in
“Prepaid expenses and other assets” on the Combined Balance Sheet.

(11) Investment in The Energy Authority:

JEA is a member of The Energy Authority (TEA), a municipal power
marketing and risk management joint venture, headquartered in Jacksonville,
Florida. During fiscal year 2000, the four members of the power marketing
function at TEA agreed to accept two new members. JEA’s ownership interest
decreased from 25% to its current 21.43% and as a result, JEA received a
$434,000 prorata share of the new members’ membership fees, which are
recorded as deferred credits and are being amortized over a 24-month period.

In fiscal 2001, TEA began natural gas purchasing and risk management
activities for JEA and other joint venture members. See Note 21.A.(10) - Fuel
Management Program. In accordance with contractual agreements between
JEA and its joint venture partners, JEA has advanced funds to TEA for the
purpose of negotiating power marketing and gas trading transactions. At
inception of the gas trading activities, JEA advanced an additional
approximately $2.3 million dollars to TEA. The total net advances to TEA for
power marketing and risk management activities of $3.5 million at
September 30, 2001 is reflected in “Accounts and Interest Receivable” under
“Current Assets” on the Combined Balance Sheet. JEA’s equity in TEA’s net
income was $10.0 million in fiscal year 2001 for all power marketing and risk
management activities. The investment in TEA is reflected under “Prepaid
expenses and other assets” on the Combined Balance Sheet.

The following is a summary of the unaudited financial information of TEA for
the 9 months ending September 30, 2001 (in thousands):
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A. JEA (continued)
(11) Investment in The Energy Authority: (continued)

12)

Condensed statement of operations:

Operating revenues $413,139
Operating expenses 332,725
Operating income "$ 80,414
Net income W
Condensed balance sheet:

Current assets $ 81,757
Noncurrent assets 11,730

Total assets ~$ 93,487
Current liabilities T $57.874
Noncurrent liabilities 10,000
Equity 25,613

Total equity and liabilities $ 93,487

TEA issues separate audited financial statements on a calendar year basis.
Pursuant to the Electric Advance Agreement and the Natural Gas Advance
Agreement with TEA, JEA’s Board has approved the use of approximately
$60,829,000 to support TEA’s trading activities on behalf of JEA in the form
of corporate guarantees, letters of credit and/or cash advances as determined by
management.

Segment Information

JEA’s electric segment consists of an electric utility engaged in generation, purchase,
transmission, distribution and sale of electricity primarily in Northeast Florida. JEA’s
water and sewer segment consists of water collection, distribution, and wastewater
treatment in Northeast Florida. Segment information for JEA’s electric segment and
water and sewer segment activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 was
as follows (in thousands):

Electric Water and Sewer

Operating revenue $ 841,061 $ 142,098
Depreciation 120,211 37,504
Operating income 156,687 38,603
Net income 67,951 63,319
Additions to plant 546,849 264,457
Total assets 4,297,914 1,524,730
Net working capital 186,246 66,659
Long-term liabilities 3,080,626 671,907
Total equity 750,632 790,128
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(a)

(b)

Reporting Entity

The Jacksonville Port Authority (the Authority) was created in 1963 by
Chapter 63-1447 of the Laws of Florida, to own and operate marine and
aviation facilities in Duval County, Florida. The Authority is governed by
an independent body (the Board) consisting of seven members, four of
whom are appointed by the Governor of Florida and confirmed by the
State Senate, and three of whom are appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council of the City of Jacksonville, Florida (the
City or Council).

The Authority is considered a component unit of the City under
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity. The Authority’s financial statements include
all funds and departments, which the Authority controls or which are
dependent on the Authority. No other agencies or organizations have been
included in the Authority’s financial statements.

The Jacksonville Port Authority was split into two entities, the
Jacksonville Airport Authority and the Jacksonville Seaport Authority (the
Authorities) effective October 1, 2001. The Airport Authority will be
governed by a seven-member board, four appointed by the governor and
three appointed by the mayor. The Seaport Authority will be governed by
a seven-member board, four appointed by the mayor and three by the
governor. See Note 21.B.(11) - Segment Information. Both Authorities
will be considered component units of the City of Jacksonville.

Basis of Accounting

The Authority uses two enterprise funds, Aviation and Marine, to report
its financial position, results of operations and cash flows. These funds are
separately accounted for on a cost of services or capital maintenance
measurement focus. The accrual basis of accounting is used for reporting
purposes. Revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are
recognized as incurred.

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)
(b) Basis of Accounting (continued)

governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Authority
has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board Opinions, issued on or before November 30,
1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental
Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has recently issued new
pronouncements which will affect the financial presentation of future
financial statements of the Authorities.

e GASB Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments; the
Authority will implement concurrently with the City of Jacksonville
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 since the Authority is a
component unit of the City; this Statement establishes that the basic
financial statements and required supplementary information should
consist of:

e Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A). MD&A should
introduce the basic financial statements and provide an analytical
overview of the government's financial activities. Although it is
required supplementary information, governments are required to
present MD&A before the basic financial statements.

¢ Basic financial statements.

e Required supplementary information. In addition to MD&A, this
Statement requires budgetary comparison schedules to be
presented along with other types of data as required by previous
GASB pronouncements.

Special-purpose governments engaged only in business-type activities

should present the financial statements required for enterprise funds,
including MD&A and other required supplementary information.
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)
(b) Basis of Accounting (continued)

GASB Statement 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures

establishes, and rescinds certain financial statement

disclosure requirements and is effective when GASB 34 is
implemented.

(c) Budgeting Procedures

The Jacksonville Port Authority’s charter and related amendments,
Council resolutions and/or Board policies have established the following
budgetary procedures for certain accounts maintained within its enterprise
funds. These include:

ii.

Prior to July 1 of each year, the Authority shall prepare and submit
its budget to the City Council for the ensuing fiscal year.

The Council may increase or decrease the appropriation requested
by the Authority on a total basis or a line-by-line basis, subject to
the following limitations:

The appropriation from the Council for construction,
reconstruction, enlargement, expansion, improvement or
development of any marine project or projects authorized to
be undertaken by the Authority, shall not be reduced below
$800,000 (see Note 21.B.(10)).

Once adopted, the total budget may only be increased
through action of the Council.

Operating budget item transfers may be made with the
approval of the President and CEO or his designee. Line-to-
line capital budget transfers may be made with the approval
of the President and CEO or his designee if it is cumulatively
less than or equal to $100,000 or with the approval of the
Board if over $100,000.

All appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year and must be re-
appropriated except for certain capital and maintenance related projects
that have been formally encumbered.

The same budgeting procedures will be followed by the separate
authorities subsequent to the split.

-139-



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

21.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(e)

()

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in operating accounts and cash
invested in the following highly liquid instruments: money market funds,
cash investment pools payable on demand or overnight repurchase
agreements. These investments have a maturity of three months or less
when purchased.

Investments

All investments are stated at fair market value, in accordance with GASB
No. 31.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Property and equipment, including assets acquired by issuance of
capitalized lease obligations, are depreciated on the straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of
property and equipment are as follows:

Estimated Service Life (Years)

Asset Class Aviation Marine
Buildings 20-50 20-30
Other improvements 10-50 10-50
Equipment 3-25 3-25

Depreciation applicable to assets acquired or constructed by use of monies
received as contributed capital is included in depreciation expense but
charged to contributed capital rather than retained earnings.

When property and equipment are disposed of, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts with gains or
losses on disposition being reflected in current operations.

On September 30, 2001, property and equipment historically shared by the
Aviation and Marine divisions was allocated between the two divisions.
The allocation was agreed to by both divisions and was based upon a
variety of sound business reasons (See Note 21.B.(1)). Depreciation
expense in the future will be based upon the actual division of the
commonly owned property and equipment.
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

(®

()

(@)

1)

(k)

Dredging Related Costs

Dredged soil placement rights were acquired pursuant to an agreement
with the Florida Internal Improvement Trust Fund and are being amortized
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the rights
acquired, which is 25 years.

The cost of periodic maintenance dredging of berthing areas adjacent to
the Authority’s wharves and of certain shipping channels not maintained
by the federal government is expensed as incurred.

Bond Issuance Costs

The costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the various bonds
outstanding are being amortized using the straight-line method over the
life of the related bonds.

Contributed Capital/Grants Receivable

Contributed capital results from grants from the United States
Government, the State of Florida and the City for funding of various
capital projects. Such grants are recognized as a receivable and as

contributed capital as related project costs are incurred (See Note
21.B.(10)).

Property Taxes

In 2001, the Authority commenced paying certain property taxes and in
conjunction therewith bills a portion of such taxes to certain lessees of
property from the Authority. The Authority records property taxes
payable and related receivables on a gross basis in the Combined Balance
Sheet. Reimbursements received are accounted for as a reduction of
property tax expense.

Allocation of Administrative Services

The cost of general administrative services, including accounting and
finance, purchasing, personnel, public relations, data processing, risk
management and the chief executive officer’s office, are allocated to the
marine and aviation enterprise funds at 55% and 45%, respectively, based
on internal studies which are periodically reviewed. In the future the
marine and aviation divisions will record their actual separate expenses.
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

(2) Cash and Investments:

The Governing Body has authorized the Authority to invest in obligations of
the U.S. Government and certain of its agencies, repurchase agreements,
investment grade commercial paper, money market funds, corporate bonds,
time deposits, bankers' acceptances, state and /or local debt, and the Florida
State Board of Administration Investment Pool. Restricted bond proceeds are
invested in accordance with the bond indenture agreements.

Cash, consisting of bank balances on deposit, is entirely insured or
collateralized with securities held by the Authority’s agent in the Authority’s
name. Securities are collateralized by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
Government and/or the guarantee of U.S. Government agencies. Repurchase
agreements are collateralized by U.S. Treasury or U.S. agency securities
valued at 102% of the value of invested funds.

The Authority’s investments are categorized to indicate the level of credit risk
assumed by the Authority. Category (1) includes investments that are insured
or registered or for which the securities are held by the Authority or its agent in
the Authority’s name; Category (2) includes uninsured or unregistered
investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty’s trust
department or agent, and in the Authority’s name; Category (3) includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Authority’s
name. All of the Authority’s investments were included in category 1 for the
year ended September 30, 2001.

Investments are presented at September 30, 2001, (in thousands):

Fair Value Fair Value Change in
Security Type Cost at 9/30/00 Purchases Sales Subtotal at 9/30/01 Fair Value

U.S. Government
and their agencies’

securities $70,510 $59212 $ 88,599 ($74,082) $73,729 § 71,703 ($2,026)
Corporate bonds 2,907 - 2,907 (6,051)  (3,144) 2,996 6,140
Commercial paper 1,092 - 12,459 (9,252) 3,207 1,094 (2,113)
Investment

agreement note - 35,322 1,274 (36,596) - - -
Total $74,509 $94,534 $105,239 ($125,981) $73,792 $75793 $ 2,001

Restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments must be used for renewal
and replacement of existing facilities, construction and acquisition of property
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B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

)

3)

(C))

Cash and Investments: (continued)

and equipment, repayment of outstanding bonds, or operations and
maintenance.

Interest earned on pooled cash accounts are allocated to the enterprise funds
based on relative daily balances in the pooled cash accounts.

Capitalization of Interest:

The Authority capitalizes interest expense on construction in progress under
FASB Statement No. 62. Capitalization of interest cost in situations involving
tax exempt borrowings and certain grants is applicable when “specified
qualifying assets” are constructed with proceeds that are externally restricted.
Interest costs are netted against the interest earned on the invested proceeds of
specific purpose tax-exempt borrowings. The capitalization period is from the
time of the borrowing until the completion of the project. The following
schedule summarizes capitalization of interest for the Authority for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2001, (in thousands).

Total interest expense incurred $ 10,866
Interest expense associated with construction 4,617
Interest earned in construction accounts capitalized (3,250)
Net interest capitalized 1,367
Net interest expense incurred $ 9,499

Leasing Operations:

Minimum future rental income for each of the next five years and thereafter,
excluding contingent or volume variable amounts on noncancelable operating
leases at September 30, 2001, is as follows (in thousands):

Year Aviation Marine Total

2002 $11,433 $ 7,565 $ 18,998
2003 8,930 7,138 16,068
2004 8,489 7,132 15,621
2005 7,952 4,774 12,726
2006 7,788 3,338 11,126
Thereafter 25,247 20,426 45,673
Total $69,839 $50,373 $120,212

The Authority receives contingent rentals under certain leases if cargo
throughput or concessionaires’ receipts exceed minimum amounts. Contingent
rentals or volume variable amounts were received as follows (in thousands):
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(4) Leasing Operations: (continued)

Aviation Marine Total

Total Contingent Rentals $11,418 $717 $ 12,135

(5) Pension Plans:

(a) Plan Description

(b)

(c)

All of the full-time employees of the Authority participate in the Florida
State Retirement System (the System), a cost sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit public retirement system. Certain “special risk” employees
who retire at or after age 55, with six years of creditable service and all
other employees who retire at or after age 62, with six years of creditable
service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal
to the product of 1) average monthly compensation in the highest five
years of creditable service; 2) years of creditable service; and 3) the
appropriate benefit percentage. Benefits fully vest on reaching six years of
creditable service. Vested employees may retire after six years of
creditable service and receive reduced retirement benefits. The System
also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by
Florida Statute. The system issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
This report may be obtained by writing to the Florida State Retirement

System, Division of Policy, Cedars Executive Center Building C, 2639
North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560, attention Research
and Education, or by calling (850) 414-6349.

Funding Policy

The Authority is required by Florida Statute to contribute 18.44% of
special risk, 9.28% of senior management, 12.67% of deferred retirement
option and 7.3% of all other employee earnings. The contribution
requirement in the accompanying financial statements, was $1,731,000,
$1,855,000, and $2,206,000, for the years ended September 30, 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively. Covered employees are not required to make
contributions to the System.

Current Status
Effective October 1, 2001 current employees may elect to remain in the

System or may elect to discontinue participation in the System and
participate in the City's General Employees' Pension Plan. Years-of-

- 144 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

21.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

®)

(6)

M

Pension Plans: (continued)
(¢) Current Status (continued)

service does not carry over to the City's General Employees' Pension Plan
for vesting purposes. New general employees will participate in the City's
General Employees' Pension Plan.

Deferred Compensation Plan:

The Authority offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the 457
Plan) created in accordance with IRS Code Section 457. The Plan, which is
available to all full-time employees, permits employees to defer a portion of
their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

All plan assets are held by trustees for the exclusive benefit of plan participants
and beneficiaries. Thus the assets and liabilities relating to the 457 Plan are not
reflected on the Authority’s balance sheet. The market value of the Plan’s
investments was $4,435,000 as of September 30, 2001.

The Authority also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the
401(a) Plan), created in accordance with IRS code Section 401(a). The
Authority contributes a specified amount for each dollar the employee defers to
the 457 Plan. All 401(a) Plan assets are held by trustees for the exclusive
benefit of plan participants and beneficiaries. The market value of the 401(a)
Plan’s investments was $245,000 as of September 30, 2001.

The Authorities will initially each offer identical plans to the above 457 Plan
and the 401(a) Plan.

Risk Management:

The Authority participates in the City’s experience rated self-insurance plan
which provides for auto liability, comprehensive general liability, and workers’
compensation coverage, up to $1,000,000 per occurrence for workers’
compensation claims. The Authority has excess coverage for individual
workers' compensation claims above $1,000,000. The Authority's expense is
the premium charged by the City's self-insurance plan. Liability for claims
incurred are the responsibility of, and are recorded in, the City's self-insurance
plan. The premiums may be calculated on a retrospective or prospective basis
depending on the claims experience of the Authority and other participants in
the City’s self-insurance programs. Premium expense amounted to $714,000
for the year ended September 30, 2001.

As a part of the Authority’s risk management program, certain commercial
insurance policies are purchased to cover designated exposures and potential
loss situations.
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(8) Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases:

Long-term debt and capital leases at September 30, 2001 consisted of the
following (in thousands):

Airport Revenue Bonds:
Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2000, including serial bonds due in
varying amounts through 2024. Interest rates range from $ 47,460

4.50% to0 6.125%.

Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998, including serial
bonds due in varying amounts through 2017. Interest rates range 60,050
from 4.00% to 5.00%.

Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993, including serial bonds
due in varying amounts through 2009 and term bonds due October
2017, subject to annual sinking fund redemption. Interest rates
range from 4.60% to 5.65%.

Marine Revenue Bonds:
Marine Revenue Bonds, Series 2000, including serial bonds due in
Varying amounts through 2030. Interest rates range from 4.50%
To 5.7%.

Marine Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996, including serial bonds
due in varying amounts through 2019, subject to annual sinking 62,080
fund redemption. Interest rates range from 5.50% to 5.75%.

Marine Equipment Capital Lease Obligation:

Subordinated Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement, Series 1999-A,
with semi-annual principal and interest payments through 2014 with 12,042
interest at an annual rate of 5.14%.

Marine Note Payable:

Subordinated Revenue Note, Series 1992, with quarterly principal and
Interest payments of $188 through 2002 with interest at an 751
Annual rate of 5.69%.

Note payable, with monthly principal and interest payments of $3 through

2002 with interest at an annual rate of 4.90%.

Total Long-Term Debt 251,174
Less: Current Portion (6,763)
Total, less current portion $ 244,411

29,120

39,625

46

In February 2000, the Authority issued $47,460,000 principal amount of
Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2000. The proceeds from the bonds are being
used for the acquisition, construction and installation of capital improvements
at Jacksonville International Airport.

The Series 1993, 1998 and 2000 Airport Bonds are collateralized by a first lien
upon and pledge of the operating revenues derived from operation of the
Airport facilities. The Authority has agreed to take necessary actions to attain
and maintain operating revenues sufficient to achieve certain minimum
measures as to the ability of the Airport to service its outstanding indebtedness.

- 146 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

21.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
(8) Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases: (continued)

In November 2000, the Authority issued $39,625,000 principal amount of
Marine Revenue Bonds, Series 2000. The proceeds of the bonds are being
used for the acquisition, construction and installation of capital improvements
to the Marine Facilities.

The Series 2000 and 1996 Marine Bonds are collateralized by a lien upon and
pledge of net revenues of the Marine Facilities and certain monies held in trust
funds. The Authority has agreed in its various bond related documents to
establish and maintain rates charged to Marine customers that will be sufficient
to generate certain levels of operating revenues and operating income in excess
of its annual debt service on the various outstanding Marine Bonds. The Series
2000 and 1996 Marine Bonds also place restrictions on the Authority’s
issuance of debt on a parity with Marine Bonds currently outstanding.

The Authority cash defeased $13,855,000 principal amount of Marine Revenue
Bonds, Series 1993 in September 1999. The Authority incurred a loss on
defeasance of $1,325,000. The Authority through the defeasance, reduced its
aggregate debt service payments by $2,847,000 over the next 4 years and will
obtain an economic gain (difference between the present value of debt service
of the refunded bonds and cash escrow) of $778,000.

In April 1999, the Authority entered into a fifteen year Equipment Lease-
Purchase Agreement Series 1999-A (the Capital Lease) in the principal amount
of $25,225,000. The proceeds from the Capital Lease are being used for the
acquisition, construction and installation of four container gantry cranes and
two rubber-tired cranes. During the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001, the
Authority made unscheduled principal paydowns totaling $10,422,000.

Revolving Line of Credit

In July 1999, the Authority entered into a $25,000,000 revolving line of credit
to provide interim financing for the acquisition, construction and installation of
certain capital improvements to the Marine Facilities. As of September 30,
2001, the Authority had not drawn against the line of credit. The line of credit
expires in June 2002.

Debt Maturities
Required debt service for the outstanding revenue bonds and notes payable for

the next five years and thereafter to maturity are as follows (amounts in
thousands):
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
(8) Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases: (continued)

Aviation Marine Total

Years ending Interest  Principal  Interest  Principal Interest Principal
September 30:
2002 $ 7,127 $ 4,185 $ 5632 $ 1,880 $ 12,759 § 6,065
2003 6,939 4,350 5,527 1,777 12,466 6,127
2004 6,738 4,550 5,422 2,375 12,160 6,925
2005 6,524 4,760 5,292 2,805 11,816 7,565
2006 6,285 4,985 5,142 3,155 11,427 8,140
2007 to maturity 58,115 113,800 57,363 90,510 115,478 204,310

Total $91,728 $136,630 $84,378 $102,502 $176,106 $239,132

The following is a schedule by years of future marine minimum lease
payments under capital leases together with the present value of the marine
minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2001 (in thousands):

Years Ending September 30

2002 § 1,327
2003 1,278
2004 1,278
2005 1,278
2006 1,278
Thereafter 10,227
Total minimum lease payments 16,666
Less: Amount representing interest (4,624)

Present value of minimum lease payments $12,042

Advance Refunding of Revenue Bonds

The Authority has defeased a revenue bond issue by placing funds in an
irrevocable trust restricted for payment of all principal and interest upon
maturity of the revenue bond. This transaction has been treated as an in-
substance defeasement and, accordingly, has been accounted for as though the
debt has been extinguished. The debt that has been defeased and the related
balances at September 30, 2001 are as follows (in thousands):

Investment
Balance with
Principal Balance Escrow Agent
Marine Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 $ 11,705 $ 13,143
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

®)

©)

Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases: (continued)
Special Purpose Facility Revenue Bond

To provide for the construction of an air cargo shipping, storage and handling
facility at the airport, the Authority has issued one series of Special Purpose
Facility Revenue Bonds. These bonds are special limited obligations of the
Authority, payable solely from and secured by a pledge of rentals to be
received from a lease agreement between the Authority and an air cargo
company. The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit
of the Authority, the County, or the State, and accordingly have not been
reported in the accompanying financial statements.

At September 30, 2001, Special Purpose Facility Revenue Bonds outstanding
aggregated approximately $3.2 million.

Commitments and Contingencies:

At September 30, 2001, the Authority had commitments for purchases of
equipment and future construction work of approximately $26,489,000 for the
Marine Enterprise Fund and $55,300,000 for the Aviation Enterprise Fund. In
addition to its own funds, the Authority also has funding available from the
Florida Ports Financing Commission in the amount of $5,302,000 for
qualifying marine capital expenditures.

In December 1998, the Authority became aware that a piece of its real property
was contaminated and may be subject to undetermined cleanup efforts. The
Authority’s property was sampled by the Florida Department of Environmental
Protection in connection with testing at an adjacent site, not owned by the
Authority, but known to be contaminated. The Authority has investigated the
former uses of its property and is unable to identify any source of
contamination other than from the adjacent site not owned by the Authority.
The owner of the adjacent property and the United States Environmental
Protection Agency have entered into an Administrative Order of Consent
whereby the adjacent site will be further investigated and remediation
alternatives identified. The adjacent property owner has sampled soils and
groundwater from one well placed on the Authority's property; which
identified pesticide related contamination at that location. Additional sampling
may be conducted in the future. The Authority believes that it is not a
responsible party.
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)

(10) Contributed Capital and Retained Earnings:

A summary of the changes in contributed capital for the year ended September
30, 2001 is as follows (in thousands):

Aviation Marine Total

Balance at the beginning of the year $ 157,151 $213,296 $370,447
Reductions during the year:

Depreciation of facilities provided by

government grants 5,891 4,919 10,810

Reduction of prior year contribution - 19 19
Total reductions 5,891 4,938 10,829
Balance at the end of the year $151,260 $ 208,358 $359,618

City of Jacksonville Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds

In February 1993, the City issued $43,605,140 of Excise Tax Revenue Bonds,
Series 1993 (1993 Bonds) of which $38,880,000 of the total proceeds were
loaned to the Authority for marine port expansion. In October 1996, the City
issued $57,150,000 of Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (1996 Bonds), of which
$56,035,000 of the proceeds were contributed to the Authority for marine port
expansion. The City is responsible to the Bond Holders for payment of the debt
service on the 1993 and 1996 bonds.

The City has allocated to the Authority an amount equal to 50% of the increase
in the City’s telecommunication tax revenues over the base year and 50% of an
additional mill of revenue the City receives from the JEA (the Authority
Allocation).

The Authority is not required to pay the City any amount for debt service on
the 1993 Bonds. The City retains the Authority Allocation and the $800,000
annual appropriation (See Note 21.B.(1)) to the Authority which is used by the
City for debt service on the 1993 and 1996 Bonds. As the Authority expends
funds for marine port expansion, reimbursements from the City are accounted
for as contributed capital by the Authority.
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
(10) Contributed Capital and Retained Earnings: (continued)

Florida Ports Financing Commission Revenue Bonds, Series 1996

On December 19, 1996, $222,320,000 Florida Ports Financing Commission
Revenue Bonds (State Transportation Trust Fund), Series 1996 (the “Series
1996 Bonds”) were issued to provide funds to finance the costs of acquiring
and constructing capital projects undertaken by 11 ports located in the State of
Florida (the “Ports”), including the Jacksonville Port Authority. The amount
allocated to the Authority was $32,680,000 plus earned interest which is
available for approved capital expenditures on a fifty-fifty matching basis. In
April, 2000, an additional $2,437,500 plus earned interest was allocated to the
Authority. In May, 2001, an additional $7,000,000 was allocated to the
Authority.

The Series 1996 Bonds do not create nor constitute an obligation or debt of the
Jacksonville Port Authority. The financing program of the Commission is in
substance a grant program, inasmuch as all debt service payments on the Series
1996 Bonds are payable solely from monies in the State Transportation Trust
Fund. As expenditures are incurred for the approved projects, the Authority
records a receivable from the Commission for 50% of qualified amounts and
records the amount to be reimbursed as contributed capital. As of September
30, 2001, the Authority has drawn approximately $45,457,325 of eligible
expenditures.

Florida Ports Financing Commission Revenue Bonds, Series 1999

On October 14, 1999 the Florida Ports Financing Commission (the
Commission) issued $153,115,000 in Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 (the "Series
1999 Bonds"). The Series 1999 Bonds were issued to provide funds to finance
the costs of acquiring and constructing capital projects undertaken by 9 ports
located in the State of Florida (the Ports), including the Jacksonville Port
Authority. The amount allocated to the Jacksonville Port Authority was
$31,966,000 which is available for approved expenditures. Including earned
interest, the maximum amount approved for funding is $33,800,000.

The Authority has not recorded a liability for the Series 1999 Bonds since it
does not have any obligation except for moneys due it from the State
Transportation Trust Fund. As discussed above, all of such moneys have been
assigned to the Trustee to pay the debt. The Authority has no other obligation
for payment of the debt. As expenditures are incurred for the approved
projects, the Authority records a receivable from the Commission for 50% of
qualifying amounts (75% of certain qualifying amounts) and records the
amount % to be reimbursed as contributed capital. As of September 30, 2001,
the Authority has drawn approximately $28,499,095 of eligible expenditures.
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21. MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
B. Jacksonville Port Authority (continued)
(10) Contributed Capital and Retained Earnings: (continued)

Federal Government Property Conveyance

On October 1, 1999, the U.S. Department of the Navy conveyed certain
aviation assets of Cecil Field, a former U.S. Navy air base, to the Authority.
The property consisted of land, runways, taxiways, apron and flight line,
building and improvements with a total fair market value of $74,587,000. The
transaction was recorded with a credit to contributed capital of $74,587,000.

Reserved retained earnings at September 30, 2001 are as follows (in

thousands):
Aviation Marine Total
Replacement and renewal $1,027 $1,348 $ 2,375
Capital projects - 5,327 5,327
Operations and maintenance 2,847 2,031 4,878
$ 3,874 $ 8,706 $ 12,580

(11) Segment Information:

The Authority consists of two enterprise funds, Aviation and Marine. Segment
information for each enterprise fund for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2001 is as follows (in thousands):

Aviation Marine
Operating revenue $ 37441 $ 27,183
Depreciation and amortization 12,748 14,678
Operating (loss) (2,750) (6,900)
Net income 15,239 2,113
Current capital contributions 10,674 28,611
Additions to property and equipment 49,264 43,741
Total assets 431,513 397,550
Net working capital 33,936 2,730
Long-term debt and capital leases 127,750 106,811
Total equity 283,264 257,961

(12) Other Non-Operating Income, Net:

Other non-operating revenue (expense) is summarized as follows (in

thousands):
Passenger facility charges (restricted for qualified capital projects) $ 7,204
Net gain on sale of assets 37
Other 15
Total $ 7,256
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority

(1) Reporting Entity:

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority (the Authority) is a public body
politic and corporate agency of the State of Florida under Chapter 349, as
amended, Florida Statutes. It is empowered to construct, improve, operate and
lease the Jacksonville Expressway System and improvements thereto, to fix
and collect rates, rentals and other charges for the services and facilities of
such system; and to secure its bonds by a pledge of such revenues and all or
part of Duval County gasoline tax and sales tax funds pursuant to a Lease-
Purchase Agreement between the Authority and the State of Florida
Department of Transportation (FDOT). FDOT maintains responsibility for the
operation of the Expressway System with the exception of certain contract
maintenance functions.

The Authority is also empowered to acquire, construct, operate and lease a
mass transit system; it may plan, coordinate and recommend methods and
facilities for the parking of vehicles and the movement of pedestrians and
vehicular traffic; it may issue evidences of indebtedness and secure payment
thereof by pledge of its revenues. These activities are not related to expressway
system activities or to the State of Florida’s (State) obligations to holders of the
Jacksonville Transportation Authority Revenue Bonds, issued on its behalf by
the State.

The Authority has adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, for the purpose of
evaluating its financial statements. Based on the criteria in Statement No. 14,
the Authority has determined that there are no other units that meet the criteria
for inclusion in the Authority’s financial statements. However, the Authority
meets the criteria for inclusion as a discretely presented component unit in the
State of Florida and the City of Jacksonville financial statements.

The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting. As provided by Statement No. 20, the Authority
has elected not to adopt any Financial Accounting Standards Board statements
issued after November 30, 1989 unless so directed by the GASB.

During fiscal year 2001, the Authority, through an agreement with the State of
Florida, became community transportation coordinator (CTC) for Duval
County. Activities related to these services are being accounted for in an
enterprise fund.

- 153 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

21.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Authority are organized and operated on the basis of
funds and account groups, each an independent fiscal and accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise the assets, liabilities, fund equity,
retained earnings, revenues, expenditures and expenses, as appropriate.
Authority resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds
based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by
which spending activities are controlled. Account groups are a reporting
device to account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental
funds not recorded directly in those funds and are not involved with the
measurement of results of operations.

The Authority has the following fund types and account groups:

Governmental Fund Types. The focus of Governmental Fund Type
measurement is upon determination of financial position and changes in
financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial resources) rather
than upon net income. Governmental Fund Types use the flow of current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis for accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are “measurable
and available”). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.

Proprietary Fund Type. The focus of Proprietary Fund Type
measurement is the flow of economic resources and the accrual basis of
accounting is used. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Proprietary
Funds of the Authority consist of the following fund type:

Enterprise Funds—These funds are used to account for Mass
Transportation operations (BUS—bus system, ASE—Automated Skyway
Express system and CTC—community transportation coordinator) that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the
Authority’s board has decided that the determination of revenues earned,
costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management
accountability.
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

(b) Cash and Equivalents

Cash and equivalents includes certain investments and cash on deposit.
The Authority considers all investments with an original maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Such investments
include repurchase agreements, treasury bills and money market funds and
are reported at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

(c) Investments

Investments are carried at fair value or amortized cost in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 31. Investments with a maturity date greater than
one year from the purchase date are reported at fair value as determined by
quoted market prices, and investments with a maturity date less than one
year from the purchase date are reported at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value.

(d) Inventory

Inventory consists of materials and supplies and is carried using the
average cost method.

(e) Fixed Assets and Infrastructure

Governmental Funds—Fixed assets and infrastructure are valued at
historical cost. The cost of expressway facilities (infrastructure) includes
right-of-way expenditures, construction costs and administrative and legal
expenditures made from Capital Projects Fund and General Fund monies.
The Authority does not record depreciation or capitalized interest on
governmental funds fixed assets and infrastructure.

Enterprise Fund—Enterprise fund fixed assets are valued at historical cost.
Depreciation commences when the assets are placed in service. Property
and equipment is depreciated by the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 15 - 40 years
Vehicles 5 - 25 years
Other equipment 3 - 10 years

Because the rate structure of the Enterprise Funds (Mass Transportation
operations) is not sufficient to generate revenues to cover the acquisition,
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)
(e) Fixed Assets and Infrastructure (continued)

replacement, and future expansion of property and equipment, the
Authority is compelled to seek contributions-in-aid for construction from
local, state and federal sources. As recommended in the Industry Audit
Guide for Audits of State and Local Governmental Units prepared by the
State and Local Government Committee of the American institute of
Certified Public Accountants, depreciation applicable to assets acquired
prior to October 1, 2000 through contributions-in-aid for construction is
charged to contributions rather than retained earnings.

(f) Compensated Absences

Vested vacation, sick leave and related fringe benefits are accrued when
earned.

(g) Estimated Liability for Injury and Damage Claims

Periodic provisions for injury and damage claims are charged to
operations based on the estimated ultimate cost of settling claims, using
past experience adjusted for current trends, and other factors, if any, that
would modify past experience. Claims are charged to the estimated
liability when paid.

(h) Subsidies and Grants

Capital grants from federal, state and local sources are recorded as capital
contributions and subsidies and grants for operating assistance are
recorded as nonoperating revenues in the statement of revenues and
expenses in the accounting period in which they are earned and become
measurable.

(i) Revenues and Expenditures
Sales taxes and investment earnings are recorded when earned (when they
are measurable and available). Passenger fares and miscellaneous
revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash.
Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability

is incurred, if measurable, except expenditures for debt service and other
long-term obligations, which are recognized when paid.
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

(j) Transfers

During the normal course of operations, numerous transactions occur
between funds. Transfers of net resources from a fund receiving revenue
to a fund in which the resources are to be expended are recorded as
operating transfers.

Operating transfers between the Authority and the City or State are
recorded as operating transfers from/to primary government. This includes
transfers of sales tax revenues from the Authority to the State to service
debt issued by the State on behalf of the Authority.

Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as
residual equity transfers. During the current fiscal year, $1 million was
transferred from the general fund to the CTC fund and $500,000 was
transferred from the general fund to the ASE fund.

(k) Budget and Budgetary Accounting

The Authority prepares budgets for each of its governmental funds. The
budgets are approved by the City of Jacksonville (City). The Authority is
authorized to transfer appropriated funds from one of the purposes for
which funds are appropriated to another, if in the discretion of the
Authority, such transfer is necessary to carry out all of the purposes for
which funds are appropriated, subject to applicable law. Thus, the legal
level of budgetary control is at the fund level. All budgets are adopted in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States and appropriations lapse at year-end.

(1) Fund Balance Designations

Designations of fund balance relate to amounts restricted as to their use at
the discretion of the Authority.

(3) Cash and Investments:

Cash and Equivalents—At September 30, 2001, all of the Authority’s cash
balances were insured by federal deposit insurance or collateralized pursuant to
Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The Authority has no compensating balance
arrangements.
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21. MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(3) Cash and Investments: (continued)

“)

Investments—The Authority’s investment practices are governed by Chapter
280, Florida Statutes and various legal covenants related to the outstanding
bond issues. Investments at September 30, 2001 include amounts invested in
the State treasury pool for which the Authority has shares of the pool based on
its investment level as compared to other pool participants. In addition to
investments listed below, the Authority also invested in repurchase agreements
during the year.

Cash and investments held at September 30, 2001 are categorized in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 3 in the following table to indicate the
level of credit risk assumed by the Authority. Certain investments cannot be
categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical
or book entry form, such as mutual funds and investments in the State treasury
pool. Cash and investments held at September 30, 2001, are as follows (in
thousands):

Risk Category
] > 3 Recorded Fair
Type Amount Value

Investments not categorized:

State treasury pooled investments $102,877 $102,877
Cash and cash equivalents not categorized:

Money market investments 85,646 85,646

Cash in banks 10,417 10,417

Cash on hand 6 6
Total cash and equivalents and investments $198,946 $ 198,946

Restricted cash and equivalents and investments with the State of Florida are
restricted for use for construction expenditures described in the applicable City
or State bond indentures.

Fixed Assets:

(a) Changes in the General Fixed Assets Account Group

The following is a schedule of changes in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group for the year ended September 30, 2001 (in thousands):

- 158 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

21.
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C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(4) Fixed Assets: (continued)

(a)

(b)

Changes in the General Fixed Assets Account Group (continued)

Balance Balance
September 30, Disposals/ September 30,
2000 Additions  Transfers 2001
Land and improvements $ 13,903 $ 13,091 ($12,538) $ 14,456
Buildings - 258 - 258
Furniture and equipment 155 21 - 176
Vehicles 95 103 (103) 95
Roads and bridges 122,179 - (122,179) -
Construction in progress 84,403 51,552 (33,058) 102,897
Total $220,735 $65,025 ($167,878) $117,882

The Authority builds infrastructure assets for the State and the City and
after completion the City or State is responsible for maintaining the assets
as a result of the discharge of the 1963, 1977 and 1985 trust indenture and
related lease-purchase agreements or other agreements between the
Authority and FDOT or the City. Since the City or State is responsible for
maintaining the infrastructure assets completed by the Authority, the
Authority transfers such assets upon completion of the related construction
project. During fiscal year 2001, assets with a historical cost of
approximately $128,706,000 were transferred to the State of Florida.

At September 30, 2001 the General Fixed Assets Account Group included
assets of approximately $102,897,000 which will be transferred to the City
and/or the State on various dates when completed.

Changes in Fixed Assets of the Enterprise Fund
The following is a schedule of changes in fixed assets of the Enterprise

Funds for the year ended September 30, 2001 (in thousands):

Balance  Additions/ Disposals/ Balance
September 30, Transfers/ Transfers/ September 30,
2000 Provisions Deletions 2001

Land $ 13,131 $ 8652 $ - $ 21,783
Building and improvements 87,123 31,545 - 118,668
Vehicles 55,638 6,968 (166) 62,440
Other equipment 53,336 19,249 @2n 72,564
Construction in progress 28,624 3,764  (31,938) 450
TOTAL 237,852 70,178  (32,125) 275,905
Less:

Accumulated Depreciation (59,830) (13,071) 168 (72,733)
TOTAL, net of accumulated

Depreciation $178,022 $57,107 ($31,957) $203,172
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

(5) Interfund Balances:

(6)

()

The following is a schedule of interfund balances at September 30, 2001 (in
thousands):

Due To
Expressway  Mass Transit
System System Total
Due From
Expressway System $ - $ 500 $ 500
Mass Transit System 473 - 473
TOTAL $ 473 $ 500 $973

During the current year, the Bus fund advanced $232,760 to the CTC fund for
operating purposes. This advance has no stated repayment period, is non

interest-bearing and is expected to be repaid through future earnings of the
CTC fund.

Revenue Bonds:

The State of Florida has issued certain revenue bonds on behalf of the
Authority which had been recorded on both the State’s and the Authority’s
financial statements. Since these bonds represent a liability of the State and not
of the Authority, effective October 1, 2000, assets and liabilities in the amount
of $29,008,614 that had been included in a debt service fund and assets and
liabilities in the amount of $370,535,000 that had been included in the general
long-term debt account group have been removed from the Authority’s
financial statements. These amounts are now included solely on the State’s
financial statements.

Loan Payable:

On November 27, 2000, the Authority entered into a $21,000,000 State
Infrastructure Bank Loan Agreement with FDOT, to be received in
disbursements of $12,000,000 in fiscal 2001 and $9,000,000 in fiscal 2002, the
proceeds of which are to be used for construction related to the Wonderwood
Project. The loan is to be repaid in a single payment of principal on or before
December 31, 2003, but may be repaid in whole or in part in $100,000
increments. The amount of $12,000,000 was outstanding at September 30,
2001.
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MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)

@®

®)

Estimated Liability for Injury and Damage Claims:

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to injury and damage
claims arising from bus and ASE operations.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Individual claims in excess of
$100,000 and $200,000 per occurrence would be subject to the Florida
Sovereign Immunity Law. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have
been incurred but not reported (IBNRs). Claim liabilities are calculated
considering the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends including
frequency and amount of payouts and other economic and social factors. The
liability is reported in the Enterprise Funds.

The estimated liability for injury and damage claims consisted of the following
(in thousands):

Reported and known claims $ 368
Estimated incurred but not reported claims 2,148

Total $2,516

Changes in the estimated liability for injury and damage claims consisted of
the following (in thousands):

Balance, beginning of year $1,939
Claims provision 866
Claims paid (289)
Balance, end of year $2,516

Management does not expect that these matters will have a material effect on
the financial position or results of operations of the Authority.

Commitments and Contingencies:

The Authority as a whole has commitments on outstanding contracts
amounting to approximately $64,991,000 at September 30, 2001.

Contingencies—The Authority is a party to a number of lawsuits and claims
primarily related to condemnation proceedings for right-of-way acquisitions
and injury and damage claims arising out of the normal conduct of its mass
transportation activities. The Authority is self-insured in regards to injury and
damage claims. In the opinion of Authority management, based on the advice
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21.

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(9) Commitments and Contingencies: (continued)

of legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of these lawsuits and claims will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations
of the Authority.

Federal and State grant awards are audited in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133 and the Single Audit Act of 1984, and the Florida Single Audit Act,
respectively, to determine the Authority’s compliance with the terms and
conditions of the grant awards. These grant awards are subject to audit by the
respective grantor agencies. It is management’s opinion that no material
liabilities will result from any such audits.

Self-Insurance—During January 1988, the Florida State Department of
General Services rendered an opinion which stated that the Authority was no
longer included in the State Self-Insurance Fund. The Authority is responsible
for any potential liability related to accidents on Jacksonville Transportation
Authority projects. Any individual claim in excess of $100,000 and $200,000
per occurrence would be subject to the Florida Sovereign Immunity Law.
Management does not expect that these matters will have a material effect on
the financial position or results of operations of the Authority. The Authority
has $200,000 designated for any potential liability related to accidents on the
Jacksonville Transportation Authority projects. There have been no claims of
liability against the Authority or any claims payments by the Authority related
to such accidents in the last four years.

(10) Employee Benefits:

Florida Retirement System—The Authority participates in the Florida
Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public
employee retirement system administered by the State of Florida Department
of Administration, Division of Retirement, to provide retirement and survivor
benefits to participating public employees. Chapter 121, Florida Statutes,
establishes the Authority for participant eligibility, contribution requirements,
vesting eligibility and benefit provisions.

Benefits are determined by category and length of service as follows:

-162 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

21. MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(10) Employee Benefits: (continued)

Employer
Contribution Rate
Membership July 1, July 1,
Category Benefit Vesting 2001 2000
Regular 1.6% times years of service times After 6 years 7.30% 9.15%
average compensation (5 highest  of creditable
years) if age 62 or 30 years of service.
service at any age.
Senior 2.0 % times years of service times After 6 years 9.28% 11.13%
Management average compensation (5 highest  of creditable
years) if age 55 or 25 years of service.

special risk service.
Deferred Accumulated FRS benefits earn Subjectto  12.67% 12.50%

Retirement 6.50% effective annual interest normal
Option compounded monthly for a period system
Program up to 60 months after becoming vesting
(DROP) vested, having reached normal  provision for
retirement date, and remaining ~ membership
employed. category.

Employer contributions include 1.11%, effective July 1, 2001, and 0.94% for
prior periods, for a post-retirement health insurance subsidy and 0.10%
administrative fee.

Participating employer contributions are based upon actuarially determined
state-wide rates established by the State of Florida, that expressed as
percentages of annual covered payroll are adequate to accumulate sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due. No employee contributions are required.

The contributions required for the years ended September 30, 2001, 2000, and
1999 were $488,432, $501,449, and $677,184, respectively, which is equal to
the required contribution for each year.

During the year ended June 30, 2001, the System held no securities issued by
the Authority.

The Florida Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the
plan. That report may be obtained by writing to the Division of Retirement,
2639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560, or by calling
850-488-5541.

JTM Money Purchase Pension Plan—The Authority also contributes to the
Jacksonville Transit Management, Inc. (JTM) Money Purchase Pension Plan,
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21. MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)
C. Jacksonville Transportation Authority (continued)
(10) Employee Benefits: (continued)

which covers all employees on JTM’s payroll whose job classification is
within the bargaining unit represented by a union. Such contributions for the
year ended September 30, 2001 were based on the collective bargaining
agreements in effect and are included in operating expenses in the amount of
$1,967,316.

(11) Enterprise Fund Contributed Capital:

Following is a summary of contributed capital by source at September 30,
2001 (in thousands):

United States capital grants $ 149,580
State of Florida capital grants 45,252
City of Jacksonville capital grants 22,879
General Fund contributed capital 30,983
Total 248,694
Less: Accumulated depreciation (72,677)
Less: Grant assets consumed (7,388)

Total, net of accumulated depreciation
and grant assets consumed $ 168,629

(12) New Accounting Pronouncement:

On October 1, 2000, the Authority adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. Statement No. 33 establishes
standards for accounting and reporting for various types of nonexchange
transactions. The adoption of Statement No. 33 resulted in the reporting of
current year capital contributions as increases in retained earnings in the
amount of $39,465,419.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(in thousands)

Plan Year Annual City Allotted from Total
Ending Required Cash Past Excess Employer Percentage
September 30 Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributed
1996 $ 42,719 $ 42,634 $ 8 $ 42,719 100%
1997 25,754 21,930 3,824 25,754 100%
1998 28,782 20,668 8,114 28,782 100%
1999 17,673 16,081 1,592 17,673 100%
2000* 12,429 11,681 748 12,429 100%
2001 ** - - - - 100%

* The financial statement expense requirement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, was equal to the annual

required contribution of $12,429.

Certain adjustments are made to the annual required contribution if the plan carries a net pension obligation. The net

pension obligation (asset) is defined in GASB Statement No. 27 as the cumulative difference at date of adoption (or

transition) between annual requirements and actual contributions plus the cumulative difference between the requirements

and contributions after that date. Because the plan has no net pension obligation, no other adjustments were made to

determine expense this year.

Note that the net pension asset is not the same as "past excess contributions," which stand for the difference, including

interest, between the City's contributions for a plan year and that year's funding requirement determined as though the

fund's assets did not include any contributions made in a prior year in excess of that year's requirement.

** The 2001 General Employees Pension Actuarial Report was not yet available at the time of publishing.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(in thousands)

Plan Year Annual City Alloted from Court Fines and Total Total
Ending Required Cash Contribution Premium-Tax Employer Member Percentage
September 30 Contribution Contributions Reserves Refunds* Contributions Contributions Contributed
1996 $ 15,366 100%
1997 28,910 100%
1998 34,618 100%
1999 30,201 100%
2000 ** 32,146 $ 9,187 $ 8,144 $ 6,830 $ 24,161 $ 7,985 100%
2001 26,875 9,058 3,170 6,881 19,109 7,766 100%

* Includes refunds from premium tax under Florida Statutes Chapters 175 and 185.

** The financial statement expense requirement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000 was equal to the annual required

contributions of $32,146. The Plan has no net pension obligation.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
(in thousands)
Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Annual UAAL
Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered as a % of
Valuation Assets (AAL) (1)(2) AAL Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

09/30/96 $ 980,205 $ 1,093,222 $113,017 89.66% $ 193,418 58.43%
09/30/97  (3) 1,137,301 1,153,551 16,250 98.59% 196,510 8.27%
09/30/98 1,261,363 1,217,641 (43,722) 103.59% 192,859 N/A
09/30/99 1,324,735 1,321,083 (3,652) 100.28% 197,781 N/A
09/30/00  (4) 1,426,926 1,426,745 (181) 100.01% 202,321 N/A
09/30/01  (5) - - - - - N/A

POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

09/30/96 546,914 726,299 179,385 75.30% 101,021 177.57%
09/30/97 615,421 842,849 227,428 73.02% 106,111 214.33%
09/30/98 . 675,414 902,035 226,621 74.88% 110,598 204.91%
09/30/99 738,461 970,418 231,957 76.10% 97,666 237.50%
09/30/00 . 814,889 939,802 124,913 86.71% 97,207 128.50%
09/30/01 790,823 927,625 136,802 85.25% 96,199 142.21%

(1) General Employees - Actuarial present values determined under the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method.
(2) Police and Fire - Actuarial present values determined under the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method for the 2000 valuation and
the Frozen Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method for 1999 and prior valuations.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Net investment rate of return 8.50%
Projected salary increases 5.00%
Includes inflation percent of 3.50%
Cost-of-living adjustments 3.00%

(3) Actuarial present values calculated after changes in Plan provisions. The decrease in AAL (and UAAL) due to changes in
Plan provisions was measured to be $6,343.

(4) Net of the unassigned past-excess contributions separate account of $71,006.

(5) The 2001 General Employees Pension Actuarial Report was not yet available at the time of publishing.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account for all activities
not included in other funds. The General Fund accounts for the normal recurring activities
of the City (i.e, police, fire, public works, courts, general government, etc.) These activities
are funded principally by property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and licenses and fees.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET
GENERAL FUND (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
TOTALS
2001 2000
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments..............ccoveuiueireinineneeninnnnnn.. $ 41,123 $ 52,245
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
TaAXES. .o 28 28
ACCOUNLS. ...oeutitiiiiiiii et 3,392 2,049
MOTEEAZES. . .eeieeii et 50 -
OtheT. i 2,680 214
Due from other funds............ccovviviiviniiiiieiieieeiee e, 5,055 4,199
Due from independent agencies and other governments.............. 29,108 37,440
INVENLOTIES. . ..tiviteie it a e 1,325 1,287
TOTAL ASSETS.....cuiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiinieiiainisisesssesessnssasses $ 82,761 $ 97,462
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............................ $ 9,427 $ 9,304
Due to other funds.............ocooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 26 37
Due to independent agencies and other governments.............. 7,560 4,935
Deferred revenue. ............ccooeeuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiei e, 7,647 6,831
TOTAL LIABILITIES................. Creererneerieaireereaenes 24,660 21,107
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for encumbrances. ............oeevvviiinviinineineinennns 14,399 14,314
Reserved for imprest cash and cash in escrow..................... 329 330
Reserved for mortgages receivable.............c.c.ovviniinniinnnnn.. 50 -
Reserved for iNVENtOries. .. .....vvvuvuriuiiininiiiniiieinenneieeaenns 1,325 1,287
Unreserved:
Designated for capital projects............ccocevvueeinenninnnnn.n. 6,264 8,018
Designated for budget stabilization.............................. 3,324 17,205
Designated for changes in fair value of investments.......... 112 271
Designated for next year's budget appropriation............... 31,958 34,042
Undesignated............cooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiniieee e 340 888
TOTAL FUND BALANCE.......cccottuiiiniiiniiininiesiecsrossnnennns 58,101 76,355
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES..........cc.oceu.. $ 82,761 $ 97,462

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GENERAL FUND (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

TOTALS
2001 2000
REVENUE:
K. e ettt ettt ettt $ 368,333 $ 355,610
Licenses and Permits.........o.oeuvrerererirerrerunininereneneenenenenenenenes 14,806 13,970
Intergovernmental............cooiiiiiiiiniiiiiiii e 115,561 125,119
Charges fOr SEIVICES. ...uuiuiirertiirere et enereereneneenierieneneaanaes 50,876 48,430
Fines and forfeitures. ..........vvviviniiiniiieiiie e 8,069 7,744
Payment in lieu of taxes........oovvvveviiiiiiiiiiirne e 3,344 3,583
011 (=1 S PP PPt 6,912 10,171
(01 1T PPN 7,146 7,575
Total REVENUE.......ovitiiiiiiiiiii et eeaens 575,047 572,202
EXPENDITURES:
General GOVEIMMENL. ... .....uuuiuinieneieeieieenrereeteaetraeaerannanans 94,267 86,101
HUMAN SEIVICES. .. euiuinititeieieiie et e ae e e eeaenene 60,623 55,610
Public safety........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiii 290,280 280,895
Culture and reCreation............v.vuvvvuverereeenenenreeneeeenenenennns 39,536 37,032
TranSPOItatioN. . ... ...ovieieiiiiei e eeeaes 33,684 30,792
EConomic enVIronment. .........c.ouueuveeueenenenneenneenraeaeneenenaens 6,481 4,357
Physical environment.............ovvvuiriiieriieniieereieneeeneareeneaaans 11,890 11,019
Total EXPenditures..........c.veuiuiiieieiiiniiiee e 536,761 505,806
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES..........c.cccc...... 38,286 66,396
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers iN............ccovvviiiiiiiiiiiiin e 650 6,399
Operating transfers OUt.............ocoveiiiiniiiiiie e reeeeeeeanans (124,273) (130,428)
Transfers - In from component Units.............c.coeevevininneennennne. 73,638 71,434
Transfers - Out to COMPONENt UNILS........c.vvuerrenieninerinnenenanennen. (6,593) (5,999)
Total Other Financing (USeS)........ccovuiiiiniiniiiininininenieeeenenenananns (56,578) (58,594)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES.......... (18,292) 7,802
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR.........ccccevviininannnnn. 76,355 68,476
Change in reserve for inventory of supplies..........c...ccveuvuvenennenne. 38 77
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR.......cccccvtvieriianenenenennnes ceeraes $ 58,101 $ 76,355

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trusts and major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specific purposes as described below.

The Concurrency Management Fund provides funding for maintenance and update of the
Concurrency Management System which is the basis for ensuring compliance with the 2010
Comprehensive Plan.

The Air Pollution Control and Monitoring Fund receives revenue from licenses and fees,
and contributions from the federal government to monitor and control environmental
problems related to the air quality in Jacksonville.

The Sports, Convention and Tourism Development Fund collects revenues from tourist
and convention development taxes and sales tax rebate revenue from the State to support
ALLTEL Stadium and surrounding sports complex and convention center facilities and to
fund tourism programs sponsored by the Tourist Development Council through the City.

The Transportation Fund accounts for revenue from the City's six cent local option gas
tax, the state shared Sth and 6th cent gas tax, and the one-half cent local option sales tax used
to fund major road and related capital infrastructure construction and maintenance and the
City's mass transit and automated skyway express system operations.

The Budgeted General Government Fund accounts for numerous smaller accounts whose
revenues are dedicated to a variety of specific purposes.

The Public Safety Fund funds specific public safety programs through user fees and
intergovernmental revenue for emergency management planning and disaster medical
services provided by the Office of the Sheriff and the City Department of Fire and Rescue.

The Emergency 9-1-1 Fund receives revenues from a fee added to the telephone bill of
telephone customers that may be used for system operations and improvements.

The Tax Increment Districts Fund receives a distribution of ad valorem tax revenue levied
and collected in the City's four tax increment districts used to promote future commercial
business development that expands property tax base values in the City's core downtown
areas and the northwest region.

The Jacksonville Children's Commission Fund receives City funds, and various grants,
to serve as the community coalition for children. The autonomous board has the ongoing
responsibility of improving the lives of Jacksonville's children by serving as the central focus
for the evaluation, planning and distribution of funds for children's services that are
consistent with City programs and goals.



The Community Development Block Grant Fund receives monies from the federal
government in the form of community development block grants made available to specific
targeted areas of Jacksonville to assist in rehabilitation and revitalization in support of the
area's future economic growth and stability.

The Housing Rehabilitation and Home Investment and Opportunity Grants Fund
accounts for federal grant funds expended within federal guidelines to help Jacksonville
citizens to secure home ownership through a variety of private/public partnership mortgage
and rehabilitation loan programs.

The Job Training Partnership Act Grant Fund accounts for direct federal assistance to
the Private Industry Council of Jacksonville in providing employment and training services
to the economically disadvantaged and displaced citizens of Jacksonville through cooperative
efforts with local private sector businesses.

The Maintenance, Parks and Recreation Fund receives revenues from user fees and
charges from parks and recreation facilities that are dedicated to parks maintenance and
improvements, and acquisition of new recreational facilities.

The Metropolitan Planning Organization Fund receives funds from the Federal Highway
Department and the Federal Urban Mass Transportation Administration, and the Florida
Department of Transportation for planning the future of Jacksonville's metropolitan area,
principally in the area of transportation.

The Other Federal, State and Local Grants Fund records all other miscellaneous grants
administered by the City from federal, state and local sources not specifically accounted for
by other funds covering diverse programs such as: day care, adult homemaker, beach
erosion, base conversion and redevelopment, economic capital development, aids treatment
care, senior services and nutrition, crime prevention and drug abuse, teenage pregnancy and
childhood development, foster grandparents, and waste tire disposal.

The State Housing Initiative Partnership Fund accounts for revenue collected by the
Clerk of the Circuit Court on certain property transactions in Duval County passed from the
State earmarked for housing assistance and financial incentive programs to increase the
availability of affordable housing in Jacksonville including down payment assistance,
homeowner repair and rehabilitation and acquisition of existing single family dwellings for
home ownership.

The Better Jacksonville Trust Fund receives revenue from the half-cent infrastructure sales
tax. All monies placed into this trust are appropriated for Debt Service requirements and
contributions to the Better Jacksonville Capital Projects Fund.

The Non-Budgeted General Government Fund accounts for the Public Records
Modemization activity which receives revenues from a service charge authorized by Florida
Statute 28.24(15)(d) to be held in trust and used exclusively for equipment, personnel
training, and technical assistance in modernizing the official public records system of the
Clerk’s office and also accounts for numerous smaller funds whose revenues are dedicated
to a variety of specific purposes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

BUDGETED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS

SPORTS,
AIR POLLUTION CONVENTION AND
CONCURRENCY CONTROL AND TOURISM
MANAGEMENT MONITORING DEVELOPMENT
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments...........c..ooevvvevieniinieninennens $ 6,009 $ 1,046 $ 5,268
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.................cooveeninans - - 100

Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):

ACCOUNLS ...uenitiininit i - - 6
% (0] 7 T T PPN - -
Due from other funds............coooiiiiiiiiiiii - - -
Due from COMpPONEeNt UNtS.........oeuvererveninierinenienenieneenenes - - -
Due from independent agencies and other governments.......... - - -
TOTAL ASSETS.....ciuiiuiiiiiiiiniiiiniiniiiiiiieieneeieencenees $ 6,009 $ 1,046 $ 5,374

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........................ $ 6 $ 16 $ 63
Due to other funds..........ccceveiiiiiiiiiniin e - - -
Due to other goOvernments.............cccveveeeeenerenenenennnnnn. - - -
DEPOSILS. .. evu ettt ettt 345 - -
Deferred revenue............oo.ovviviiniiiiiiei i - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES........ccciiiieiiuienininieninceniacensaseenas 351 16 63
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for encumbrances...........c.c.evveeuveinniniunennnns 219 147 845
Reserved for cash in €SCrow.........c.cveueeveniinienienenene. - - 100
Reserved for mortgages receivable.................coeevieinnt. - - -
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent years' budget..................... - - -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments........ 15 3 13
Undesignated (deficit)............cooveeiiiinininiininennn. 5,424 880 4,353
Total Fund Balances...........couviiiiiiiiiii i 5,658 1,030 5,311
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES............. $ 6,009 $ 1,046 $ 5,374
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BUDGETED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS

BUDGETED JACKSONVILLE

GENERAL PUBLIC EMERGENCY TAX INCREMENT CHILDREN'S

TRANSPORTATION GOVERNMENT SAFETY 9-1-1 DISTRICTS COMMISSION
$17,877 $ 17,602 $ 561 $2,786 $ 2,395 $2,103
- 38 - - - -
- 276 - - - -
14,560 13 - 237 - 2,568
$ 32,437 $ 17,929 $ 561 $ 3,023 $ 2,395 $ 4,671
$18,193 $ 483 $119 $ 88 $ - $1,526
18,193 483 119 88 - 1,526
1,443 799 29 186 100 3,012
12,417 - - - - -
46 45 - 7 6 5
338 16,602 413 2,742 2,289 128
14,244 17,446 442 2,935 2,395 3,145
$ 32,437 $ 17,929 $ 561 $ 3,023 $ 2,395 $4,671

(continued)

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

- 177 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

HOUSING
REHABILITATION
COMMUNITY AND HOME
DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT AND JOB TRAINING MAINTENANCE,
BLOCK OPPORTUNITY PARTNERSHIP PARKS AND
GRANT GRANTS ACT GRANT RECREATION
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments.................coeovenennnnn... $ - $ 1,189 $ 482 $5,195
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.......................... 769 2,302 - -
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUNLS L..vuititiiii e eeeaeane - - - 27
MOTtZAZES. . . e it - 11,207 - -
Due from other funds...............coeoiiiiiiiiiin - - - -
Due from component units..............ccoeveeernenrenrnnnnennn. 584 - - -
Due from independent agencies and other governments.... 1,209 453 - -
TOTAL ASSETS....ccitiiiiiniiiiiniiiinniiiininisieisacenss $ 2,562 $ 15,151 $ 482 $ 5,222
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.................... $ 705 $ 279 $ - $ 194
Due to other funds............cocoviviiviiiiiiiiiiininenenns 1,815 - - -
Due to other governments. .............cocveviniineniinennns - - - -
DEPOSIES. .. eveeeeineteiie e e e e e e e e e 6 77 - -
Deferred revenue.........o.o.vvvveveiieneinniieiineineanennnn. - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......cccottttieneinrinsensrncenssnnes 2,526 356 - 194
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for encumbrances...............ovveuvenvinennnnnns 4,167 2,648 - 99
Reserved for cash in esCrow..........coeevvvvviiniininnnn... 769 2,302 - -
Reserved for mortgages receivable.......................... - 11,207 - -
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent years' budget................. - - - 825
Designated for changes in fair value of investments.... - 3 1 12
Undesignated (deficit)............ccooeviiiiiiiinininnn. (4,900) (1,365) 481 4,092
Total Fund Balances................coviviiiiiiiiiiiiinn, 36 14,795 482 5,028
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES........ $ 2,562 $ 15,151 $ 482

$ 5,222
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METROPOLITAN OTHER FEDERAL, STATE HOUSING BETTER NON-BUDGETED TOTALS
PLANNING STATE AND INITIATIVE JACKSONVILLE GENERAL
ORGANIZATION LOCAL GRANTS PARTNERSHIP TRUST FUND GOVERNMENT 2001 2000

$ 58 $ 8179 $ 5159 $ - $ 546 $ 76,455 $ 106,587

- 40 100 - 474 3,785 4,751

- - - - - 71 172

- - 5,978 - - 17,185 20,611

- - - - 3 279 227

- - - - - 584 584

313 3,271 - 9,025 - 31,649 31,353

$ 371 $ 11,490 $ 11,237 $ 9,025 $1,023 $ 130,008 $ 164,285

$ 115 $ 1175 $ 557 $ - $ 22 $ 23,541 $ 12,967

- - - - - 1,815 2,334

- - - - - - 4,103

- - - - - 428 138

- 2,274 - - - 2,274 -

115 3,449 557 - 22 28,058 19,542

290 5,582 6,105 - 31 25,702 47,203

- 40 100 - 474 3,785 4,751

- - 5,978 - - 17,185 20,611

- - - - - 13,242 26,978

- 21 13 - 1 191 524

(34) 2,398 (1,516) 9,025 495 41,845 44,676

256 8,041 10,680 9,025 1,001 101,950 144,743

$ 371 $ 11,490 $ 11,237 $9,025 $1,023 $ 130,008 $ 164,285

See accompanying independent auditors' report.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

BUDGETED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS

SPORTS,
AIR POLLUTION CONVENTION AND
CONCURRENCY CONTROL AND TOURISM
MANAGEMENT  MONITORING DEVELOPMENT
REVENUE:
TaXES ettt tte et e ettt et et $ - $ - $ 10,952
Intergovernmental...........coooiuiuiiiiiinii s - 1,716 1,833
Charges fOr SEIVICES. ... .uuuiuiriiiieieieiieee e eaeaer e aeaanas 3,621 - -
Fines and forfeitures............coovviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeieeeenes - - -
B0 1 (L] N 206 46 185
(01115 PPN - - 445
Total REVENUE. ......ociviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,827 1,762 13,415
EXPENDITURES:
General GOVEINMENt. .........c.uvuininininitiiereiieeaeeieaeneneenans 59 - -
HUMAN SEIVICES. ... tvnenitniniiiiiie e e e e e e e aeaeenes - - -
PUDLIC SAfety ... c.evniniieiiiiiiiii e - - -
Culture and reCreation..............vevuveereeniniineeinieeeeennneanens - - 651
TranspOrtation. ..........cuuiuuieuiininiiiii e 97 - -
Economic environment...............ooevuiiiiniiniiiiiiiiiieeann, - - 3,669
Physical environment.................oeeviiiiiiiiiiniiieiieneaness - 2,059 -
Total EXpenditures.............ocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieeeiee e 156 2,059 4,320
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES......cccitituiiiieienineiiecniceriaronssnscnsonssnsons 3,671 (297) 9,095
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers in...........coooviiiiiiiiien i, - 400 570
Operating transfers OUL............cc.vvvievneviiiviniiininereienenenenns (304) - (8,917)
Transfers - Out to component UNits.............cceeuevveenienenenne. - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (USeS).........ccvevviveienieennannnnen. (304) 400 (8,347)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES.............. 3,367 103 748
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR.............c.cue..ee. 2,291 927 4,563
Residual equity transfer out...............coooviviiiniiniinninennn., - - -
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR.....cccocooitiiiiiiniiececnnnns $ 5,658 $ 1,030 $ 5,311
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BUDGETED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS

BUDGETED JACKSONVILLE

GENERAL PUBLIC EMERGENCY TAX INCREMENT  CHILDREN'S

TRANSPORTATION GOVERNMENT SAFETY 9-1-1 DISTRICTS COMMISSION
$ 83,220 $ - $ - $ - $ 6,252 $ -
6,882 2,157 281 - - 25,668
- 8,152 - 3,724 - .
- 2,219 - - - -
693 622 32 116 6 261
- 5,402 - - 155 2,768
90,795 18,552 313 3,840 6,413 28,697
- 3,337 - - - -
. 949 - - - 19,606
- 7,126 363 2,732 - -
76,984 - - - - -
- - - - - 21,320
- 1,841 - - - -
76,984 13,253 363 2,732 - 40,926
13,811 5,299 (50) 1,108 6,413 (12,229)
- 268 7 - 14 12,889
(3,866) (450) - - (4,032) (321)
(17,128) - - - - -
(20,994) (182) 7 - (4,018) 12,568
(7,183) 5117 (43) 1,108 2,395 339
65,919 12,329 485 1,827 - 2,806
(44,492) - - - - -
$ 14,244 $ 17,446 $ 442 $ 2,935 $ 2,395 $ 3,145

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

HOUSING
REHABILITATION
COMMUNITY AND HOME
DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT AND JOB TRAINING MAINTENANCE,
BLOCK OPPORTUNITY PARTNERSHIP PARKS AND
GRANT GRANTS ACT GRANT RECREATION

REVENUE:

TS . v ettt ettt e et e et e e e an s $ - $ - $ - $ -

Intergovernmental...........c.coouiiieiiiiiiiii e 12,183 2,682 - -

Charges fOr SEIVICES. ... .vuuiviriririieiiiiiieieeeeeaeiereananen - - - 1,499

Fines and forfeitures.............oovviviieiiiiiiiiiiieiniens - - - -

03 17=) () P 99 92 25 271

OHEE. . (1,319) (3,277) - 107
Total REVENUE......c.eiiriiiiiiiiii i e 10,963 (503) 25 1,877
EXPENDITURES:

General GOVEIMMENL. ... ... ...ueuireneneneneaeeeererereaeneaenreenennes - - - -

Human ServiCes.......cocoiiiiuiiiiiiiieiiieiiieiei e aeens - - - -

Public safety........oovviriiiiiiii e - - - -

Culture and reCIation............cveveiieeeninineiirineineananns - - - 1,782

TransSportation. .. ......oo.vuieuiininiiniiiie e enes - - - -

Economic environment..............cc.ceeeeeneneneninenenneninenannns 13,962 2,805 - -

Physical environment. .............vevuvevinininriiinieneennenns - - - -
Total EXpenditures. ...........oovviuiiniiiiiiiiiiineeeieeeeneans 13,962 2,805 - 1,782
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES.......ccoiiiiuiuininrrrrniniierrsasasasnsenenens (2,999) (3,308) 25 95
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in............c.coeveiiiieinenineienieeenenees 75 - - -

Operating transfers out...............coeeeivvieniiiiniiinieninnnnn. (42) - - (371)

Transfers - Out to component Units.............coveveeenenenannnns - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (USeS)..........ccoevvviririininnnnnn. 33 - - (371)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES........... (2,966) (3,308) 25 (276)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR..................... 3,002 18,103 457 5,304

Residual equity transfer out................ccoeeevvinenieniiinnnn.. - - - -
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR........ccccetuturuvaiennnnnns $ 36 $ 14,795 $ 482 $ 5,028
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METROPOLITAN OTHER FEDERAL, STATE HOUSING BETTER NON-BUDGETED
PLANNING STATE AND INITIATIVE JACKSONVILLE GENERAL
ORGANIZATION LOCAL GRANTS  PARTNERSHIP TRUST FUND GOVERNMENT
$ - $ - $ - $ 38,496 $ -
1,172 19,063 6,817 - -

- 4 - - 518

; . . ; 127

- 454 393 60 10

- 249 1,221 - 98
1,172 19,770 8,431 38,556 753
1,275 1,107 - - 187
- 9,105 - - 318

- 11,207 - - 24

- 2,029 - - 20

- 306 8,862 - 6

- 5,556 - - -
1,275 29,310 8,862 - 555
(103) (9,540) (431) 38,556 198
105 3,469 - - 62

- (199) - (29,531) -

- - (313) - -

105 3,270 (313) (29,531) 62
2 (6,270) (744) 9,025 260
254 14,311 11,424 - 741
$ 256 $ 8,041 $ 10,680 $ 9,025 $ 1,001

TOTALS

2001 2000
138,920 $ 108,394
80,454 75,780
17,518 13,872
2,346 2,194
3,571 7,391
5,849 11,078
248,658 218,709
5,965 6,180
29,978 25,841
21,452 17,236
4,482 3,693
77,081 88,949
50,930 38,939
9,456 4,333
199,344 185,171
49,314 33,538
17,859 15,815
(48,033) (14,840)
(17,441) (8,904)
(47,615) (7,929)
1,699 25,609
144,743 119,300
(44,492) (166)
$ 101,950 $ 144,743

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

CONCURRENCY MANAGEMENT

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE:

TAKES. cevueieeeei et $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Intergovernmental...............ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinann. - - - - -

Charges for Services..........coveeiiiuviiiniineninnnnen. 3,621 - 3,621 3,563 58

Fines and forfeitures................coeeveiiiiiininnnns - - - - -

111 ES o SN 206 - 206 10 196

Other.. .ot - - - - -
Total Revenue.........ccovvviiiiiiiiiiiiineiiei e 3,827 - 3,827 3,573 254
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General GOVEIrNMENt............oeuveenvenenienenennnne. 59 9 68 2,576 2,508

Human Services..........coovviviiiiiiiiinininenennnns. - - - - -

Public safety.........coveviiiiiiiiiii e - - - - -

Culture and recreation.............cceevevueiennenennnnn. - - - - -

Transportation............ccovvevevinieienninininnenannen. 97 210 307 695 388

Economic environment...............cceeeeenenennnnns - - - - -

Physical environment................ocovvveneniinennnne. - - - - -
Total Expenditures...........cocveviviiiiiiiiiiiininnnnnn.. 156 219 375 3,271 2,896
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES.......cccociviuiuinninenenenenensenss 3,671 (219) 3,452 302 3,150
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in..............c.oceeveennineneane. - - - - -

Operating transfers out.................cocvvvinennnnns (304) - (304) (304) -

Transfers - Out to component units................... - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).................... (304) - (304) (304) -
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES.....cccciviuiiriniiinininincnnnnes 3,367 (219) 3,148 (2) 3,150
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION..............ceunees - - - 2 (2)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES.......ccccoeivininincncncacncncnes $ 3,367 ($ 219) $ 3,148 $ - $ 3,148
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AIR POLLUTION CONTROL AND MONITORING

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
1,716 - 1,716 2,056 (340)
46 - 46 22 24
1,762 - 1,762 2,078 (316)
2,059 147 2,206 2,593 387
2,059 147 2,206 2,593 387
(297) (147) (444) (515) 71
400 - 400 400 -
400 - 400 400 -
103 (147) (44) (115) 71
. - - 115 (115)
$ 103 ($_147) ($ 44) $ - $ 44)
(continued)

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

SPORTS, CONVENTION AND TOURISM DEVELOPMENT

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE:

TAXES . eneeeee et $ 10,952 $ - $ 10,952 $ 10,005 $ 947

Intergovernmental.............c.ooveiiiiiiniininninn... 1,833 - 1,833 2,000 (167)

Charges for SEIVICES........cvvvvriuerieneriinienanenns - - - - -

Fines and forfeitures.................ccocveiininnnnnnnn. - - - . -

Interest.......oovviiniiiiiii 185 - 185 143 42

(0111 445 - 445 445 -
Total Revenue..........c.coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiineenes 13,415 - 13,415 12,593 822
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General gOVernment..............coeuveuenvenenennnnes . - - - - -

Human ServiCes..........covvuvreiererreniieninienananns - - - - -

Public safety.........cooevuiiiniiniiniiiineen, - - - - -

Culture and recreation..................coevvviinenennns 651 5 656 777 121

Transportation.............cocoeiuiiiiiiniiniiiniiienns - - - - -

Economic environment.................ccceevvuinennnn. 3,669 840 4,509 7,028 2,519

Physical environment................cccoeieiiniinennn... - - - - -
Total Expenditures.............c.coviiiiieiiiniiiiinanennns 4,320 845 5,165 7,805 2,640
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES........cccotutuiuienanacanancccnnenes 9,095 (845) 8,250 4,788 3,462
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in...............ccoeeeviienninnenn.n. 570 - 570 570 -

Operating transfers out.................c.oeeveveenennnn.. (8,917) - (8,917) (9,104) 187

Transfers - Out to component units.................... - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)...................... (8,347) - (8,347) (8,534) 187
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES......cccceitieierenenenenrncncanes 748 (845) (97) (3,746) 3,649
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION.............cccvuvnen.e. - - - 3,746 (3,746)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES.......cccccieviverininininicrarannns $ 748 ($ 845) $ 97 $ - $ 97
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TRANSPORTATION

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 83,220 $ - $ 83,220 $ 80,807 $ 2413
6,882 - 6,882 6,090 792
693 - 693 - 693
90,795 - 90,795 86,897 3,898
76,984 1,443 78,427 90,899 12,472
76,984 1,443 78,427 90,899 12,472
13,811 (1,443) 12,368 (4,002) 16,370
(3,866) - (3,866) (4,090) 224
(17,128) - (17,128) (23,230) 6,102
(20,994) - (20,994) (27,320) 6,326
(7,183) (1,443) (8,626) (31,322) 22,696
_ - - 31,322 (31,322)
($ 7,183) ($ 1,443) ($ 8,626) $ - ($ 8,626)
(continued)



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

BUDGETED GENERAL GOVERNMENT

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE:

TAXES. et eneteinie et e e $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Intergovernmental............c.coceviieniiiininennnns 2,157 - 2,157 4,664 (2,507)

Charges for Services........coevvvvviiininninennnnns 8,152 - 8,152 7,691 461

Fines and forfeitures.................ccovvvvinennns 2,219 - 2,219 2,088 131

Interest.....ccovvniniiiiiiiiii e 622 - 622 183 439

Other... oo e 5,402 - 5,402 647 4,755
Total ReVenue.........cceveviiiiiiiitiiiiieeiinineenns 18,552 - 18,552 15,273 3,279
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General government...............ceeeeeveenenennnns 3,337 125 3,462 3,891 429

Human Services..........cccoveviviiininininnnnnnns 949 27 976 1,184 208

Public safety.........coooveeiiiiiiiiiin, 7,126 116 7,242 7,204 (38)

Culture and recreation..............cocevvvevenenn.. - - - - -

Transportation...........cccvevvenvinienniinennennss - - - - -

Economic environment............................. - - - - -

Physical environment............................es 1,841 531 2,372 5,623 3,251
Total EXpenditures...........cooeuveveneniiniineiinenenns 13,253 799 14,052 17,902 3,850
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES......cccctvtiiiiierncnrecennanes 5,299 (799) 4,500 (2,629) 7,129
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in........................oeeeees 268 - 268 268 -

Operating transfers out.......................eeeees (450) - (450) (451) 1

Transfers - Out to component units............... - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)................. (182) - (182) (183) 1
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES......ccccceviieieierncncnennes 5,117 (799) 4,318 (2,812) 7,130
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION................... - - - 2,812 (2,812)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES.......cuuueeereeeeeeeeveveeenes $ 5117 ($ 799) $ 4,318 $ - $ 4,318
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PUBLIC SAFETY

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
281 - 281 281 -

32 - 32 - 32

313 - 313 281 32
363 29 392 310 (82)
363 29 392 310 (82)
(50) (29) (79) (29) (50)

7 - 7 7 -

7 - 7 7 -

(43) (29) (72) (22) (50)

- - - 22 (22)

(3 43) ($ 29) ($ 72 $ - $ 72)

(continued)



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

EMERGENCY 9-1-1
VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE:

TaXeS. .. eeneineiie et $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Intergovernmental..............ccocuvevnvninninnnns. - - - - -

Charges for ServiCes..........cvevuiiinenrennennenns 3,724 - 3,724 3,811 (87)

Fines and forfeitures....................coeeuvennee. - - - - -

Interest.....cocvvveiiiiniiniii s 116 - 116 34 82

1011115 S - - - - -
Total Revenue.............oooovviviiiiiiiiiiiiiniinne, 3,840 - 3,840 3,845 (5)
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General government......................cc.eeuen.n. - - - - -

Human Services..........cc.covviveviiniineninnennn. - - - - -

Public safety.......c.cocveviiiiiiiiiiiiii 2,732 186 2,918 4,439 1,521

Culture and recreation......................ocuenes - - - - -

Transportation............cc.ccoeevvinviiniinennennnnn. - - - - -

Economic environment.............................. - - - - -

Physical environment................................ - - - - -
Total Expenditures.............ccoviiiiinnininiinnnnn.. 2,732 186 2,918 4,439 1,521
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES........ccccveieienineneneninnnnne 1,108 (186) 922 (594) 1,516
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in.................cooceeennnnn. - - - - -

Operating transfers out..................ccceuevneen.. - - - - -

Transfers - Out to component units............... - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)................. - - - - -

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES.........cccoieuniiuniinnninnss 1,108 (186) 922 (594) 1,516
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION................... - - - 594 (594)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES.........ccccvveuininnnnnen. $ 1,108 ($_186) $ 922 $ - $ 922

- 190 -



TAX INCREMENT DISTRICTS

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 6,252 $ - $ 6,252 $ 6,263 $ 11
6 - 6 - 6
155 - 155 - 155
6,413 - 6,413 6,263 150
- - - 200 200
- 100 100 1,454 1,354
- 100 100 1,654 1,554
6,413 (100) 6,313 4,609 1,704
14 - 14 14 -
(4,032) - (4,032) (4,623) 591
(4,018) - (4,018) (4,609) 591
2,395 (100) 2,295 - 2,295
$ 2,395 ($ 100) $ 2,295 $ - $ 2,295
(continued)

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

JACKSONVILLE CHILDREN'S COMMISSION

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE:

TaAXES.eeeeeiei e $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Intergovernmental.....................coevenennnnnn. 25,668 - 25,668 27,828 (2,160)

Charges for ServiCes.........covevvvneneenenennann.. - - - - -

Fines and forfeitures................ccocvevnennnn. - - - - -

INErest......cuvieniiiieiiei e 261 - 261 363 (102)

Other......ccoviriiiiii 2,768 - 2,768 3,609 (841)
Total ReVenue.........c.ovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiinns 28,697 - 28,697 31,800 (3,103)
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:

General government................................. - - - - -

Human services.........cocoevviiiiiiiinininninanes 19,606 2,896 22,502 21,661 (841)

Public safety..........cooveviiiiiiiniiiiene - - - - -

Culture and recreation..................c..ceuue... - - - - -

Transportation...........ccceceveuviniiniininnennnnn, - - - - -

Economic environment.....................oc.....e. 21,320 116 21,436 23,797 2,361

Physical environment................................ - - - - -
Total Expenditures.................cccooviviiininininnnne. 40,926 3,012 43,938 45,458 1,520
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES........cciceiuiiiininnennnnnnns (12,229) (3,012) (15,241) (13,658) (1,583)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in...................cc..eevvenee. 12,889 - 12,889 12,889 -

Operating transfers out...................c..ccou.nen. (321) - (321) (321) -

Transfers - Out to component units............... - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)................ 12,568 - 12,568 12,568 -
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES......ccccceveveieneneneninnnns 339 (3,012) (2,673) (1,090) (1,583)
FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION.................. - - - 1,090 (1,090)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER

SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES

AND OTHER USES.......cccccvtuieniniannnnnnnes $ 339 ($ 3,012) ($ 2,673) $ - ($ 2,673)
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ALL BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

VARIANCE
BUDGETARY FAVORABLE
ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)

$ 100,424 $ - $ 100,424 $97,075 $ 3,349

38,537 - 38,537 42,919 (4,382)
15,497 - 15,497 15,065 432
2,219 - 2,219 2,088 131
2,167 - 2,167 755 1,412
8,770 - 8,770 4,701 4,069
167,614 - 167,614 162,603 5,011
3,396 134 3,530 6,467 2,937

20,555 2,923 23,478 22,845 (633)
10,221 331 10,552 11,953 1,401
651 5 656 777 121
77,081 1,653 78,734 91,794 13,060
24,989 1,056 26,045 32,279 6,234
3,900 678 4,578 8,216 3,638
140,793 6,780 147,573 174,331 26,758
26,821 (6,780) 20,041 (11,728) 31,769
14,148 - 14,148 14,148 -
(17,890) - (17,890) (18,893) 1003
(17,128) - (17,128) (23,230) 6,102
(20,870) - (20,870) (27,975) 7,105
5,951 (6,780) (829) (39,703) 38,874

- - - 39,703 (39,703)

$ 5,951 ($ 6,780) ($ 829 $ - ($ 829)

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
interest and principal on most general governmental obligations that are included in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Individual debt service funds are described
below.

The General Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the Duval County Certificates of
Indebtedness of 1972 General Obligation Bonds of the construction of the Police
Administration Complex.

The Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the City's special and limited bonded
obligations payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the revenues under
the respective bond ordinances.

The Special Bonded Debt - Better Jax Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation
of resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the City's special bonded
obligations payable, which are related to the Better Jacksonville Plan.

The Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on other non-bonded debt
obligations including the River City Renaissance Commercial Paper debt.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

SPECIAL

OTHER

GENERAL SPECIAL BONDED DEBT- NON-BONDED
BONDED DEBT BONDED DEBT BETTER JAX DEBT TOTALS
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS 2001 2000
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments.................c.ceeevenenens $ - $ 47,019 $ 12,115 $ 49 $ 59,183 $ 47,393
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents........................ 39 - 30,646 210 30,895 249
TOTAL ASSETS.....ccotiiiieiininiiiinsasesisssesacesasans $ 39 $ 47,019 $ 42,761 $ 259 $ 90,078 $ 47,642
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Matured bonds and
interest payable...........ooiuiiiiiiiiiiie e $ 39 $ - $ - $ - $ 39 § 39
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......cccocveiiuiiiiiinininienininen 39 - - - 39 39
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved:
Reserved for cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.... - - 30,646 210 30,856 210
Reserved for debt service...........coeeveviiniinininnen.e. - 46,900 10,579 49 57,528 47,160
Unreserved:

Designated for changes in fair value of investments... - 119 1,536 - 1,655 233
TOTAL FUND BALANCE........ccccoveuveiiienenecinencnns - 47,019 42,761 259 90,039 47,393
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES.......cccitiiiinincnracesacacacocenenss $ 39 $ 47,019 $ 42,761 $ 259 $ 90,078 $ 47,642

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

REVENUES:

EXPENDITURES:

Principal.........c.coociiiiiiiii
Interest and fiscal agent charges..................

Total EXpenditures............ccoveveiieneininnnnnnn.

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES.............c......

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Proceeds from sale of notes and bonds

and issuance of other debt obligations.......
Operating transfers in.....................ceeveen.s

Total Other Financing Sources ......................

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES....................
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR..

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR............

SPECIAL OTHER
SPECIAL  BONDED DEBT- NON-BONDED TOTALS
BONDED DEBT BONDED DEBT  BETTER JAX DEBT
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS 2001 2000
$ 1,701 $ 2,301 $ 1,183 $ 5185 $ 2,952
- 2,858 - 2,858 .
1,701 5,159 1,183 8,043 2,952
28,320 - 4,410 32,730 28,200
37,172 - 3,768 40,940 42,251
65,492 - 8,178 73,670 70,451
(63,791) 5,159 (6,995) (65,627)  (67,499)
345 31,771 - 32,116 -
63,912 5,831 6,204 75,947 73,107
64,257 37,602 6,204 108,063 73,107
466 42,761 (791) 42,436 5,608
46,553 - 1,050 47,603 41,995
$ 47,019 $ 42,761 $ 259 $ 90,039  $47,603

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources segregated for the construction or
acquisition of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds). Descriptions of individual funds in this fund type follow.

The Bond Projects Fund receives proceeds from the sale of bonded debt issued by the City
to fund major capital improvement projects.

The General Projects Fund receives monies appropriated from the General Fund and other
sources including proceeds from non-bonded debt for general capital improvements.

The Grant Projects Fund accounts for monies received by the City under various federal,
state and local grants restricted to expenditure of specific capital improvements funded under
the grant program.

The River City Renaissance Project Fund accounts for proceeds of a comprehensive
capital improvement initiative (the "River City Renaissance") for projects concerning the
environment, children, health and social services, economic development, neighborhoods
and downtown, parks and recreation, and the arts.

The Better Jax Construction Projects Fund receives revenues from the two local option
sales tax programs and proceeds from the sale of bonded debt issued by the City to fund
projects under the Better Jacksonville Plan.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Equity in cash and investments.............c.ccoiveuvenininiiiiiininiininnninn,
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.............c.coevviiiiiiiin,
Due from independent agencies and other governments....................

TOTAL ASSETS...c.itiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiitietneinrtrteteetestierssessans

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...............ccooeeiiiiii.
Contracts Payable........c.ouvrininiiiiie e
Due to other funds..........cooviiniiiiiiii e
Advances from other funds............coooeiiiiiiiiiii
Deferred credits and other..............cccoeveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiens
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......cccccitiiiiiiiiiiniiniieeencicieisucacesenenees

FUND BALANCES:

Reserved for encumbrances. ............oooovviieiiiiiiiiinii
Reserved for cash in €SCrOW.........oevuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiine e,

Unreserved:
Designated for capital Projects..........cooeuveeveerenieneeneinnennennne.
Designated for changes in fair value of investments..................
Undesignated (deficit)..............ouieieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeens

Total Fund BalanCes..........cocoviiiiiiiiieiiiiii e eie e

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES........cccovveunnnnen.

BOND
PROJECTS

$ 59,294

276

$ 59,570

$ 1,675

482

2,157

11,868
276

45,118
151

57,413

$ 59,570

GENERAL
PROJECTS

$90,497

202

$ 90,699

$ 1,823

225

13,083

742

15,873

14,716

59,879
231

74,826

$ 90,699
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RIVER CITY BETTER JAX

GRANT RENAISSANCE CONSTRUCTION
PROJECTS PROJECT PROJECT
$ - $ 5,155 $ 312,493
584 1 -
2,793 - -
$ 3,377 $ 5,166 $ 312,493
$ 148 $ 23 $ 87386
245 35 1,642
1,173 - -
1,566 58 10,028
2,414 349 224,474
584 11 -
. 4,735 77,542
. 13 794
(1,187) - (345)
1,811 5,108 302,465
$ 3,377 $ 5,166 $ 312,493

TOTALS
2001 2000

$ 467,439 $ 162,308
871 1,108
2,995 2,918

$ 471,305 $ 166,334
$ 12,055 $ 4,658
2,629 876
1,173 998
13,083 13,551
742 689
29,682 20,772
253,821 37,280
871 1,108
187,274 109,221
1,189 797
(1,532) (2,844)
441,623 145562
$ 471,305 $ 166,334

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

REVENUE:
Intergovernmental...........ovuvvueriinineriiei et ieeeee e e e aeaans
INEEIESt. . ..ottt

EXPENDITURES:
Capital OULIAY.....euiiniiii i e

EXCESS OF REVENUE UNDER EXPENDITURES.....................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from sale of notes and bonds and issuance of other
debt OblIZAtiONS. . .. cuvuiiii e
Operating transfers in...........c..ccoeiiiiiniiiiiiniiiii e,
Operating transfers OUt...........o.ovuiiivieiiiiiieiniineinireieieeaneieeans
Transfers - In from component Units..............ccoeeeviiniinienneennnenn.
Transfers - Out to COMPONENt UNILS........ouuvrurinrineeneeneaernesiennaanns

Total Other Financing SOUICES ..........c.oceuviiiiiiiiiiiiiieiriineiinennnnen,

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES.....................

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR.........ccccevvviiiiinnannn,
Residual equity transfer in.............c..cooveiiiiiiiiiiiniiiniineee e,

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR......c..ccootuiimiiniinniinniansinnes

BOND GENERAL
PROJECTS PROJECTS
$ - $ -
4,229 3,853
66 4,532
4,295 8,385
23,221 27,626
(18,926) (19,241)
91 -
- 33,558
(259) (1,197)
(168) __ 32361
(19,094) 13,120
76,507 61,706
$ 57,413 $ 74,826
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RIVER CITY BETTER JAX
GRANT RENAISSANCE CONSTRUCTION
PROJECTS PROJECT PROJECT
$ 4,098 $ - $ 9,940
. 274 5,472
910 . .
5,008 274 15,412
6,176 845 79,042
(1,168) (571) (63,630)
- 253 340,527
1,013 - 27,566
43 - -
. . (46,490)
1,056 253 321,603
(112) (318) 257,973
1,923 5,426 .
- - 44,492
$ 1,811 $ 5,108 $ 302,465

TOTALS
2001 2000

$ 14,038 $ 1,251
13,828 9,350
5,508 5,137
33,374 15,738
136,910 75,548
(103,536) (59,810)
340,871 44,939
62,137 34,479
(1,456) (448)

43 -
(46,490) -
355,105 78,970
251,569 19,160
145,562 126,236
44,492 166

$ 441,623 $ 145,562

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises and where the costs of providing goods or services to the
general public are recovered primarily through user charges; or where the city has decided
that determination of net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purposes. Individual enterprise funds are
described below.

The Public Parking System Fund accounts for the City's on-street, off-street, and parking
garage facility operations, including revenue collection and enforcement.

The Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium Fund accounts for the
operation of the ALLTEL Stadium-Wolfson Baseball Park-Veterans Memorial Coliseum
sports complex, the Prime Osborn Convention Center and Performing Arts Center.

The Motor Vehicle Inspection Fund accounts for the operations of the City's motor vehicle
inspection stations.

The Solid Waste Disposal Fund accounts for collection, recycling, and disposal of
commercial and residential garbage services throughout the City, including operation of three
municipally owned landfill sites, two of which are closed.

The Mayport Ferry Fund accounts for the operation of the City’s ferry across the St. Johns
River at Mayport.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and invVestments. ..........c.coveeuiiiiiiininiiniiinineaeeeaes $ 3,979 $ 3,143
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUNLS. .« ettt ettt et et et et et ettt et e e e e e e en e e e e e e eeaaees - 1,072
Due from independent agencies and other governments.............cccocveveienenennn. - -
LN 1110 ¢ (PP PRSPPSO - -
Prepaid expenses and Other assets............coocveuviinieniniiiiiiiiiiias - 130
TOtal CUITENE ASSEES. ... eueuenit ettt e e e 3,979 4,345
RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Sinking fund cash and INVeStMENtS. ............ovuieiiniiieiiiiiiiiree s - 892
Construction fund cash and inVeStMENts...........c.coeveieiiieneneneninininiiennnens - -
Accounts and interest reCeivable. ... ....ouveiiiiuiiieiiintiiiii e - 115
Total ReStrICted ASSELS. .. .ouuiniieieriiti ettt ettt ettt e e e aeeereneeaaeanennan - 1,007
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT:
74T PP 4,573 23,260
Buildings and impPrOVEMENES. ... .. ...vueutiieeeienintneneneeeeenenenereerareaeennanns 11,669 209,611
Improvements other than buildings............cccoveuiiiiiiniiniiiiiiiirr e 4,266 43,238
Furniture and eqUIPMENt. .........c.veuiiniiiiiiiiiiieeiee e 265 5,704
ConStruction WOIK i PIrOCESS. .. ..c.uuuiuinenernenreneneiieneneeenereneeeneanenenaenens 981 21
101 D PP 21,754 281,834
Less accumulated depreciation.............veveeiinininininieiee e eieeeereeeeeeeeanans (6,767) (57,711)
Total Property, Plant and Equipment - Net...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiee, 14,987 224,123
DEFERRED CHARGES:
Landfill closure and postCloSUre Care COSS..........veienrninerenenrnenerenenanenenanns - -
Other deferred Charges........o.ovviiuiiiiii e aes - -
Total Deferred Charges..........vuviiueiieiieeiin et et ens - -
TOTAL ASSETS....ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiuiiiiiiiitinieisisssasasasnsesesssssnssssssssssssssssnsnes $ 18,966 $ 229,475
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MOTOR

VEHICLE
INSPECTION

$ 584

32
210
30
94

366

(272)

94

$ 681

SOLID

WASTE
DISPOSAL

$ 40,931

2,539
358

43,828

12,327

12,327

1,859
1,690
39,404
5,134
13,726

61,813
(19,043)

42,770

36,898
578

37,476

$ 136,401

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

MAYPORT

FERRY

$ 70
26

80

176

610
125
1,390
4,809

6,934
(2,053)

4,881

$ 5,057

(continued)
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TOTALS

2001 2000
$ 48,707 $ 49,681
3,637 2,473
358 375
3 2
210 205
52,915 52,736
892 697
12,327 11,333
115 58
13,334 12,088
30,334 24,112
223,305 223,393
88,328 87,987
16,006 17,384
14,728 656
372,701 353,532
(85,846) (78,778)
286,855 274,754
36,898 38,421
578 617
37,476 39,038
$ 390,580 $ 378,616




CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM CURRENT ASSETS):

Accounts payable and accrued Habilities. ............couvenvireiiniieiiineiniineinennen.
Contracts Payable..........ocuuiiuiiniiiiiiieii e
Due t0 Other OVEIMMENLS. .. ...vuuivieniieeieiteietieieeteeiee e en e eaenen
Accrued compensated absences, Current portion...............oeeeueevneeneenrnnnnnn.
DEPOSIES. ... ve ittt e e
Deferred FEVENUE. .. ... c.uiiriniit it

Total Current Liabilities (Payable From Current ASSets)............cccevvenvuninninnnnn..

CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS):
Deposits held for construction and events.................cccuueivneirneiniiuneinneinnn.s
Accrued interest payable.............cciviiiiiiiiiiie e

Current portion of bonds payable...............cceuieiiiieviiiniiiineiiieiieeiieeeen .

Total Current Liabilities (Payable From Restricted ASSets)...........ccccevveuvneennn...

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, net of current portion:

Liability for landfill closure and postclosure care................coecvvveiunnennnnnnnn..
Accrued compensated aDSENCES. ... .....uiirtneeiieeiieeiiirerieeriierrierineenenss
Revenue bonds...........ooooviiiiiiiii
Total Long-Term Liabilities...........cccoviiviiiniiiiiiii e,

TOTAL LIABILITIES.........ccovtiiiiiimiiiniriiiieirinnesiiimissetmmessssmsssnseees

FUND EQUITY:

Contributed Capital............coiiiiiiiiieiiii e

Retained earnings (deficit):

Unreserved (defiCit).......oo.iuiniiiinii e
Total Retained Earnings (deficit)............c.vuviuiininieninieiieeee e,

TOTAL FUND EQUITY (DEFICIT).....ccceetttuueeeimunerenrennereernncesansnneeaeens

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY....cccotuuiiiunirinnrenneennnerennnnens

(6,629)
(4,173)

$ 18,966

SPORTS

COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM

$ 119 $ 1,962

61 -

3 -

12 -

70 -

. 50

265 2,012

) 1,007

589 -

920 -

1,509 1,007

89 -

21,276 -

21,365 -

23,139 3,019

2,456 200,338

(6,629) 26,118

26,118
226,456

$ 229,475
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MOTOR SOLID

VEHICLE WASTE
INSPECTION DISPOSAL
$ 17 $ 3444
- 1,188
3 61
- 47
20 4,740
- 1,491
- 2,395
- 3,886
- 21,218
22 448
- 55,235
22 76,901
42 85,527
- 11,556
639 39,318
639 39,318
639 50,874
$ 681 $ 136,401

TOTALS
MAYPORT
FERRY 2001 2000
$ 152 3 5,694 $ 4,594
- 1,249 514
- 3 25
- 76 76
- 117 117
30 80 190
182 7,219 5,516
- 1,007 755
- 2,080 835
- 3,315 2,115
] 6,402 3,705
- 21,218 21,752
- 559 562
- 76,511 79,564
- 98,288 101,878
182 111,909 111,099
4,184 218,534 226,652
691 60,137 40,865
691 60,137 40,865
4,875 278,671 267,517
$ 5,057 $ 390,580 $ 378,616

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands) '

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

OPERATING REVENUE:
Charges fOr SEIVICES. ... ...c.uviuuureiiiieeiiie et e e
Total Operating REVENUE. ............ccouviiiiiiiiiiiiiiin e,

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal SErviCes..........c.uuueririiniieeiiiiin e
Supplies and materials.............ccceuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Central SEIVICES........euuuuieiiiiteeeeiii e e e e et
Interdepartmental charges..............ccooeuiveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiee e,
Other services and charges...............o.oooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e,
Bad debts, net of rECOVETIES. ........evvvneeiiniiiiiiiiiee e
Depreciation and amortization....................c...oevivivieinnneenenenn..

Total Operating EXPeNSes. ... .......vuuueiiniiiniiieiiiin et e e eeneeeneenns

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)...ccuuuiittirunarrennereeenrnnceenenneesssnns

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
INEETESt TEVEIUC. ...eeutvein it ittt

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
AND OPERATING TRANSFERS......ccccetttttuiiiiinnieeeerrenrnneeneeneens

Capital contributions. ...............cooveeiiiiiiiiie e
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers iN..................ooiieiiiiiinniiiiiee e
Operating transfers OUL................oeeeieiiueeeiiis e e eeeeeeeeaann,

Total Operating Transfers In (OUt)..............cccouviiueeeiseeieeeeeeeinnn.,

NET INCOME (LOSS)....cuuoeiiiiiiiireereninierieeeerenerssneneeeeereesssnnes

Add depreciation on contributed aSSELs.........o....eeernreernreeeneerieerinnns..
Increase in retained €arnings.................ovuueeeiiiuineeieineeeeiiieeeennnnn.,

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR............

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR.....................

PUBLIC
PARKING

SYSTEM

$ 2,969

2,969

1,173
109
88
451
889

405

3,115

(146)

1,457

(1,307)

150

454

165

619

(7,248)

($ 6,629)

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
CONVENTION
CENTER AND

AUDITORIUM

$ 12,004
12,004

8,189
1,656

413
6,218
14
5,889
22,279
(10,275)
206

2,288
2,494
(7,781)

6,269

4,475
(1,848)
—2ea

1,115

6,976
8,091

18,027

$26,118
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MOTOR SOLID
VEHICLE WASTE
INSPECTION DISPOSAL
$ 496 $ 35,625
496 35,625
335 4,933
16 759
7 89
; 21
24 47,326
73 28
17 2,036
472 55192
24 (19,567)
30 3,125
. (4,097)
. 665
(12) 1366
18 1,059
42 (18,508)
- 28,283
- (48)
- 28,235
42 9,727
- 734
42 10,461
597 28,857
$ 639 $ 39,318

TOTALS
MAYPORT
FERRY 2001 2000
$ 1,045 $ 52,139 $ 47,585
1,045 52,139 47,585
784 15,414 14,909
133 2,573 2,284
- 184 160
- 885 586
705 55,162 58,489
- 115 139
274 8,621 9,315
1,896 82,954 85,882
(851) (30,815) (38,297)
11 3,576 2,987
- (3,790) (2,097)
. 665 914
o 3580 ___4.884
10 4,031 6,688
(841) (26,784) (31,609)
- 6,269 -
657 34,872 31,646
—_ — (3,203) __(2,581)
657 31,669 29,065
(184) 11,154 (2,544)
243 8,118 8,124
59 19,272 5,580
632 40,865 35,285
$ 691 $ 60,137 $ 40,865

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

-211 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).. .. ettt eeeieeeneaeeeneaenes ($ 146) ($ 10,275)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization..............v.vuveveieiivininiieeerenereaeaeaenenenenes 405 5,889
Bad debt expense, net of TECOVETIES. .........oouiiniiiiiiiiiiiii, - 14
Other non-operating revenue/(EXPENSES). ... .cuueuereuntirenerninenieninennaneenennss 61) 2,274
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, net....................... - (827)
Decrease (increase) in due from independent agencies and other governments..... - -
Decrease (inCrease) in iNVENLOTIES. ... ..oueuuiuiuinetetataiiiiieeneneeneneneeaaenanns - -
Decrease (increase) in prepaid EXPenSes.........ovuvevnieieniunininiuiieniinierienines. - (6)
Decrease (increase) in deferred charges............oooviviuieiiiininiiiiiiieenenes - -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued eXpenses.................ovuenens 43 (143)
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds............cooeviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieae, (22) -
Increase (decrease) in contracts payable..............ooooiiiiiiiiiii i 5 -
Increase (decrease) in current portion long-term liabilities.............c..c.ceevnenen.n. 4) -
Increase (decrease) in dePOSItS. .......cueueueeieininininiiii i eeeeeeenene 4 252
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue...........c.cooeviviviiiiiiiiniiiiiieeieae, (89) (20)
Increase (decrease) in liability for landfill closure and postclosure care............. - -
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences.............ccceeveveiiininnannn., (30) -
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS. ...t 251 7,433
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES.....coitiitiiii e 105 (2,842)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating grants reCeiVed. ... ...uuiuiuiririiei it e e e et e eaeeaanas - -
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds.............................. 1,457 4,475
Cash payments through operating transfers to other funds................c..ccevveenen.n. (1,307) (1,848)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES. ..ottt et 150 2,627
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and equUIPMeNt...........c.oeuviiiiiiiiiinii e, (515) (6,809)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment................cceoveiieiiienenninnnne 46 228
Additions to contributed capital ASSELS..........ouueuiurinineiiiiiet e - 6,269
Principal paid on long-term obligations............ccocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (619) -
Interest and payments to refunded bond escrow agent............c.coeevenveneninnenennene. 619 -
NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ...ttt et ae e aeas ($ 469) ($ 312
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MOTOR
VEHICLE

INSPECTION

$ 24

17
73
(85)

16

40

(G0}

TOTALS

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

SOLID
WASTE MAYPORT

DISPOSAL FERRY
($ 19,567) ($ 851)

2,036 274

28 -
1,338 M
(375) (19)

17 -

- 1

1,562 -

1,187 1
731 M

4 -

4 -
- (1M

(534) -

27 -

6,017 254
(13,550) (597)
665 -
28,283 657
(48) -
28,900 657
(14,611) (80)
1,020 -
(1,234) -
(3,164) -

__($17989) __(5 80)
(continued)
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($ 30,815)

13,971

(16,844)

(3,203)

32,334

(2,545)

($ 18,851)

2001

8,621
115
3,465

(1,221)
17

(1)

(%)
1,562
1,100

(22)
735

252
(110)
(534)

©)

665
34,872

(22,032)
1,310
6,269

(1,853)

2000

($ 38,297)

9,315
139
4,884

1,043
205
(1)
(3)
1,310
851
(23)
178
(11)
(415)
107
2,219
(73)

19,725

(18,572)

914
31,646

(2,581)

29,979

(1,925)
594

(1,007)

(3,448)

($ 5,786)



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest and dividends on INVEStMENLS. .........oueiriiniitiireiteerieeereneeieenreeneeanens

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.............

Cash and cash equivalents at October 1

Cash and cash equivalents at September 30.........c.ccoeviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiienns

CLASSIFIED AS:

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in the fair value of investments

Accrual of landfill closure, postclosure care and decontamination costs

TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING

ACTIVITIES.. ...t

Acquisition of contributed capital aSSEts...........c.veueiniiniiiiiieiiire e

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
PUBLIC CONVENTION
PARKING CENTER AND
SYSTEM AUDITORIUM
_s 204 s 206
204 206
(10) (321)
3,989 4,356
_S 3079 __ 5 4035
$ 3,979 $ 3,143
- 892
$ 3,979 $ 4,035
$ 9 $ 6)
$_ 9 ($ 6)
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MOTOR
VEHICLE

INSPECTION

$ 30
30

69
515

$ 584

$ 584

$ 584

G

¢ 1

SOLID
WASTE MAYPORT
DISPOSAL FERRY
_$ 3125 5 11
3,125 1
486 ()]
52,772 79
$ 53,258 $ 70
$ 40,931 $ 70
12,327 -
$ 53,258 $ 70
($ 99) $ -
(% 99) $ -

TOTALS
2001 2000

_$ 3576 _s 2987

3,576 2,987

215 8,608

61,711 53,103
__$ 6102 _S o171t

$ 48,707 $ 49,681

13,219 12,030

$ 61,926 $ 61,711

($ 115) $ -

- 2,539

- 40

($ 115) $ 2,579

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
City department or agency to other City departments or agencies on a cost-reimbursement
basis. Descriptions of individual funds in this category are presented below.

The Fleet Management Fund accounts for the operation of the City's fleet of police cars,
fire and rescue vehicles, public works and public utilities trucks, and many other automotive
on and off road type equipment.

The Copy Center Fund accounts for the operation of the centralized copy center, mail and
messenger service functions for City agencies.

The Information Technologies Fund accounts for centralized information management and
computer services that includes data processing, central telephone and network
communications, and other voice/data electronic media services.

The Legal Fund accounts for centralized legal services to all City departments and agencies
through the Office of General Counsel.

The Self-Insurance Fund accounts for centralized risk management and safety and loss
prevention services to all City departments self-insured for workers' compensation, public,
and general and vehicle liability.

The Group Health Fund accounts for employee health and life insurance premiums and
manages third party health care contracts to all City employees.

The Insured Programs Fund accounts for providing all forms of property and casualty,
commercial liability and other types of coverage to City departments.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments..............c..coeeveniinninnianne.
Accounts receivable..........cooiiiiiiiiiiii
Other receivables...........c.coeviiiiiiiiiiiii
Due from other funds............ooooiiiiiiiiiiii
Due from independent agencies and other governments........
Advances to other funds..............ccooiiiiiiiiin
INVENLOTIES. ...evviveiiiiciii
Prepaid expenses and other assets............cocoveveuieniniennne.

TOtal CUITENt ASSELS. .. evvneerrneeeeeeeeneeeeneeeenereeneeeennnes e

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

Buildings and improvements.............cocoeeveieriiiieenennenns.
Improvements other than buildings..............c.c.coveviienne.
Furniture and equipment.............c.cooeveieniiinininiinnn...

Less accumulated depreciation............c.coveveviiiniiiininn.
Total Property, Plant and Equipment, Net............................

TOTAL ASSETS....coitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicieieneieeeacnenees

FLEET COPY

MANAGEMENT CENTER
$ 62,313 $ 445
1 -

1,200 3
1,024 -
64,538 448
36 -

3,429 -
329 -
91,102 -
94,896 -
(57,469) -
37,427 -

$ 101,965 $ 448

-218 -

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGIES

$ 17,372

10
249

364

17,995

22
457
4,845
32,717
12
38,053
(31,785)
6,268

$ 24,263



$ 3,150

15
381

62
179

241
(201)

40

$ 3,587

SELF-

INSURANCE

$ 51,515
145

2,988
257
13,083

67,988

15

15
(10)

$ 67,993

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

GROUP
HEALTH

$ 3,997

131

131
(108)

25

$ 4,108

(continued)
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INSURED

$ 3,365

47
305

352
(219)
133

$ 3,555

TOTALS

2001 2000
$ 142,157 $ 147,439
230 245
57 75
3,014 3,369
2,092 3,086
13,083 13,551
1,388 1,371
- 14
162,021 169,150
58 58
3,886 3,886
5,283 4,868
124,449 113,502
12 132
133,688 122,446
(89,790) (82,226)
43,898 40,220
$ 205,919 $ 209,370



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

FLEET COPY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT CENTER TECHNOLOGIES

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......................... $ 921 $ 27 $ 732

Due to other funds...........ooovviniiiiiiii e - - -

Due to independent agencies and other governments............ - - -

Capitalized lease obligations, current portion.................... - - 539

Estimated liability for self-insured losses......................... - - -

Accrued compensated absences, current portion................. 116 5 131
Total Current Liabilities. ..........cviiuiereiiiiiiniiieiienenenees 1,037 32 1,402
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, net of current portion:

Accrued compensated abSences.........c.veveueereniinieneinenenns 853 56 961

Capitalized lease obligations.............ccccevvenvininererninennnnss - - 1,332
Total Long-Term Liabilities............c..oovveiininiiniiiininannane. 853 56 2,293
TOTAL LIABILITIES......ccccoiuiiiiiiiiiniinreiicnienincasennes 1,890 88 3,695
FUND EQUITY:

Contributed Capital...........oevuvueiniiniiniiieineieneeeeeeenns 6,140 - 4,949

Retained earnings:

UNIESEIVEA. ... eevieiieiieiie e e e e e e e e et e e ereeaanas 93,935 360 15,619

Total Retained Earnings.........ccocovevvivviniinniiniinenninennennns 93,935 360 15,619
TOTAL FUND EQUITY .....ceuiiiiiiiiiiiieie e, 100,075 360 20,568
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY......cccccvunueens $ 101,965 $ 448 $ 24,263
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TOTALS

SELF- GROUP INSURED

LEGAL INSURANCE HEALTH PROGRAMS 2001 2000
$ 70 $ 73 $ 3,190 $ 206 $ 5219 $ 479
- 16 - - 16 16
- - - - 539 332
- 56,790 - - 56,790 56,147
86 3 10 3 354 327
156 56,882 3,200 209 62,918 61,618
627 25 70 25 2,617 2,410
- - - - 1,332 777
627 25 70 25 3,949 3,187
783 56,907 3,270 234 66,867 64,805
2 - 14 26 11,131 11,345
2,802 11,086 824 3,295 127,921 133,220
2,802 11,086 824 3,295 127,921 133,220
2,804 11,086 838 3,321 139,052 144,565
$ 3,587 $ 67,993 $ 4,108 $ 3,555 $ 205,919 $ 209,370

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

FLEET
MANAGEMENT
OPERATING REVENUE:
Charges fOr SEIVICES. .. .uuiuininieiiiiit et e eeneaens $ 34,194
Charges for services for independent authorities.......................... 5,607
OheT. ..o -
Total Operating Revenue...........cocoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 39,801
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal SEIVICES. .. c.uuninenin et e e aeaes 7,244
Supplies and materials..........oooeveieiiiiiiiiiie 10,269
(002111 &1 B 4 (T P 94
Other services and Charges...........c..cvevviviiiiiiiiiniinnni, 5,240
DEPIeCIAtION. .o eeuieeeeeieiee e ettt e et et e e e eea e 13,649
COUIt TEPOILET SEIVICES. . cueuuerinininineneneeeeeeatiatiieenaaaanes -
Claims and 10SSES. ......oeueuinininiiii i -
Insurance premiums and participant dividends......................oooeel. 29
Total Operating EXPEenSes........c.vvueuiunireuiiineeniiiiiiieiiiieienenen. 36,525
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)..c.ucuuitieniiiiieiiiieeieeeiieeieaeenn 3,276
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
INEEreSt TEVENUE. ... .uvtinininin ittt 2,825
(011 13 N 1,014
Total Non-Operating Revenue (EXpenses) ..........cccoeveveiiiniinennnenns 3,839
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND
OPERATING TRANSFERS.......ciiiiiiiiiiii e 7,115
Capital CONLIIDULIONS ....e.iuuiiitieie i et ee e e 3
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers iN............ooeveviieriininiiii e 5,044
Operating transfers OUL...........ooeiiireieininiieiat e reeeaenens (2)
Total Operating Transfers In (Out)..........ccoeviiiieiiiiiiiiiniieiiineenes 5,042
NET INCOME (LOSS). .. et ettt ee e e 12,160
Add depreciation on contributed assets...........c..coveuieuiiniiniiniiiiiinennen. 142
Increase (decrease) in retained €arniNgS.........c.ceeveuevvenireeneneenenrenenans 12,302
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR.........cccevnvvnennnne. 81,633
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR........ccovviiiiiiiniiinieienes $ 93,935

COPY

$ 1,057

1,062

195
16
421
281
18

931

131

(1)
(47)
(48)

83

18

101

101

259

$ 360

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGIES

$ 23,115
2,547

66
25,728
7,348
814
3,949

9,224
3,692

44
25,071
657

709

(1,875)
(1,166)

(509)

79
79
(423)
52
(371)
15,990

$ 15,619
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TOTALS

SELF- GROUP INSURED
LEGAL INSURANCE HEALTH PROGRAMS 2001 2000

$ 5,121 $ 16,401 $ 37,944 $ 4,414 $ 122,246 $ 123,781
2,427 4,299 - - 14,885 -

5 3 15 - 89 352

7,553 20,703 37,959 4,414 137,220 124,133
4,311 468 621 388 20,575 19,837
70 10 16 4 11,199 11,609

114 28 58 14 4,678 4,046
1,007 4,093 720 474 21,039 18,108
12 3 21 98 17,493 13,198

25 - - - 25 -

- 13,990 - - 13,990 327

4 4,934 36,299 2,914 44,224 37,722

5,543 23,526 37,735 3,892 133,223 104,847
2,010 (2,823) 224 522 3,997 19,286
56 3,839 142 150 7,720 7,968
(242) (581) (302) 557 (1,476) (497)
(186) 3,258 (160) 707 6,244 7,471
1,824 435 64 1,229 10,241 26,757

2 - - 27 57 -

- 1,072 - - 6,195 5,776
(4) (22,000) - - (22,006) (18,913)
(4) (20,928) - - (15,811) (13,137)
1,822 (20,493) 64 1,256 (5,513) 13,620

- 1 6 13 214 1,492

1,822 (20,492) 70 1,269 (5,299) 15,112
980 31,578 754 2,026 133,220 118,108

$ 2,802 $ 11,086 $ 824 $ 3,295 $ 127,921 $ 133,220

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

FLEET COPY
MANAGEMENT CENTER
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)...cuttutniieniieieeieie et eee e eanenes $ 3,276 $ 131
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amoOrtization. ..........veuuieeurerrerneineinerneineneeneenrenernnenns 13,649 18
Other non-operating revenue/(EXPENSES). ... uueueuuereeneurenenereenenereeneneenens 1,014 (47)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, net...................... - -
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds..............coooeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininin, 1 -
Decrease (increase) in due from independent agencies and other governments.... 60 -
Decrease (InCrease) in INVENTOTIES. .....viviueneinineiriniieieeneneeneneeeenieeeeenenens 70 -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
ACCIUEA EXPEISES. . e eueueeetentntntntn et et et et et et ea ettt e e eaeeneneeneaenanenenas 45 25
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds.............cooiiviiiiiiiiiiiiiieenee, - -
Increase (decrease) in due to independent agencies and other governments........ - -
Increase (decrease) in compensated abSENCES..........vuuvuenierieneeneenaearnannanns 26 5
Increase (decrease) in liability for self-insured 10sses..........cccevvviieiiiiiiniinn, - -
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS. ...ttt 14,865 1
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES. ... ...ttt 18,141 132
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received through operating transfers from other funds............................. 5,044 -
Cash payments through operating transfers to other funds............................... (2) -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:........cocoviiiiniiiiieeeeneenennns 5,042 -
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and equUIpmMeNt.............oevueeneinrineiiiiriaiieieinanes (27,420) (18)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment..................cccveeunrennnnn... 8,016 -
Additions to contributed capital @SSELS...........c.cueinirirniiiiniieiieeieeeeeenaaes 3 18
Principal paid on long-term obligations..........c.ccveuiiviirieiniiniiniinieeeenneiannes - -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......coviiiiiiiiieiiiiieieieeeeeeiaeens ($ 19,401) $ -

224 -

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGIES

$ 657

3,692
(1,875)

747
(87)
271)
72
2,282

2,939

79

79
(5,000)
3,516

555

($ 922)



$ 2,010

12
(242)

95

(52)

115

(65)

1,945

)

)

(41

SELF-

INSURANCE

($ 2,823)

1,038

(1,785)

(22,000)

(20,928)

¢

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

(581)

19
812
94

42

6
643

1,072

“)

4)
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GROUP INSURED
HEALTH PROGRAMS
$ 224 $ 522

21 98

(302) 557

9 18

2 -

429 205

1) 11

154 889

378 1,411

- (30)

5 -

- 27

$ 5 ($ 3)
(continued)

TOTALS

2001 2000
_$ 3997 $ 19,286
17,493 13,198
(1,476) (497)
47 (105)
823 9,702
994 1,580
A7) 7
423 196
- (560)
- (1,839)
234 (29)
643 (9,433)
19,164 12,220
23161 31,506
6,195 5,776
(22,006) (18,913)
(15,811) (13,137)
(32,513) (28,554)
11,549 11,394
57 -
555 777
($ 20,352) ($ 16,383)




CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

FLEET COoPY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT CENTER TECHNOLOGIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and dividends On INVESIMENES. .......ovivinininieieii e et eeeeeneanennn $ 2,825 $ 1 $ 709

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES......otutiiiiiiiiieeiieeie et e neieeeeeeaeseaaans 2,825 (1) 709
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS......iiiiiiii ettt e et e e e e ans 6,607 131 2,805
Cash and cash equivalents at OCtober 1.........cc.oveviiuiiniiniineiiiiieeieiniiennenns 55,706 314 14,567
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30..............coeeviiiiinieieiiennannnnn. $ 62,313 $ 445 $ 17,372
CLASSIFIED AS:
CUTTENE ASSEES. ... iutittitt ettt et e e et e et et et e e e eaeeneeneanaes $ 62,313 $ 445 $ 17,372
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in the fair value of INVESIMENES..........ovvvieiininiiirie e eeeneennns $ 114 S 1 $ 29)
Acquisition of assets through capital 1ease...............coeuiiieriiniieiiieiieineienenesn. - - 1,094
Acquisition of contributed capital aSSets.............cveeuverreeiriiieiiieiiieiieiieiieaanens - - -

TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES..... oottt e e ($ 119 $ 1 $ 1,065
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56

1,970

1,180

$ 3,150

$ 3,150

SELF-

$ 3,839

3,839

(18,878)

70,393

$ 51,515

$ 51,515

$ 224)

($ 224)

GROUP INSURED
HEALTH PROGRAMS
$ 142 $ 150
142 150
525 1,558
3,472 1,807
_ 83997 _5 3365
83997 _8 3365
¢ 7 $ -
() 3 -

TOTALS

$ 7,720

7,720

147,439

$ 142,157

$ 142,157

$ 721

2001

(5,282)

($  373)
1,094

2000
$ 7,968
7,968
9,954
137,485
$ 147,439
$ 147,439
$ -
166

$ 166

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. Below are
descriptions of the generic fund types within this category and specific funds within each
fund type.

PENSION TRUST FUNDS are funds administered by independent boards for which the
City performs a fiduciary role under a defined benefit program those retirement funds for
which the participant's retirement annuity is based on a statutory formula utilizing such

factors as age, average salary, length of service and others. The City has two pension trust
funds as described below.

The General Employees Pension Trust Fund includes resources accumulated to
pay present and future retirement annuities to eligible employees of the City except
for employees of the Office of the Sheriff and City Department of Fire and Rescue.

The Police and Fire Pension Trust Fund accounts for a single employer,
contributory defined benefit plan for City police officers and firefighters.

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS are funds whose resources, excluding principal may
be expended in the course of the fund's designated operations.

The Nonexpendable Trust Fund receives funds from donors who legally restrict
the resources so that only earnings may be spent for the trusts' intended purpose,
maintaining the principal for future earnings.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS are funds whose resources, including principal and
interest, may be expended in the course of the fund's designated operations.

The Expendable Trust Fund receives revenue from many miscellaneous
governmental and non-governmental sources in the form of contributions, donations,
gifts, and grants to be held in trust that can be expended only for those purposes
specified by the donors as set forth in the City ordinance under which the expendable
trust was established.

AGENCY FUNDS are funds which hold monies in an agency capacity for various
government units, individuals or funds. Individual fund descriptions follow.

The Treasurer Fund is the clearing fund used to account for all cash received and
disbursed on behalf of the City's payroll.

The Tax Collector Fund accounts for assets and liabilities from the collection of all
taxes, revenues and other cash amounts on behalf of the City and various of its
agencies, authorities, organizations, individuals, and funds.

The Clerk of the Circuit Court Fund accounts for assets and liabilities from
revenues collected on behalf of the State and City by the Court System for various
judgements, fines, bonds, fees and licenses, and other miscellaneous amounts.



Plat Deposits Fund accounts for the deposits placed with the City as collateral to
insure the completion of improvements in the event of default by a developer or
failure by the developer to complete improvements within the time specified by the
ordinance approving the Final Plat.

The Duval County School Readiness Coalition Fund accounts for the assets and
liabilities from revenues collected on behalf of the Duval County School Readiness
Coalition from the State, pursuant to Florida Statute 411.01, to provide
comprehensive programs of readiness services to children.

The Florida Retirement System Fund accounts for a multiple-employer, cost-
sharing defined benefit plan for certain City employees who elected to remain with
the State of Florida Retirement System.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Equity in cash and investments.............ccceeveveieieenennnnns
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUNLS. ... eueinineietitee it e e eeaenes
Due from individuals..........coooveiiiniiiiiininenienenns
Due from other funds...........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiiies

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS.....cccooiviiiiiiiiiiie

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

Building and improvements..............coc.euveuiiieniininienenes
Improvements other than buildings..............................
Furniture and equipment.............cccoveviiiiiiniiiininin,
Less: accumulated depreciation.............ccocevuviniinininnans

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, Net.......

TOTAL ASSETS....ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniirieienreeeneeineneenes

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........................
Contracts payable..........c.cceeoviiiiiiiiiiiiin
Due to other funds............coovevviiiiiiiiiiiii
Due to independent agencies and other governments.........
Due to individuals...........coveuviiiiiiiiniiinieeeeenee
Current portion of long-term liabilities.........................
Deposits held in 5Crow..........covevvveniininiiiininininenns

Total Current Liabilities...........cooviiiiriiiiiiiieeeeenens

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, net of current portion:

Accrued compensated absences...........c.cvcveviiiiiniiininnn..

TOTAL LIABILITIES.........coooiiiiiiiiiccce,

FUND EQUITY:

Fund balance:
Reserved:
Reserved for employees' retirement benefits............
Unreserved:
Designated for changes in fair value of investments....
Undesignated. ..........covueeiiniiiiiniiiiin e
Total Fund Balances............c..cccceviiiiniiiniiiininnninnne.

Total Fund EQUIity.........c.ovviiiiiiiiiiiiiieii e eeans

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES..............

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

GENERAL POLICE NONEXPENDABLE EXPENDABLE

EMPLOYEES AND FIRE TRUST TRUST

$ 1,427,464 $ 779,421 $ 318 $ 6,850

. . - 7

- 224 - B,

1,427,464 779,645 318 6,857

- 24 - -

- 155 - -

- 97 - ,

120 444 - -

(76) (277) - .

44 443 - -

$ 1,427,508 $ 780,088 $ 318 $ 6,857

$ 608 $ 522 $ - $ 190

- - - 36

- 51,576 - 262

2 6 - -

- 281 - 8

610 52,385 - 496

17 41 - ,

627 52,426 - 496

1,426,881 727,662 - -

- - - 17

- - 318 6,344

1,426,881 727,662 318 6,361

1,426,881 727,662 318 6,361

$ 1,427,508 $ 780,088 $ 318 $ 6,857
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AGENCY FUNDS

DUVAL CO SCHOOL FLORIDA TOTALS
TAX CLERK OF THE  PLAT READINESS  RETIREMENT
TREASURER COLLECTOR CIRCUIT COURT DEPOSITS  COALITION SYSTEM 2001 2000
$ 2,856 $ 15,955 $ 11,509 $ 369 $ 387 $ 34 $2,245163  $2,416,739
82 - 111 - - - 200 319
- 3,176 - - - - 3,176 3,940
- - - - - - 224 246
2,938 19,131 11,620 369 387 34 2,248,763 2,421,244
- - - - - - 24 24
- - - - - - 155 155
. . . . ; - 97 97
- - - - - - 564 321
] ) . . - - (353) (303)
- - - - - . 487 294
$ 2,938 $ 19,131 $ 11,620 $ 369 $ 387 $ 34 $2,249250  $2,421,538
$ 2,938 $ . $ - $ - $ 387 $ - $ 4645 $ 3928
- - - - - - 36 35
- 3,176 2,382 - - - 5,558 4,672
- 6,782 3,120 - - 34 9,936 14,459
- 478 1,914 - - . 54,230 30,281
- - - - - - 8 6
- 8,695 4,204 369 - - 13,557 18,011
2,938 19,131 11,620 369 387 34 87,970 71,392
- - - - - - 58 44
2,938 19,131 11,620 369 387 34 88,028 71,436
- - - - - - 2,154,543 2,344,614
- - - - - - 17 26
. . . . ; - 6,662 5,462
- - - - - 2 2,161,222 2,350,102
- - - - - - 2,161,222 2,350,102
$ 2,938 $ 19,131 $ 11,620 $ 369 $ 387 $34 $2,249250  $2,421,538

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

OPERATING REVENUE:

Earnings on investments................c..cuune..

Total Operating Revenue............c......c..e.ee.

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Total Operating EXpenses..........c..c.ccveeevnenn.

OPERATING INCOME......ccccituiiiniiiiiiriiieniitnciitnteriinneeieesnesneanees

NET INCOME.....ccceutttiiiuiienieieerrericrermsescescrssrsceerserssesssssescrscsncns

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR.......cccotcviiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiniienneneneane,

TOTALS
2001 2000

$ 16 $ 19
16 19

8 8

8 8

8 11

8 11

310 299

$ 318 $ 310

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

TOTALS
2001 2000

REVENUE:

INEETZOVETNIMENTAL. .. v\ieiteinieeten et eneen ettt e et et en e et eneneaaeanenenenees $ 241 $ -

Fines and forfeitures. ........cocoevuiiiiiiiiii 1 -

01 (1] N 93 96

L0 11 1 1 2,261 3,051
Total REVENUE......c.iuiiiiiiiii i 2,596 3,147
EXPENDITURES:

General GOVEIMMENL. .......c.vuiueeeeeeeeieeeeeaeeeneneaeieeirenaaaes 529 478

HUMAN SEIVICES. ..t uininininiieten et et et et ete et e ee e aeeeenenes 132 87

Public safety.........ccoviuiiiiii 1,527 1,057

Culture and reCreation. ...........c.vuvuiuiuirinininie i 475 281

Economic enVironment...........eeuieeeiuierinietin e eenieieneeeenenaes 85 127

Physical environment.........c..o.euiieveiiieirininii i 59 61
Total EXPenditures.........oveuieienininiiiiiiiiiec e 2,807 2,091
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES............. (211) 1,056
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in.............cocoviveiiiiiiiiinii 1,486 162

Operating transfers OUL............o.eeeeiiiereriiiiiiii e (92) (12)
Total Other Financing (US€S).......covueuenininiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeeeenenes 1,394 150
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES........cccccccvuinnnnene. 1,183 1,206
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR........ccociiiiiiiiniineiennne, 5,178 3,972
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR......c.cccoiiviiiiiiniiniiniininnincnee, $ 6,361 $ 5,178

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
2000 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2001
TREASURER
ASSETS

Equity in cash and investments.............c.c.oceeenennenes $2,803 $ 469,162 $ 469,109 $ 2,856
Accounts receivable.........cooeevvviriiniiiiiini 68 132 118 82
TOTAL ASSETS. ..o $ 2,871 $ 469,294 $ 469,227 $ 2,938

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.................. $ 2,871 $ 626,424 $ 626,357 $ 2,938
TOTAL LIABILITIES.... .ottt $ 2,871 $ 626,424 $ 626,357 $ 2,938

TAX COLLECTOR
ASSETS

Equity in cash and investments.................c..c.cceeuen. $ 19,987 $ 386,335 $ 390,367 $ 15,955
Due from individuals...........c.coooioiiiii, 3,940 726 1,490 3,176
TOTAL ASSETS....oiiiiicee $ 23,927 $ 387,061 $ 391,857 $ 19,131

LIABILITIES
Due to other funds...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiine. $ 2246 $ 1,655 $ 725 $ 3,176
Due to independent agencies and other governments.... 11,962 135 5,315 6,782
Due to individuals..........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 323 276 121 478
Deposits held in esCrow...........coceeeviiiiinininnnnnnn.. 9,396 390,864 391,565 8,695
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......coooiiiiiiiiiiieieeeens $ 23,927 $ 392,930 $ 397,726 $19,131
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
2000 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2001
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments..............c..veveveneninenen. $14,726 $ - $ 3,217 $ 11,509
Accounts receivable............oociiiiiiiiiiiiii 129 - 18 111
TOTAL ASSETS...ouiiiiiiiie e $ 14,855 $ - __$ 3,235 __$11620
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds........c.coooiiiiiiiiiii $ 2,426 $ 2,382 $ 2,426 $ 2,382
Due to independent agencies and other governments....... 2,483 637 - 3,120
Due to individuals..........ccovveiiiiiiiiiini 1,550 364 - 1,914
Deposits held in €SCIOW.........ovvviierereneniiiiiiiiiienanene 8,396 2,426 6618 4,204
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......ccviniiiiiiinieeeeneeeeeane $ 14,855 $ 5,809 $ 9,044 $ 11,620
PLAT DEPOSITS
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments.................ccovveennnnn... $ 299 $ 753 $ 683 $ 369
TOTAL ASSETS... oo $ 299 $ 753 $ 683 $ 369
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................... $ 88 $ 595 $ 683 $ -
Deposits held in €SCrow........c.ceevveniineinieiiniininennee. 211 753 595 369
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt $ 299 $ 1,348 $1,278 $ 369
DUVAL CO SCHOOL READINESS COALITION
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments................ccocevvneninnnen. $ - $ 4,968 $ 4,581 $ 387
TOTAL ASSETS. ..ot $ - $ 4,968 $ 4,581 $ 387
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................... $ - $6,146 $ 5,759 $ 387
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt $ - $ 6,146 $ 5,759 $ 387
(continued)

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
2000 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2001
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments................coceeveenennns $ 14 $ 298 $ 278 $34
TOTAL ASSETS....iiiiiiiii e $ 14 $ 298 $ 278 $34
LIABILITIES
Due to independent agencies and other governments..... $ 14 $ 271 $ 251 $ 34
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......ccoiiiiiiiiier e $ 14 $ 271 $ 251 $34
TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments...............ccocuveveennen<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>